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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Arjas Steel Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Arjas Steel Private
Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash
Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, ("Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2025, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing ("SA"s) specified under section 143(10} of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI")
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

» The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion & Analysis
Report and Directors’ Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements,
standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. These reports are
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

» Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information
and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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« In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing
50, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

+ When we read the Management Discussion & Analysis Report and Directors’ Report, if we
conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate
the matter to those charged with governance as required under SA 720 ‘The Auditor's
responsibilities Relating to Other Information’,

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principies
generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company's Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii} to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements
in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 were
audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on
June 7, 2024,
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Our opinion on the standalone financial statements is not modified in respect of this matter,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a)

b)

)

d)

e)

g)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for not
keeping backup on a daily basis of such books of account maintained in electronic mode
in a server physically located in India (refer Note 44 to the standalone financial
statements) and not complying with the requirement of audit trail as stated in (i)(vi)
below.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith, are as stated in paragraph (b) above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an
unmaodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’'s
internal financial contrels with reference to standalone financial statements,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 40 to the standalone
financial statements;
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Vi,

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the note 43(iv) to the standalone financial statements, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
{"Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the note 43(v) to the standalone financial statements,
noe funds have been received by the Company from any person{s} or
entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(i) and (ii} of Rule 11(e), as provided under {a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement,

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the vear and has not
proposed final dividend for the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the year ended
March 31, 2025, which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and
the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software except that:

- in respect of one software, the audit trail feature was not enabled for certain
critical tables/master records throughout the year and audit trail was not
enabled at the database level to log any direct data changes. During the course
of our audit, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with, in respect of tables/records for which the audit trait feature was
enabled and operating. Additionally, the audit trail that was enabled and
operated for the year ended March 31, 2024, has been preserved by the
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention, as stated in
Note 44 to the standalone financial statements.
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- In respect of software operated by a third party software service provider for
maintaining payroll records, in the absence of an independent auditor's System
and Organisation Controls report covering the audit trail requirement, we are
unable to comment whether audit trai! feature of the said software was enabled
and operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software and whether there were any instances of the audit trail feature been
tampered with (Refer Note 44 of the standalone financial statements}.
Additionally, in absence of the independent auditor’s System and Organisation
Controls report covering the audit trail requirement, we are unable to comment
whether the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention for the year ended March 31, 2024,

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 008072S)

s o

Monisha Parikh
Partner
(Membership No. 47840)
UDIN: 25047840BMRIUS1806
Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 19, 2025
Ref: MP/MS/HG/RD/2025
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
{Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the “Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
of Arjas Steel Private Limited (the “Company”) as at March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone financiat statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements based
on the internal control with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”} issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements.

4
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial
statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, A company's internal financial control with reference to
standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone
financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements to future periocds are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria for
internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 008072S)

g ro M
Monisha Parikh
Partner
{Membership No. 47840)
UDIN: 25047840BMRIUS1806
Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 19, 2025
Ref: MP/MS/HG/RD/2025
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
{Referred to in paragraph 2 under *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ Sectlon
of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
helief, we state that:

(1)
a)

b}

)

d)

(i)

a)

b)

In respect of property, plant and equipment

A)} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and capital work-
in-progress.

B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

The Company has a program of verlfication of property, plant and equipment and capital
work-in-progress so to cover all the items once every three years which, in our opinicn, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets, Pursuant
to the program, no assets were due for verification during the year and were physically
verified by the Management during the year. Accordingly, the question of reporting on
material discrepancies noted on verification does not arise. '

Based on the examination of the registered sale deed provided to us, we report that, the
tile deeds of all the immovable properties of land and buildings (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the Company) disclosed in the financial statements included in property, plant and
equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. Immovable
properties of land and buildings whose title deeds have been pledged as security for loans,
are held in the name of the Company based on the confirmations directly received by us
from custodian.

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including right of
use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as
at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
{Prohibition} Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

The inventories (except for goods-in-transit) and stocks lying with third parties, were
physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals. In our
opinion and based on information and explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure
of such verification by the Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its operations. For goods in transit, the goods have been
received subsequently and the evidence of receipts has been linked with inventory records.
No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed
on such physical verification of inventories/alternate procedures performed as applicabie,
when compared with the books of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at points of time
during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
revised quarterly returns filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions are
in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective
quarters.
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iii)

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

The Company has not provided any guarantee or security to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year. The Company has made
investments in; and granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured
to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year, in
respect of which:

The Company has provided loans or advances in the nature of loans during the year and
details of which are given below:

Loans
Particulars {Amount in Rs. Lakh)
Aggregate amount granted / provided during the year:
-  Subsidiary 3,607.58
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date
(including accrued interest)
- Subsidiary 24,072.33

The investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of all the above-mentioned
loans and advances in the nature of loans during the year are, in our opinion, not prejudicial
to the Company’s interest.

According to the information and explanation provided to us and on the basis of examination
of the records of the Company, in case of a term loan of Rs. 3,431.16 lakh given to the
subsidiary, the repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. The
repayment of principal has not fallen due as of March 31, 2025 and thus, there has been
no default on the part of the subsidiary in respect of principal portion of such loan. However,
the receipts of interest has not been regular as given in the table below. Further, a working
capital loan of Rs. 18,955.58 lakh given to the subsidiary is repayable on demand. As
informed to us, the Company has not demanded repayment of working capital loan during
the year. Thus, there has been no default on the part of the subsidiary in respect of principal
portion of such loan. However, the receipt of interest has not been regular as given in the
table below.

Name Nature Gross Due date | Extent of | Remarks

of the amount delay (in

entity (in Rs. days)

Lakh)
Arjas Interest on 317.22 | March 31, 101 | Received on
Modern term loan 2024 July 10,
Steel Interest on 1,322.15 | March 31, 101 | 2024
Private woarking 2024
Limited capital loan 521.86 | March 31, 467
2023

In respect of loans granted and advances in the nature of loans provided by the Company,
there is no amount overdue for more than 90 days at the balance sheet date.

No loan or advance in the nature of loan granted by the Company which has fallen due

during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues
of existing loans given to the same parties.
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f)

The Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans which are repayable on
demand details of which are given below:

Related parties
Particulars Amount (in Rs. Lakh)
Aggregate of loans

- Repayable on demand (A)

18,955.58

Percentage of loans to the total loans
78.74%

(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies

Act, 2013 in respect of [oans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities
provided, as applicable.

{v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.

Hence reporting under clause (v} of the Order is not applicable.

{vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section

148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts
maintained by the Company pursuant to the to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit)
Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost
records under Section 148(1) of the Act and are of the opinion that prima facie, the
prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the Company. We have,
however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) In respect of statutory dues:

(a)

In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess
and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom,
duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at
March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

Page 11 of 15



Deloitte

Haskins & Sells

(b}

=

Details of statutory dues referred to in sub clause {a) ahove which have not been deposited
as on March 31, 2025 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of | Nature of Forum where Period to | Amount Amount
the Statue | the dues dispute is | which involved | unpaid
pending amount {Rs in | (Rs in
relates lakhs) lakhs)
Income Tax | Income tax The FY 2022-23 6,262.23 6,262.23
Act, 1961 Commissioner /
Joint
Commissioner FY 2019-20 292.27 292.27
of Income-tax,
Appeals
High Court of | FY 2014-15
Andra Andhra Pradesh | to 650.93 488.20
Pradesh Tax - {Amaravathi) FY 2017- 18
on entry of | Entry tax Andhra Pradesh | FY 2011-12 1.15 -
Goods  into Sales Tax | FY 2012-13 3.69 -
Area  Act, Appellate
2001 Tribunal, FY 2013-14 34.79 -
Vishakapatnam
Deputy FY 2011-12
Andra Commissioner |\ “"5013.| s51.28| 496.15
Pradesh of State Tax, 2014
VAT Act Value Added Tax Apantapur
2005 ’ High Court of | FY 2005-06
Andhra Pradesh | to FY 2007- 54.80 54.80
-{Amaravathi) 08
Andra Andhra Pradesh | FY 2008 -09 752.04 685.38
Pradesh Sales tax | FY 2004-05 16.71 8.35
VAT Act, Sales tax _;ﬁ_pgellatie FY 2005-06 35.17 17.04
rbuna -
2005 Vishakapatnam FY 2007-08 1,090.98 27217
o asecs
Tax Adt, Value added Tax | Sales Appellate | FY 2015-16 46.71 31.13
2006 Tribunal
October
The Goods and égstlembert" 32.89 29.60
Services Tax
Appellate 1233'22017 to
Tribunal March 2018 130.65 106.89
FY 2018-19 104.81 94,33
Central Joint
Goods and | Goods and | Commissioner -
Service Tax | Service tax Faridabad South FY 2017-18 26.20 2459
Act, 2017 Division
Joint
Commissioner FY 2024-25 11.06 -
Appeals, Agra
Joint/Additional | October
Commissioner 2022 to
Appeals - | September dd. 24 L1749
Guntur 2023
Additional
finonce At | service Tax E??d';"'ﬁ"c‘;'t‘gn | Fr 2016-17 98.15 98.15

Tirupati
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(viii} There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered
or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1561)
during the year.

(ix}
a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other
borrowings, or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year, except as

under:

Nature | Name of | Amount Whether | Number of | Remarks

of lender not paid | principal | days

borrow on due | / delay/unp

ing date (in | interest | aid

Rs. Lakh)

External | Blue Coral 646,09 | Interest 32 | Due date - August 10,

Comme | Investime 2024

rcial nt Paid on - September

Borrowi | Holdings 11, 2024

ngs Pte 476.65 11 | Due date - September

Limited 20, 2024

Paid on - October 1,
2024

b) The Company has not been deciared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company
were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were
obtained.

d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the funds raised on
short term basis aggregating Rs. 3,275.65 lakh have been used for long-term purposes.

e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiary. Further, the Company did not have any associate or joint venture during the
year.

) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiary. Further, the Company did not have any associate or joint venture during the
year.

(x)
a) The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt instruments) during the
year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a} of the Order is not applicable.

b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partially or optionally) and hence reportmg
under clause {x)(b) of the Order is not applicable,

(xi)
a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto
the date of this report.
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c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the yvear and up to the date of this report.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

{xili} In our opinien, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related parly
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

{xiv)

a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business.

b) We have considered the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year and
for the period under audit.

{xv) In our opinion, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with any of its directors or persons connected with such directors and hence provisions of
Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

{xvi)

a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934, Hence, reporting under clause (xvi}{a), (b} and (¢} of the Order is not
applicable.

b} In our opinion, there is no core investment Company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting
under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

{xvii)} The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

{xix)} On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

4
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(xx)

a) In respect of other than ongeing projects, the Company has fully spent the required amount
towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and there are no unspent CSR amount for
the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or
special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the
said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause {xx)} of the Order is not applicable for the year.

b) In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent Corporate Social
Responsibility {CSR) amount, to a Special account before the date of this report and within
a period of 30 days from the end of the financial year in compliance with the provision of
section 135(6) of the Act.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 008072S)

TR ¥

Monisha Parikh
Partner
(Membership No. 47840)
UDIN: 25047840BMRIUS1806
Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 19, 2025
Ref: MP/MS/HG/RD/2025
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Arjas Steel Private Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

{all amounts are rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Mg As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a} Property, plant and equipment 4 1,20,688.57 1,09,177.45
{b) Right of use assets Sa 590.81 631.98
(<) Capital work-in-progress 4 24, 366,67 26,2741
{d} Intangible assets 6 52347 35279
(e} Financial assets
M Investments 7 2,234.78 234947
(i) Loans 9 2407233 18,779.16
(i} Other financial assets 10 44770 1,283.22
{fi Income tax assets (net) 12 587.96 70123
{g) Other non-current assets 13 4,102.20 437719
Total non-current assets 1.82,.284.49 1.63,927.20
Current assets
(a) Inventories 14 55021.07 83,930.12
(b} Financial assets
() Trade receivables a 26,694.03 28,634.63
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 15 1,147.54 2,73936
(iiiy Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 16 - 3039
(iv} Other financial assets 10 865.11 280065
{c) Other current assets 13 2,234.35 2,276.08
Total current asseis £6,162.10 1,20.411.22
Total assets 2.68.446.59 2.84,338.43
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 17 2,40,207.91 24020791
(b) Other equity 18 (1,08,549.47) (1.11,941.27)
Total equity 1,31,658.44 1.28,266.64
LiabHlities
Non-current liabilities
{a} Financial liabilities
{it Borrowings 19 29,638.34 44,686.56
(i)} Lease liabilities 5e 301.99 384,27
{ili) Other financial liabilities 21 58.00 139.57
(b} Provislons 22 - 608.04
(¢} Other non-current liabilities 23 1,208.54 353.95
Total non-current liabilities 41,206.87 46,172.29
Current Babilities
{a) Financial Rabilities
B Borrowings 19 31,2119 30,648.79
(i) Lease liabilities 5B 265.34 201.98
(iii} Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro entesprises and small enterprises 20 8,747.15 11,288.24
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 20 46,743.76 5823521
{ivi Other financial liabilities 21 4817.90 6,909.13
{b} Provisions 22 1,113.24 1,565.00
{c} Other current liabilitfes 23 268188 1,050.99
Total current liabliitles 95,581.28 1.09.899.40
Total equity and liabilities 2.68.446.59 2,84,338.43
Matexial accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral pant of these standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells for and on behalf of Board of Directors of Arjas Steel Private Limited
Chartered Accountants CIN: U27109AF1993PTCO 15499
[Firm Registration Number. 0080723) q/
\ H \ M B.M?— . . OM
Maonisha Parlih Bahirji Ajal Ghorpade Uttam Kumar Bhageria
Partner Chairman and Managing Director Executive Director
[Membership No: 0473840] DIM: (8452844 DIM: 10589928
} W
-~ .
Date: May 19, 2025 Anand Pasupuleti Krishna Satyanarayan Mohanty
Place: Bengaluru Chief Executive Officer jef Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership MNe; 22035

Date: May 19, 2025
Place: Bengaluru



Arjas Steel Private Limitad
Standalone Statemegnt of Profit and Loss for year ended March 31, 2025
(all unts are rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Notes Yaar ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from operations 24 2,20,707.21 2,01,862.21
Other income 25 2,931.63 343797
Total income 2,31,638.84 2,05,300,18
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 26 13363475 1.59,548.14
Changes in inventories of finished goods, semi finished goods and work-in-progress 27 24,680.08 (24.771.99)
Employee benefits expense 28 10.475.70 10.312.13
Finance costs 29 771783 707363
Depreciation and amortization expense 30 10,185.02 9062.12
Other expenses 31 42,723.08 39.445.25
Total expenses 2,29417.47 2,00,669.28
Profit before tax 2,221.37 4,630.90
Tax expenses
Current tax n - -
Deferred tax 1n = S
Profit for the year 2,221.37 4.630.90
Other comprehensive income
Rems that will not be reclassified subsaquantly to profit ar loss
Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans 41 {11.05) (36.84)
Fair value changes on Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income T (849.47) -
Income tax refating to items that will not be redassified to profit or loss = =
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) (360.52) (36.84)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1.260.85 4.594.06
Earnings per equity share of INR. 10 each; 32
Basic [in INR absolute numbers) 009 0.20
Diluted [in INR absclute numbers] 009 0.20
Material accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone finandial statements.
As per our report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & Selfls for and on behalf of Board of Directors of Arjas Steel Private Limited
Chartered Accountants CIN; U27108AP1983PTCO 15499

[Firm Registration Mumber: 0080725]

s v g Bodisi A Cntpede Uﬁ%w“_'_/

Maonisha Parikh Bahirji Ajai Ghorpade Uttam Kumar Bhageria
Partner Chairman and Managing Director Executive Director
[Membership No: 047840] DIN: 08452844 DIN: 10589928

o P LA

Anand Pasupuleti Satyanarayan Mohanty
Chief Executive Officer CHief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership Na: 22035

Date: May 1%, 2025
Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 19, 2025
Place: Bengaluru




Arjas 5teel Private Limited
Standalone Statemant of Cash Flows for the year endad March 31, 2025

all ts are rupees in fakh, unless otherwise stated)
Motes Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax 2,221.37 4,630.90
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expense 3¢ 10.186.02 062,12
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 25 {1.26} (16.01)
Property, plant and equipment written off 31 557.27 1,290,12
Income from government grant 25 - (44.24)
Change in fair value of financial instruments at FVTPL 25 6,19 -
Accarualfreversal} of provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory 14 - (377.36)
Loss allowance/(reversal) on trade receivable 3 105,10 (57.38)
Provision towards doubtful assets and advances 22285 493
Share based payment to employees 28 57730 214.62
Finance costs 29 7.717.83 707363
Liabilities no longer required written back 25 (11.79) {1, 114.44}
Interast income on boans given and bank deposits (2,031.02) {1.881.00
Interest income from other deposits 25 (57.66) -
Guarantee commissicn income 25 (249.94) (250.24)
Unrealised foreign currency (gain)/loss (67.25) 573.16
Operating profit bafore working capital changes 19,175.02 19,208.81
Adjustments for (incr )/ decrease in operating assets:
Trade receivables 1,600.14 4,310.50
Inventories 28,909.05 (20,121.77)
Other financial assets 180.66 31221
Other current assets 90.37 922.8%
Other non-current assets (340.56) (252.60)
Adjustments for increase/ {dacrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade paysbles {14,153.91) 952764
Provisions (462.77) 205.64
Other financial liabilities (322.88) (366.14)
Other non ¢urrent liabilities 258.34 1.114.84
Other corrent liabilities 1,394.89 {1,206.93)
Cash generated from operations 35,808.35 12,644.61
Direct taxes {paid)/refunded [net] 11327 {299.22)
Net cash flow from operating activities (&) 35,921.62 13.345.39
Cash flow from investing activities
Payments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets (21,892.54) {13,555.18)
(inctuding capital work-in-progress and capital advances)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 247 44.46
Deposits with banks placed {4,221.00) (69.97)
Deposits with banks matured and received 44017 =
Trvestment in equity shares of Arnplus Arjas Solar Private Limited 7 (734.72) -
Loan given 1o subsidiary 38 {3.607.59) (1.500.00
Interast recelved 2.527.00 §52.83
MNet cash used in investing activities {B} (27,486.27) (14,127.86)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from sale of treasury shares 1% 2,402 64 -
Proceeds from long term bomowings [refer {a) below) 37.366.24 705253
Repayments of long term borrowings [refer [a} below] (40,116.82) {14,620.82)
Proceeds from short term borrowings [net) [refer (a) below] 34.55 640000
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities [refer (b) below] (235.39) {181.35)
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities [refer (b) below] (64.26) (52.08}
Interest paid {7.567.26) (6,982 75}
Net cash flow in financing activities (C) {8.209.30) {8.5B4.51)
Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C} 22505 (9,366.98}
Cash and cash equivatents at the beginning of the year (131.42) 9,235.56
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 94,63 {131.42)
Recondiliation of closing balance of cash and cash equivalents to cash and cash equivalents as par stat t of cash flows
Cash and cash equivalents 15 1,147.54 2.73936
Loans repayable on demand from banks [overdraft facilities) 19 {1,05291) (2,870.78}
Cash and cash equival as per Standal Stat t of Cash Flows 94.63 {121.42)




Arjas Steel Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year endad March 31, 2025 [Contd.)

{all its are rupess in lakh, unless otherwise stated)
Net debt reconciliation As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current borrowings 39,638.34 44,686.56
Current maturities of non current borrowings 614353 3678.01
Current borrowings 25,068.38 26,770.78
Lease liabilities 567.33 586.25
Net debt 71.417.58 75.921.60
{a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

Particulars

Hon-current borrowings

Current borrowings

Balance as at April 1, 2023

Cash inflows frorm short terrn borrowings [net]

Cash inflows from overdraft facilities {net]

Cash jnflows from tong term borrowings

Cash outflows of long term borrowings

MNon cash changes
- Foreign exchange adjustments
- Unwinding of interest expense on financial liablities measured at
amortised cost (Effective interest rate method)

Balance as at March 31, 2024

Cash inflows from short term borrowings [net]

Cash outflows from overdraft facilities [net)

Cash inflows from long temn borrowings

Cash outflows of long term borrowings

Non cash changes
- Interest accrued
- Unwinding of interest expense on finandal liabilities measured at
amortised cost {Effective interest rate method)

Balance as at March 31, 2025

55.799.12 17.500.00

= 6,400.00

= 2,870.78
705253 e
{14.620.82} -
497,51 -
36.23 =

48,564.57 26,770.78

= 34.55

- (1.842.77}
37.366.24 =
(40.116.82) =

96.07 105.82
{128.19) -

45,781.87 25,068.38

The current borrowings as at March 31, 2025 indudes overdraft facilities disclosed as cash and cash equivalents in the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows, but disclosed as
borrowings in the balance sheet as required under Guidance Mote On Division I - Ind AS Schedule I to the Comparnies Act, 2013,

{b) Lease liabilities March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance E56.25 565.28
Mon cash changes
Additions during the year 21647 202.36
Interest on lease liabilities 6426 52.08
Cash outflow
Payment of prindpal portion of lease liabilities 23539 151.39
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities 64.26 52.08
Closing balancae [refer note 58] 567.33 586.25

The above Standalone Statemment of Cash Flows has been prepared under indirect method in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 7 on *Statement of

Cash Flows",
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Deloitte Haskins B Salls
Chartered Accountants

(Firrn Registration Number: 00807251

Tl v

CIN: U27102AP1983PTCO15489

W-A.WL

Monisha Parikh Bahirji Ajai Ghorpade
Partner Chairrnan and Managing Director
[Membership Mo: 047840] DIN: 084525844
’ }‘ "~
ﬂ
Date: May 19, 2025 Anand Pasupuleti Sha
Place: Bengaluru Chief Executive Officer Ch

Date: May 19, 2025
Flace: Bengalury

for and on behalf of Board of Diractors of Agas Stee! Private Limited

ol

p

Uttam Kumar Bhageria
Estecutive Director
DIN: 10559928

Satyanarayan Mohanty
Company Secretary
Membership No: 22035
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Arjas Stael Private Limited
Notes to Standal Financial $tat ts for the year ended March 31, 2025

tall amounts are rupeas in lakh, unless otherwise stated)
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Company information

Arjas Steel Private Limited was incorporated on March 16, 1993. The Company operates a special steed plant situated at Tadipatri, Andhra Pradesh, which
manufacturas special steel products and has an instatled capacity of 3,00,000 tons of special steel per year, focused on automotive, defence, raflways and
related industries. The Company is a private limited Company domicdiled in India. The address of its principal place of business and registered office is
Tadipatri Mandal, Anantapur village, Jambulapadu, Andhra Pradesh - 515 411,

Basis of accounting and preparation of standalone financial statements

Statement of compliance

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS®) notified under
the Cornpanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {referred to as “Act™ and other
relevant provisions of the Act.

Basis of preparation and p tion

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following assets and liabilities which have been
measured at falr vafue:

Certain financial assets and finandial liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial instruments);

Defined benefits and other long-term employee benefits;

Derivative instruments measured at fair value through of profit or boss (FVTPL).

The standalone finandal staternents have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied consistently in the
standalone financial statements.

Transactions and balances with values below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company have been reflected as “Nil™ in the relevant notes to these
standalore financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

The standalone financial staternents are presented in Indian Rupees [INR] urless otherwise stated, the national curency of Indfa, which is the functional
currency of the Company. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs with two dedmals thereof.

Classification of assets and liabilities as current and non-current

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satishes any of the following criteria:

It is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consurption in, the Company's normal operating cyde,

It is held prirmarily for the purpose of being traded,

It is expected to be realised within 12 mcnths after the reporting date, or

It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as cument when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

It is expected to be setded in the Company's nonmal operating cycle,

H iz held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

[t is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date, or

The Comparyy does not have an unconditional right to defer settlemnent of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date, Terms of a liability
that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its dassification.

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are dassified as non-current only.

Operating cyde
Based on the nature of activities of the Company and nomal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the
Company has determined its operating cyde as twelve moniths for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Significant areas of astimation uncertalnty, critical Judgement, and assumptions in applying sccounting policies

While preparing standalone financial staternents in conformity with Ind AS, the Company makes certain estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) at the date of the standalone financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses for the reporting pericd. Financial reporting results rely on the estimate of the effect of certain matters that are inherently
uncertain. Future events rarely develop exactly as forecast and the best estimates require adjustments, as actual results may differ from these estimates
under different assumptions or conditions. Estimates and judgments are contirually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectation of future events that are befieved to be reascnable under the drcurnstances. The management believes that the estimates used in
preparation of these standatone finandal statements are prudent and reasonable. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developrnents,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the contrel of the Company.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. Information about
critical judgement in applying accounting polidies as well as estimates and assumptions that have significant effect to the carrying arnount of assets and
liabilities are included in the accounting policies:

Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies; key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources [refer
nate 3.9];

Valuation of inventories and inventory obsolescence [refer note 3.5)

Deprecistion and amortisation method and useful life of iterns of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets [refer note 3.1 and 3.3)
Impairment of investment in subsidiary;

Recognition of deferred tax assets [refer note 3.12].

Recent accounting pronouncement

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"} notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS — 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind AS 116
— Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.ef. April 1, 2024, The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements
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3 Materisl accounting policies
3 Property, plant and equipmant

Property, plant and equipment [PPE] are stated at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The initial cost of an
asset comprises its purchase price or construction cost, any costs directly attributable 1o bringing the asset into the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management, the initial estimate of any decommissioning obligation, if any, and, for assets that
necessarily take 3 substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, finance costs. The purchase price or construction cost is the aggregate
amount paid and the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset Incomes and expenses related to the incidental operations not
necessary to bring the item to the location and the condition necassary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management are
recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with expenditure will flow to the Company.

Interest cost incurred for constructed assets is capitalised up to the date the asset s ready for its intended use, based on borrowings incurred specifically
for financing the asset or the weighted average rate of all other borrowings, if no specific borrowings have been incurred for the asset.
When significant parts of plant and equipment are required 1o be replaced at intervals, the Company deprediates them separately based on their specific

useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is perfarmed, its cost is recognised in the carmying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if
the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred,

An itemn of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference betwsen the net realisable value
and the carrying amount of the asset) is induded in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation is calculated on cost of item of property, plant & equipment less their estimated residual values using straight line methed over estimated
useful life {as determined below) and recognised in the Standalone Staternent of Profit and Loss.
Assets

Useful life of assets
Buildings — other than factory buildings 60 years
Factory buildings 30 years
Other buildings {including roads and temporary strugtures) 3-10 years
Plant and machinery finduding railway sidings and electrical installations} B-40 years
Computers 3-6 years
Furniture 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Vehicles 8 years

Depreciation method, useful life and residual values are reviewed at each finandial year end and adjusted if appropriate.
Deprediation on additions {disposals) is provided on pro-rata basis i.e, from (up to) the date on which asset is ready to use (disposed of}.

In line with the provisions of Schedule I of the Companies Act 2013, the Company deprediates significant components of the main asset (which have
ditferent useful lives as compared to the main asset) based on the individual useful Kfe of those companents. Freehold land is not depreciated,
Capital work-in-progress includes direct cost of property. plant and equipment under installation / under development as at the balance sheet date,
related incidental expenses and atiributable interest

3.2 Leases

The Company’s leased asset dass cansists of leases for office spaces, depots, laptops and vehicles leased for employees. The Comparty assesses whether a
contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or containg, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether

a) the contract involves the use of an identified asset

b the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and

¢) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.
At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU™ and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term keases) and leases of low values. For these short-
term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease,

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the Jease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and Jease liabilities includes
these options when it is certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use 25sets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initist amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs and estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accurnulated
deprediation and impairment losses,

Right of use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. The estimated useful life of the right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right
of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circurnstances indicate that their camying amounts may not be recoverable.
For the purpose of impaimaent testing, the recoverable amount {i.e., the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an
individual asset basis unfess the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable
amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

ACCOUNTANTS =7
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Leases [Contd.]

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases.
Subsequent 1o initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company ¢hanges its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination
option.

It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company's estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

On the Standalone Balance Sheet, right-of-use assets has been discfosed as a separate item and lease liabilities have been included in financial liabilities.
The Company has usad a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Intangible assets

intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price induding
irrecoverable duties and taxes and any costs directly attributable to making the assst ready for their intended use. Following initial recegnition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accurmulated amortisation and accumulated impaimment losses. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is
probablz that the future economic benefits associated with expenditure will flow to the Company.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on siraight line basis over their useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at each year end, The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives and impairment loss is recognised in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Estirnated lives for cument and comparative periods in relation to application of straight-line method of amortisation of intangible assets (acquired) are as
follows:

Assats Useful life of asset

Software 5 years

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-
recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the camying amount of the asset, and are
recognized in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss when the assetis derecognised.

Irmpairment of non-financial assets

Carmying amount of tangible and intangible assets are tested for impairment whenevar events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carmying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's canrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. The impairment loss is recognised in the Standalone
Staternent of Profit and Loss. When there is an indication that an impairment logs recognized for an asset {other than revalued asset} in eadier accounting
pariods no longer exists or may have decreased, the camying value of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the
increased carrying value does nat exceed the camying value that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years.

in assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to thelr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
considered. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are
independent of the cash inflows from other assets (cash-generating units). Non- finandal assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Tnventories

Raw materials, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. However, materials and other items hetd for use in the produciion of
inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost Cost of
raw matarials, and stores and spares are determined on a weighted average basis.

Work-in-progress, semi-finished goods and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost indludes direct materials, labour,
freight inwards, other direct cost, a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity, net of refundable duties, levies and taxes
wherever applicable. Costs of invenitories also include all other costs incurred in bringing the irventaries to their present location and condition, Costs are
assigned to individual iterms of inventory based on weighted average. Net realisable value of work in progress Is determined with reference to selling
prices of related firished goods.

Net realisable value is the estimated sefling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Provisions are made towards slow-moving and obsolete items based on histerical experience of utilisation on a product category basis, which includes
the consideration of product lines and market conditions.

Statement of cash flows and cash and cash equivalents

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profits/fless) before tax is adjusted for effects of transactions of a non-cash/non-
operating nature. The cash flows from operating, investing and finanding activities of the Company are segregated.

For the purpose of presentaticn in the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with
financial institutions, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily corwertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities in the Standalone Balance Sheet.
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37 Financial Instrumants
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Cornpany becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and fnancial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and finandial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

a t of busi Al

The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how financial assets are managed together to achisve a particlar business objective,
the Company's business model does not depend on management's intentions for an individual instrument; therefore, the business model ent is
performed at a higher level of aggregation rather than on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
The Company considers all relevant information available when making the business model assessmant. the Company takes into account all relevant
evidence available such as:

a} how the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reported to the Company's key
management personnel;

b) the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets hetd within that business model) and in particular, the way in which
those risks are managed; and

<) how managers of the business are compensated (e.g., whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual
cash flows collected}.

Solely payments of principal and interest ['SPPT] test

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Company determings whether newly recognised financial assets are part of an existing business model or
whether they reflect a new business model. the Company reassesses its business models each reporting period to determine whether the business
models have changed since the preceding period.

For an asset 1o be dassified and measured at amortised cost, its contractual terms should give rise ta cash flows that meets the SPPI tast on the principal
outstanding. For the purpose of SPP test, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition. That principal amount may change over the
life of the financial asset. Tnterest consists of consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk assodated with the prircipal amount
outstanding during a particular period of fime and for other basic lending risks and cotts, as well 23 a profit margin. The SPPI assessment is made in the
currency in which the financial asset is denominated. In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the cortractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financlal asset contains a contractual term that could
change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet the definition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

a) Contingent avents that would change the amount of timing of cash flows;

b} Terms that rmay adjust the contractual coupon rate, induding variable interest rate features;

c} Prepayments and extension feature and;

d) Terms that limit the Compary’s claim to cash flows from spedfied assets (e.g., non-fecourse features).
Fil {al ts: Sub t t and gains and losses

|

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in Standalone Staternent of Profit and Logs. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recagnised in Standslone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investmaents at FYOCT

All equity instruments are measured at fair value, Equity instruments held for trading is classified as FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value in OCL The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrumnent basis.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as FVTOCT, then sll fair value changes oa the instrument, exduding dividend are recognised in
L. There is no recyding of the amount from O to Standalone Statement of Profit and Lass, even on sale of the instrument. However the Company
ray transfer cumulative gain or loss within the equity.

Financlal assets at fair value through profit or less (FVTPL)

Any finandial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as PVOLT, is dassified as at FVTPL. This includes all
derivative finandial assets. On initial recognition, the Compary may imevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be
measured at amortized cost or at FVOCT a3 st FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting/ mismatch that otherwise would arise.

Financial assets: Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a finandal asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.. removed from
the Company’s Standalone Balance Sheet) when:

a) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b} the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
rnaterial delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either:
i) the Company has transferred substantially afl the risks and rewards of the asset, or
iy the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Comparny applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on financial
assets,
ECL is the difference between alt contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate, Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting
from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial asset. 12-maonth ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which result from default events
that are possible within 12 months from the reporting date. ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased, and probability weighted amounits
determined by a range of outcomes, taking into account the time value of money and other reasonable information available as a result of past events,
curcent conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to measure lifetime ECL on
its portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is prepared based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivables
and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At each reporting date, the historically observed default rates and changes in the forward-lacking
5 dit loss is used
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3.7 Financial Instruments [Contd.]
Financial assets that are debt instruments are measured at amortized cost, e.g, loans, deposits and bank balances, The gross carrying amount of financial
assets are written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering the entire financial asset or a portion therecf. The finandal assets
written off are still subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due,

Trade receivables

The Cornpany follows a ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables which de not contain a significant
financing component. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at ach reporting date, right fror its initial recognition.

Financial liabllities

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is dassified at FVTPL if it is
classlfied as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on inifial recognition. Financial liabilities at FYTPL are measured at fair value
and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss,

The Company's financial liabilities indude trade and cther payables, loans and borrowings, incfuding bank overdrafts and derivative financial instrumenits.

Derivative instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109,
Derivatives are initially measured at fair value, Subsequent to the initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value and changes thersin are
recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities
when fair value is negative,

Other financial fiabilities are subsequenty measured at arnortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognized in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Loans and borrowlings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate [EIR]
method. Gains and losses are recognized in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized. Amortized costis calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as
finance costs in the Standalone Staternent of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to interest bearing loans and borrowings.

Financlal guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment ta be made to reimburse the hotder for a boss it incurs
because the spedified debtor fails to rmake a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are
recognised intially a5 a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently,
the liabitity is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirerments of Ind-AS 109 and the amcunt
recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Financial liabilities: Derecognition

The Company de-recognises a finandial liabdity when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expired. When an existing finandial liability
is replaced by another from the sarne lender on substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liahility and recognition of a new liability, The difference between the carrying value of the financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in
Standalone Staternent of Profit and Loss.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instrumenits, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measuremant is
tased on the presumption that the transaction tz sell the asset or transfer the Niability takes place either

a) In the prindipal market for the asset or liability, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageaus market for the asset or hiability.

The principal or the most advantageous market rust be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that markst participants would use when pricing the arset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone finandal staterments are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest leve] input that is sigrificant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

i) Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitles.
(i) Lewvel 2 - Vialuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly ocbservable.
{iiii) Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the standalone financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occured between levals in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorication (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the falr value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined dasses of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks
of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
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Financial Instruments [Contd.]
Forelgn exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denorninated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting pericd, the foreign
exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments.

The fair value of finandal liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of
the reporting period.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial pericd to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an enitity incurs in connection with the borrewing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. Interest income eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

The Company shall cease capitalising borrowing costs when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are complete. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Standalone Staternent of Profit and Loss during extended periods
when active development activity on the qualifying asset is interrupted,

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets

Prowisions in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. are recognised when the Company has a present
legal ar constructive cbligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Pravisions are not recognised for future operating losses, Provisions are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outfiow of resources would be required to settle
the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Where there are several similar obligations, the likelihood that an outllow will be required in settlernent is determined by considering the dass of
obligations as a whole, A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same dass of
obligations may be small,

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period if the effect of time value of money is material. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted to
reflect its present value using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks spedific to the
obligation. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions for restructuring are recognised by the Company when it has developed a detailed formal plan for restructuring and has raised a valid
expectation in those affected that the Comparry will camry out the restructuring by starting to implermenit the plan or announicing its main features to those
affected by it. The measurement of provision for restructuring indudes only direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are both necessarily
entailed by the restructuring and not assodated with the ongcing adtivities of the Compary.

Contingent liabilities are disdosed in the case of.

a) a present obligation arising from the past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;

b} a present obligation arising frorm the past events when no reliable estimate is possible;

<) a possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the accurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events beyond the control of the Company.

The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but disdoses its existence in the standalone finandal staterments.
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the standalone financial statements, However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if

it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arisg, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change accurs,
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Employee benefits
{® Short-term obligations
Short term employee benefits are recognised as an expense at an undiscounted amount in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in

which the related services are rendered. A liability is recagnized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has 3 present, legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and obligation can be estimated reliably,

{iiy Post-employment obligations
The Company cperates the following post-employment schemes:

a) defined benedit plans such as gratuity; and
b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity obligations

The fiability or asset recognised in the Standalone Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is caloutated annually by a qualified
independent actuary using the projected unit ¢redit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation dencminated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. When the
calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of
any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contribution to the plan.

The net interest cost is calaulated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This
cost is included in employes benefit expense in the Standalone Staternent of Profit and Loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised at amount net of taxes in the
period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive incame. They are incdluded in retained eamings in the Standalone Statement of Changes in
Equity and in the Standalone Balance Sheet
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3.10

3.1

Employee benefits [Contd.]

When benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or foss on
curtailment is recognized immediately in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. the Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a
defined benefit plan when the setthement aceurs.

Defined contribution plans

The Company makes specified monthly contribution towards provident and pension fund to publicly administered provident fund as per local regulations.
The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid, The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution
plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which service is
provided by employee. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available,

{iii} Other long-term employee benefit obligations [comy tad ab es]

The liabilities for leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to
the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting
period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation, Re-measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assurmptons are recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the Standalone Balance Sheet of the Company as company does not have an unconditionzl right to
defer its setlement for at least 12 months after reporting date,

{iv} Share based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date. Details regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in note 45,

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settied share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the Company’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting year, the
Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
the equity settled share based payment reserve,

For share based payment award with non-vesting condition, the grant date fair value of the share based payment is measured to reflect such conditions
and there is no true up for actual and expected outcomes.

The Company has created an Employee Benefit Trust [trust] for providing share-based payment to its employees. The Company uses the trust as a vehicle
for distributing shares to employees under the employee remuneration schemes. The trust buys shares of the Company for giving shares to employees.
The Company treats trust as its extension and shared held by the trust are treated as treasury shares.

Own equity Instrurnents that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments. Any difference between
the carrying amount and the consideration, if relssued, is recognised in securities premium,

Raevenue recognition

Sale of goods or services

The Company recognizes revenue when control over the promised goods of services is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects ta be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue from sale of goods is measured at falr value
of the consideration recelved or receivable (after including fair value allocations related to multiple deliverables and/or linked arrangements) net of
returns, Goods and Services tax, applicable discounts, refunds, rebates, allowances and charge backs ar other similar items in a contract when they are
highly probable to be provided.

The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue amangerments as it typically controls the goods or services before transferring
tham to the customer.

The Company recognises revenue generally at the point in time when the products are delivered to customer or when it is delivered to a carrier for export
sales, which the Company has determined is when physical possession, legal title and risks and rewards of ownership of the products transfer to the
customer and the Company is entitled to payment The timing of the transfer of risks and rewards varies depending on individual terms of the sales
agreements.

In revenue arrangements with multiple perforrmance obligations, the Company accounts for individual products and services separately if they are distinct
—i.e, if a product or sendce is separately identifiable from other items in the arrangement and if a customer can benefit from it The consideration is
allocated between separate products and senvices in the arrangement based on their standalane selling prices, Revenue from sale of by products are
induded in revenue,

Contract balances
(i} Contract assets

A contract asset Is the right to consideration in exchange for goads or services transferred to the customer. If the Campany performs by transferring
goods or sendtes to a customer befare the customer pays considecation or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration.

(i} Contract liabilities

A contract fability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received coasideration {or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays considerstion before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Interest Income

Interest income from debt instruments and bank deposits is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the finandial asset to the gross camrying amount of a financial asset. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the finandal instrurent
{for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options} but does not consider the expected credit losses.

In calculating interest income, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to
the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation
of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Dividend incoma

Dividends are recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably,
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pssets associated.

Incoma tax

Income tax consists of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it
relates to items recognized in other comprehensive incorne or directly in equity. In this case, the tax s also recognized in other comprehensive incorne or
directly in equity. respectively.

Currant tax

Tax on income for the cument period is determined on the basis on estimated taxable income and tax credits computed in accordance with the provisions
of the relevant tax lsws and based on the expected cutcoms of assessments / appeals.

Current tax is recognised in Standalone Staternent of Profit and Loss, except when they relate 1o items that are recognised in other comprehensive
incorme or directly in equity, in which case, the current tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. Where
current tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate,

The current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amount and it is intended to realise the
asset and liability on a net basis.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carmying amounts for financial reporting purpases at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unugsed tax losses. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent there is convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax bosses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates [and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The temporary differances in relation to right of use assets and lease liability for specific Jeases are regarded as a net package for the purpose of
recognising deferred tax.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset it

(i) alegally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets agalnst current moome tax liabitities and;

{ii) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes Jevied by the same taxation authority,

Earmings per share

The Cornpany reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 33 - “Earnings Per Share”. Basi¢ samings per
share is caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss after tax for the year atributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings prer share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted
during the year. Diluted earnings per sharg is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year adjusted
with interest/dividend on convertible instruments by weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic eamings per share and
weighted average rumber of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlernent of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denorninated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment te borrowing costs, if any, are presented in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, within
finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other gains /
flosses}.

Foreign exchange differences on long term foreign currency monetary items, such as borrowings, solely relating to acquisition of depreciable assets are
adjusted ta the cammying cost of the assats. In all other cases, the Company recognises such differences in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss,
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated into the foreign currency at the exchange rate of the
reporting date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign cumrency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions.

Government grants and incentives

Govemment grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attached to thern and that
the grants will be received.

Govemment grants are recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the years in which the Company recogmises
as expanses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate or when performance obligations are met. When the grant relates to an
asset, it is recognised as an income on a systernatic basis over the expected useful life of the related asset.

In case of grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred are recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss as other income on 3
systematic basis in the periods in which the expenses are recognised, unless the conditions for receving grant are met after the related expenses have
been recognised. In this case grant is recognised when it bacomes receivable,

Onerous contracts
A provision for onerous contract is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable

cost of meeting its obligation under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the
contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognises any irmpairment loss on
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Notes to Standalone Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 [Contd.]

{all amounts are rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)

7 Investments As at
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024

[0 d at fair value through other

Invastrments In aquity instr

¥

comprahensive income]
Unquoted investments
Shares of Andbra Pradesh Gas Power Corporation Limited [APGPCL] 12,59,600 equity shares [March 31, 84947 84047
2024: 12,59,600 equity shares] of face value INR 10/- each fully paid up]
Less: Impairment loss [refer note below) (B49.47)
Shares of Amplus Arjas Solar Private Lirnited 70,08,227 equity shares [March 31, 2024: Ni] of face value 734.76 -

INR 10/- each fully paid up
Invastments in equity instruments of subsidiary [measured at cost]
Unquoted investments

93.99% ownership in Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited 1,49,99,999 equity shares [March 31, 2024: 1,500.00 1,500.00
1.49,95,999 equity shares] of face value INR 10/- each fully paid up)
Total ) 2,234.78 2,349.47
Mote: The Company has re-assessed the recoverability during the vear and has fully impaired the investments made in APGPCL,
8§ Trade receivables As at
[carrled at amortised cost unless otherwise stated] March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade receivables - Unsecured, considered good 27,050.10 28,679.98
Trade receivables - Credit impaired = 1259
27,050,10 28,692.57
Allawance for expected credit loss {156.07) (57.94)
Total 26,894.02 28,634.63

Trade receivables have been pledged as security against bank borrowings, the terrns relating to which have been desoribed in note 19,

The Company does not have any debts due by directors, other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person or debts due by
firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or 2 director or a member except for loans given to subsidiary. frefer note & and note 38)

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at beginning of the year (37.94) {137.56)
Loss (allowance)freversal on trade recelvable 0590 57.28
Utilisation of allowance 6.97 22,24
Balance at end of the year (156.07) (57.94)

The Company's exposure ta credit risk, currency risk and loss allowance related to trade receivable are disdosed in note 35
There are no disputed trade receivables as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

Ageing as at March 31, 2025
Cutstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not due Less than 6 6 months to 1 12 23 More than 3 yea Total
months year “éyears -3 years g years
Undisputed trade recelvables
- considered good 11,404.32 15,334.85 2121 61.1¢ 3391 381 27,050.10
— eredit impaired - - - - - - =
Total 11.404.32 15,334.85 212.11 61.10 33.91 X 27,050.10
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses {156.07)
Total 26,894.03
Ageing as at March 31, 2024
O ding for the followi iods from due date of payment
Particulars Not due Lq:.sotl:\ta; 6 3 m;;:: to1 12 years 2-3years More than 3 years Total
Undisputed trade receivables
- considered good 14.874.03 13,669.40 7351 5991 313 - 28,672.98
— credit impaired - 5.94 140 3.57 0.68 - 12.5%
Total 14,874.03 13,676.24 7491 63.48 3.81 - 28,692.57
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (57.94)
Total 28,634.63
9 Loans As at
[carried at amortised cost unless otherwise stated] March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Loans to subsidiary company - Unsecured, considered good 24,072.33 18,779.16
[refer note 35 and note 38)
Total 24,072.33 18,779.16
Loan to subsidiary company includes interest accrued amounting to INR 1,685.5% lakh
Loans granted to subsidiary which are repayabls on d d as ara bal March 31, 2025 _ March 31, 2024
Aggregate of lcans outstanding at the end of the year which are repayable on demand 18,955.58 15,345.00
Total principal outstanding at the end of the year 24.072.33 18.779.16

Percentage of loans on total loans 78.7% 81.7%
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(all amounits are rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)

10 Other financial assets

[cammried at amortised cost unless otherwise stated)

Non current Current
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024  March 21, 2025 March 31, 2024

Unsecured, considered good
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity [refer (i) below]
Recoverable from related parties [refer note 38]
Interast accrued
Advances to employees
Security deposits [refer nate (i) below]
Guarantes commission
Total

4,723.57 1,012.06 7938 -
- - - 12492
- s = 2,161.23

- - 10.96 -
136.13 13160 128.00 17717
58.00 13956 64677 338.13
4,917.70 1,283.22 B65.11 2.800.65

{iy Bank deposits including interest accrued have been pledged as security against bank borrowings, the terms redating to which have been described in note 19 amounting
o INR 4,375.21 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 609.36 Jakh] and deposits amounting to [MR 427,64 lakh [March 31, 2024: TNR. 402,70 lakh] are in fien against bank guarantees.
{ii) Security deposits are primarily in relation to rental agreements and eamest money deposits.

The Company's exposure to credit risk and currency risk and loss allowance related to other financial assets are disclosed in note 35,

11

Deferred tax assets (net) As at
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Deductible temporary differences
Unabsorbed depreciation / business loss as per income tax [refer (i) below] §,823.59 12,152.59
Provisions and others 728.67 759.37
ECL on trade receivables and other financial assets 73.92 82980
Other finandial liabilites [refer note (i)l 32411 3N347
Deferred government grant = 13994
Fair value changes on equity instruments through other comprehensive income 296.84 -
10,253.13 14,194.37
Taxable tamporary diffarences
Praperty. plant and equipment 9,928.65 13,876.55
[difference between camying value as per books of account and written down value as per income tax)
Borrowings 7312 28.30
Right of use assets 206.45 22084
Impairment reversal of property plant and equipment and CWIP - 203
Other financial assets 4877 79.48
Remeasurement of employee benefit expenses [items of OCT (3.86) (1287
10,253.13 14,194.37

Net deferved tax assets/ (labilitles)

(i) This s restricted to the extent of deferred tax liabilities because of lack of convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such
unabsorbed depreciation or unused tax losses can be utilised by the Company.
{ii) Other financial liabilities includes deferred tax asset computed on lease liability, derivative liabillty and other accruals

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:
Stgnificant components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities} recognised in the standalone financial staterents are as follows:

Recognised/
As at reversed through Asat
Deferred tax balance in refation to March 31, 2024 statement of March 31, 2025
profit and loss or
o
Property, plant and equipment {13,876.59) 394794 {9,928 65)
Borrowings (26.30) (44.82) {73.13)
Right of use assets (220.84) 14.3% (206.45)
Other financial assets {79.48) 30.71 (48.77)
Remeasurernent of employee banefit expenses [items of OCT] 1287 801 356
Carried forward business loss/unabsorbed depredation 12,15259 {3.323.00) 8,829.59
Impairment reversal of property plant and equipment and CWIP (2.03) 203 -
Provisions 759.37 {20.70) 728.67
ECL on trade receivables and other financial assets 22380 (755.88) 73.92
Other financial liabilities [refer note {i)) above) 31347 10.64 324.11
Deferred government grant 139,14 (139.14) -
Fair value changes on equity instruments through other comprehensive income (items of OCI) - 296,84 29684

Total




Arjas Steel Private Limited

Motes to Standalong Fl 1al & its for the year ended March 31, 2025 [Contd.)
(all its are rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)
11 Daferred tax assets (net) [Contd.]
Recognised/
. As at reversed through As ot
Deferred tax balance in relation to March 31, 2023 . ':tfantear::u;:;f“ March 31, 2024
oa
Property, plant and equipment (14,449.54) 572495 {13.876.59)
Borrowings (40.56) 12.66 (28.30)
Right of use assets {22237 153 (220.84)
Othar financial assets (200.00) 120.52 {79.48)
Rermeasurement of employee benefit expenses [items of OCT) 7333 (60.46) 12.87
Carried forward business loss/unabsorbed depreciation 1281759 (065.00) 12,152.59
Impairment/{impairment reversal} of property plant and equipment and CWIP (2.24) .21 2.03)
Provisions 674.64 8473 75937
ECL on trade receivables and other financial assets 856.54 (26.74) §29.80
Other financial liabilities [refer note {ii} abowe] 33641 (24.94) 31347
Deferred government grant 154.60 {15.46) 139.14
Total - - -
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised as follows:
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unabsorbed depraciation 91,253.55 82,100.24
[this will nat expire under Indian tax laws]
91,253.55 83,100,24
Tncome tax in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss and other comprehensive incoma is nil. Recondiliation of effective tax rate is as below
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Profit before tax 222137 4,630.90
Enacted tax rate in India 34.94% 34.94%
Expected income tax expense at statutory tax rate 776.24 1,618.22
Deductible expenses and unabsorbed deprediation where deferred tax asset is not recognised {1.149.65) (2,916.90)
Other non-deductible expenses 37342 747.07
Other temporary differences = 551.61
Tax expense for the year - -
12 Income tax assets {net) As at
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Tax deducted at source receivable 587.96 70123
587.96 701.23
13 Other current and non current assets Non current O
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unsecured, considerad good -
Capital advances 72603 1,127.74 - =
Advances other than capital advances
Paymant made to statutory authorities under protest 2,059.21 1,797.14 - -
Electricity deposit 903.44 215.78 50.70 420
Water and other deposits - - 129.73 150,74
Advances t¢ parties other than related parties
Adhvances to suppliars - = 1,198.52 1,005.31
Advances 1o employeas - - 11.94 16.74
Balances with government authorities - - 344.67 497.02
Prepaid expenses 1533 24,50 498,79 564.26
Government grant [refer note 47) 398.19 612.03 - -
4,102.20 4,377.19 2.234.35 2.276.08
Unsecured, considerad doubtful -
Government grant and security deposit 213.34 2,270.18 - -
Less: Provision for doubtiul assets (212.84) (2,270.18) -
Advance to vendors - 5547 46,54
Less: Provision for doubtful advances - - (5547} {46.54)
4,102.20 4,377.19

Current assets have been pledged as security against bank borrowings, the terms relating to which Have been described in note 19,
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14 Inventories As at
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Raw materials (including goods-in-transit amounting to INR 48,47 lakh [March 31, 2024 INR 124.69 lakh]} 16,581.72 19,720.15
Work-in-progress 1,547.20 1,269.9%
Finished goods [including goads-in-transit amounting to INR 3,259.35 fakh [March 31, 2024: INR 3,733.47 lakh]} 21,84043 19,709.34
Semi finished goods 9,509.83 3659821
Stores and spares 5,141.89 6.632.43
Total inventories [valued at lower of cost and net realisable value] 55,021.07 83,930.12

Inventories have been pledged as security against bank borrowings, the teems relating to which have been described in note 19,

Walue of inventories above is stated after provisions INR 1,269.29 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 1,077.66 lakh] for slow moving and obsolete items. The movernent of provision
are incduded in cost of materials consumed and changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and semi finished guods respectively. There are no written down
value of the inventories to net realisable value.

15 Cash and cash equivalents As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash on hand 051 1.07
Balances with banks
Oin qurrert accounts 1,146.73 272829
1,147.54 2,739.36
There are no restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of reporting period.
16 Bank balances ather than cash and cash equivalents As at
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Balances with banks
Bank deposits with original maturity more than 3 months and less than 12 months from the reporting date = 3039
- 30.39
Deposits amounting to INR Nil (March 31, 2024: INR 30.39 [akh] are in lien against bank guarantees.
Refer note 10 for details of bank deposits with ariginal maturity greater than 12 months.
17 Equity share capital As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Authorised share capital :
2,90,00,00,000 [March 31, 2024: 2,90,00,00,000] equity shares of INR 10/- each 2,90,000.00 2,90,000.00
2,90,000.00¢ 2,90,000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up capital comprises :
2,40,20,79,056 [March 31, 2024: 2,40,20,79,056] equity shares of INR 10/-each, fully paid 240,207.91 2.40,207.91
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 2.40.207.91 2.40.207.91
{a) Reconclliation of shares outstanding as at¢ the beginning of the year and as at the end of the year:
As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Equity shares Mo. of shares @ No. of shares A

Balance at beginning of tha year
Add: 1ssued during the year -
Balance at and of the year 2,40,20,7%,056 2,40,207.91 2.40,20,79,056 2.40,207.91
{b) Rights, preference and restrictions attached to shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of capitak
Equity shares: The Company has only one dlass of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
The dividends, when declared, are paid in Indian Rupees, The distribution of dividend (if any) is in the proportion to the nurnber of equity shares held by the

shareholders.
In the gvent of liquidation, the liquidator may, with the sanction of a spedal resolution of the Company and any other sanction required by the Act, divide amongst the

rnembers, the whale or any part of the assets of the Company, whether they shall consist of propecty of the sarne kind or not
Datails of share holders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

2.40,20,79,056 24020791 2.40,20,79,056 240,207.9

{c

L]

As at
N of the sharehold March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Mo. of sharas % of holding Mo. of shares % of halding
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid
The Sandur Manganese & Iron Ores Limited [from Novemnber 11, 2024] 2,37,65,19.836 98.94% - -
Btue Coral Investrment Holdings Pte Ltd Y CIA SRC, Spain [up to November 10, 2024] - - 2,34,79,27,245 97.75%

{d) No shares have been allotted without payment being received in cash or by way of bonus shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance
sheet date, Further there are no shares reserved for issue under contracts or commitments for the sale of shares or disinvestment.

() Details of equity sh hald by P 1 As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Promoter Namea No of shares % of total shares % change during No of shares % of total shares % change during
the year the year
The Sandur Manganese & Iron Ores 2,37,65,19,826 92.94% 100.00% - - -
Limited
Blue Coral Irvestment Holdings Pte Ltd ¥ - - - 2,34,79,27,245 97.75% 1.15%
CIA SRC, Spain

{fi During the year, The Sandur Manganese & lron Ores Limited [SMIORE] entered into Share Purchase Agreement [SPA) and acquired 2,37,65,19,836 equity shares of the
Company. The SPA corsummated on November 11, 2024 and consequently the Company has become subsidiary of SMIORE.
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18 Other equity As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Retained eamings (147,337.49) (1,48,698.34)
Capital redemption reserve 4,271.15 427115
Securities premium 31,643.44 30.201.52
Treasury share reserve - 261.73)
Equity settled share based payment reserve - 37270
Capital contribution vide interest free loan 1412.20 1,412.20
Capital contribution vide 0.1% non-cumulative optionally convertible redeemable preference shares 146123 146123
{1,08,549.47) 1,11,941.27)
Retained eamings
Balance at beginning of year (1.48,698.34) {1,53,292.40
Profit for the year 222137 4,630.90
Items of other comprehensive income:
Fair value changes on equity instruments through other comprehensive income (849.47) -
Reserve for remeasuremenits of the defined benefit plans {11.05) {36.84)
Balance at end of the year {1.47.337.49) (1,48,698.34)
Capital redemption reserve
Balance at beginning of the year 4,271.15 4,271.15
Movement during the year - -
Balance at end of the year 4.271.15 4,271.15
Securities premium
Balance at beginning of the year 30,201.52 30,201.52
Mowvemeant during the year [refer note 45) 144192 -
Balance at and of the year 31,643.44 30,201,52
Treasury share reserve
Balance at beginning of the year (961.73) (861.73}
Derecognised upon sale of treasury shares [refer note 45) 961.73 =
Balance at end of the year - (961.73)
Equity settfed share based payment reserve
Balance at beginning of the year 7270 158.08
Movement during the year [refer note 45] {(372.703 214.62
Balance at and of the year - 372.70
Capital contribution vide interest free Joan
Balance at beginning of the year 141220 141220
Movement during the year - -
Balance at end of the yaar 1,412.20 1,412.20
Capital contribution vide 0.1% non-cumulative optionally convertible red ble preference
Balance at begirming of the year 1.461.23 1461.23
Movernent during the year - -
Balance at end of the year 1.461.23 1,461.23
Tatal other equity {1,08,549.47) {1,11,941.27)
Nature of reserves

Retained eamnings are the profits that the Company has eamed till date (including amounts recognised in OCI), bess sy transfers to general reserve, dividends or other
distributions paid to sharehclders. Retained earnings are free reserve available to the Company.

Capital redemption reserve is created for redemption of preference shares as per statutory requirement. This reserve would be utilised in accordance with the specific
provisions of the Companies A, 2013,

Securities premium is the amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares. This reserve is utilised in accordance with the specific provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013

Treasury share reserve comprises the cost of the company's shaves held by Arjas Employee Benefit Trust. At March 31, 2025, the trust held Nil [March 31, 2024:
320,30,682] of company’s shares.

Equity settled share based payment reserve is the share-based payment reserve is used to recognise the velue of equity settled share-based payments provided to
employees [refer note 45).

Capital contribution vide interest free loan represents the difference between nominal value {actual amount received) of the interest free loan and the fair value on initial
recognition. Since the Joan was provided in the capacity of a shareholder, the Company has accounted for resubting credit as a capital contribution disclosed in the manner
as stated above in ine with the requirements of the reporting framework. Accordingly, there is ne specific purpose for utilisation with respact to this amount.

Capital contribution vide 0.1% non-cumulative optionally convertible redeemable preference shares represents the difference between nominal value {actual
amount received} of the preference shares and the fair value on initial recognition. Since the investment in preference shares was made in the capacity of a shareholder, the
Company has accounted for resulting ¢redit as a capitz] contribution disdlosed in the maaner as stated above in line with the requirements of the reporting framework,
Accordingly, there is no specific purpose for utilisation with respect to this amount.
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19 Borrowings

Mon Current Currgnt

As at As at

March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024  March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Secured at amortised cost;

Loans from other than related parties:

Term loans [refer (2}, (b) and {c} below]

Working capital demand loan [refer (d) below]

Loans repayable on demand from banks {overdraft schedule) [refer {d} befow]
u r ta it ost:

Loans from related party [refer (e) below]

Extermnal cornemercial borrowings from Biue Coral Investment Holdings Pte Ltd

30,636.34 803578 6,143.53 3878.01
: > 2401547 23,800.00
. - 1,05291 287078
- 35,850.78 - -

39,638.34 44,686.56 31,211.91 30,648.79

The details of security and repayment of secured term loans are as follows:

a) ICICT Bark Limited

i) First pari passu charge on all the immovable and movable properties.

ji} Second pari-passu charge over present and future current assets.

iii} Charge on DSRA or lien over interest bearing fixed deposits.

i) Non-disposable undertaking to the extent of controlling stake held by
immediate holding company.

During the year the Company abtained No Objection Certificate from the bank for
transfer of its shares held by Blue Coral [nvestment Holdings Pte Lid ¥ CIA SRC,
Spain to SMICRE.

i) Term loan of INR 182,91 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 487.74 lakh] is repayable

- 4 quartedy instalments of INR 45.73 lakh from May'2025 to Feb'2026
i) Term loan of INR 236.74 lakh [#arch 31, 2024: INR £31.32 lakh] is repayable

- 4 quartery instalmants of INR 59.19 lakh from May'2025 to Feb'2026
iii} Term loan of INR 451.69 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 1,204.51 lakh] is repayable

- 4 quartery instalments of INR 112,92 Jakh from May'2025 to Feb'2026
iv} Term loan of INR 18,000.00 lakh is repayable [March 31, 2024: Mil]

= st instalment of INR 720.00 lakh in Nov'2025

- B quartedy instalments of INR 450.00 lakh from Feb’2026 to Nov'2027

- 16 quarterly instalments of INR 675.00 lakh from Feb’2028 to Nov'2031

- 4 quarterdy instalments of [NR 726,00 lakh from Feh'2032 to Nov'2032
vi) Rate of interest on all loans vary from MCLR-3M to MCLR-1Y+Spread ranging
9.25%- 9.60% per annum [March 37, 2024: 8.75%- 9.60% per annum]
vii) The cloting balance of the borrowings is net of unamortisad cost of INR
165.40 lakh [March 31, 2024; TNR 9,99 lakh] and interest accrued of INR 14.37 1akh
[March 31, 2024: Ni).

b) Axis Bank Limited

f) First pari passu charge on all the immovable and movable properties,
ii) Second pari-passu charge over present and future current assets.

ili) Charge on DSRA or lien over interest bearing fixed deposits.

i) Term loan of INR 17,498.93 lakh [March 31, 2024: Nil] is repayable
- 1stinstalment of INR 699.53 lakh in Nov'2025
- B quarterly instalments of INR 437.50 lakh from Feb2026 to Nov'2027
- 16 quarterly instalments of INR £656.25 lakh from Feb'2028 to Nov'2031
- 4 quarterdy instalments of INR 700.00 lakh from Feb'2032 to Nov'2032

ii) Rate of interest is MCLR-3M+Spread ranging currently at 9.25% per annurn.

) HOFC Bank Limited

i} First parl passu charge on all the immovable and movable properties,

iiy Second pari-passu charge over present and-future current agsets.

il Non-disposable undertaking to the extent of controlling stzke held by
imrmediate holding company.

During the year the Company obtained No Objection Certificate from the bank for
transfer of its shares held by Blue Coral Investment Holdings Pte Ltd Y CI& SRC,
Spain to SMIORE.

i) Term loan is INR 9,523,71 lakh for the current year [March 21, 2024: 10,471.20
lakh) is repayable in 13 quarterly instalments of INR 732.5% lakh from Apr'2025 to
Apr'2028

ii) Rate of interest on all loans is as mutually agreed, for the current period it is
ranging 9.75% - 10.10% per annum [March 31, 2024: 9.40% - 9.80% per annum)

iii) The closing balance of the borrowings net of unamortised cost of INR 43.79
lakh [March 31, 2024; 70.99 lakh] and interest accrued of INR 81.71 lakh [March
31, 2024 Mil].

d} The Company has the following working capital facilities from:

{iy ICICI Pank Limited - INR 7,500.00 lakh [March 21, 2024: INR 7,500.00 lakh] interest rate 8.70% to 9.01% pee annum [March 31, 2024: interest rate 8.25% to 9.03%]
{ii) HOFC Bank Limited - INR 7,500.00 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 12,500.00 lakh) interest rate 8.52% to 10.25% per annum [March 31, 2024: interest rate 8.24% to

9,28%] and includes accrued interest of INR 55.42 lakh [March 31, 2024: Nil).

{iti) HSBC Limited - INR 8,934.55 lakh [March 31, 2024: 3,900.00 lakh] interest rate 8.75% to 9.55% per annum fMarch 31, 2024: interast rate 9.20% per annum] and

includes accrued interest of INR 25.50 lakh [March 31, 2024: Nil).

{iv) Overdraft fadlity from ICICT Bank Limited - INR B27 80 lakh [March 31, 2024: 2,870.78 lakh] interest rate I-MCLR 6M+1.30% currently at 8.25% to 9.25% per annum [
March 31, 2024 interest rate -MCLR 6M+1.30% currently at 8.25% to 9.25% per annum].
(v} Overdraft facility from HOFC Bank Limited - INR 200.21 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR Nil] interest rate I-MCLR 6M+1.30% currently at 8.52% to 10.25% per annum and

includes acerued interest of INR 24.90 lakh [March 31, 2024: Nil].

The above facifities are secured by first pari passu charge on current assets, second pari passu charge on property, plant and equiprnenit,

€} Loans availed from Blue Coral Investment Holdings Pte Limited, Singapore amounting to INR 35,850.78 lakh [USD 43 Million] towards the External Commercial

Borrowing ['ECB Loan] is repaid during the year.

f} The Company has not defaulted on repayment of principal and payment of interest on any of the above borrowings during the year.
g} The quarterly returns or statements filed (as revised wherever applicable) by the Company for working capital limits with such banks and financial institutions are in

agreement with the books of account of the Company.
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20 Trade payables As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises §,747.15 11,288.24
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than rmicro enterprises and small enterprises 46,743.70 58,235.21
55.490.91 69,523.45

(i) Ageing as at March 31, 2025

0O ding for the following periods from due date of pay t

Particulars Not due l.a:o::::; 6 6 mo;:l;: te1 1-2 years 2-3 years More then 3 years Total

Outstanding dues of micro entarprises and small entarprises

- Disputed dues - - - = - - _

- Undisputed dues 819193 51833 085 3180 - 4.24 8.747.15
Outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

- Disputed dues - - - - - - -

—Undisputed dues 38,334.72 565633 2,607.28 56.37 4.1 85.05 46,743.76
Total 46,526.65 6,174.66 2,608.13 88.17 4.01 89.29 55,490.91

(i) Ageing as at March 31, 2024

O ding for the followdng periods from due date of pay t

Particulars Not due l““:o‘:t:: 6 6 “"’;::: fal 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 years Total

Qutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

- Disputed dues - - = < = 2 2

— Undisputed dues 9,965.78 1.294.20 835 458 248 12.85 11,288.24
Dutstanding duas othar than micro enterprises and small enterprises

- Disputed dues - - E - - ] -

—Undisputed dues 52,933.98 5,118.70 68.85 20.45 20.27 62.96 58B,235.21
Total 62,899.76 6,412.90 77.20 25,03 32.75 75.81 69;‘:523.45

{ith Disclosures under "The Micro, Small and Madium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act)”.

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the Micro ard Small Enterprises
should mention in thelr corespondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandurn Mumber as allocated after filing of the Memorandum, Accordingly. the
disdlosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at March 31, 2025 has been made in the finandal statements based on information received and
available with the Company. The Company has not received any clairm for interest from any supplier under the said Act.

This has been relied upon by the auditors.

Datails of dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 As at
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024

(a) the arount remaining unpaid to MSMED suppliers as at the end of the year;
principal * 10,407.84 11,224.32
interest due therson 0.66 £3.52
(b} the amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the - -
supplier beyond the appointed day during the year;

{6) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in rmaking payment {which has been paid but beyond the 171.42 35.65
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006);

{d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year; 236.00 63.92

{e) amount of further interest remaining due and payable aven in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues - 1973
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purposes of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23
of MSMED Act, 2006

* Includes dues of micre and small enterprises included within other financial liabilities in note 21,

CHARTERED

ACCOUNTANTS
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21 Other finanda liabilltles Non Current Current
As at As at
March 31,2025  March 31,2024  March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Employee payable 3 = - 83499
Guarantee commission payable 3800 139.57 21.56 §7.88
Interest accrued and not-due - - 1282 3B6.30
Creditors for capital goods

-~ Dues to ricre and small enterprises - 1,660.6% -

- Dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises - - 655.80 445957
Retention money payable - - 1.449.84 1,140.29
Derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss - Forward contracts - - 6.1% -
Payable towards share based payments [refer note 45] - - 950.00 -

58.00 139.57 4,817.90 6,909.13
22 Provisions Mon Current Current
As at As at

March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024

March 31,2025  March 31, 2024

Employea banefits
Provision for gratuity [refer note 41]
Provision for leave encashment* [refer note 41)

Othars
Provision for litigations [refer (2} below]
Prowvision for others [refer {b} below]

- 608.04 = -

- - 795.69 1,230.09
- £08.04 795.69 1.230.09
- = 199.11 21643
- - 116,54 118.54
- - 317.65 334.97
- 608.04 1,113.34 1.565.06

*The entire amount of provision is presented current since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these obligations. However the
Company does not expect all employee to avail full amount of accrued leave or require payment for such leave within the nest 12 months.

8) Provision for litigation/disputes represents claims against the Company mainly in respect of land related disputes and Value added tax litigations.

Movermnent i igi itigat

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at beginning of the year 21643 248,04
Add: Additions during the year [refer note below] - 17.34
Less: Lhtilized/reversed during the year (17.32} {48.95)
Balance at and of the year 199.11 216.43

{b) Provision for others represents the amounts accrued by the Company in respect of certain ROC related matters.

Movement i vish er
Particulars March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Balance at beginning of the year 11854 111.24
Add: Additions during the year - 7.30
Less: Utilized/reversed during the year - -
Balance at end of the year 118.54 118.54
23 Other current and non-cumrent liabilities Non current Current
As at Az at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advarces from customers - - 208506 40026
Statutory dues - - 2,160.82 £06.03
Deferred government grant [refer note 47) 33819 35395 - 4424
Payable towards gratuity fund [refer note 41) 810.35 - = #
Interest payable to micro and small enterprises [refer note 20 (jii)] - - 236.00 =)
Others - - - 046

1,208.54 353.95 2.681.88 1.050.99
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Notes to Standal Fii ial Stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2025 [Contd.]
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24 Revenue from operations Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sale of products 2,27,829.85 201,133.59
Other operating revenue
- Export incentives 51.02 92,60
- Income from support services 220.28 13276
- Others [including sale of scrap] 605.96 503.26
2,28.707.21 2,01,862.21
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
a) Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised with contracts and total revanue
Year endad
e March 31, 2025 March 31,2022
Total ravenue from operations 2.28,707.21 201,862.21
Adjustments:
Other operating revenue
- Export incentives 51.02 92.60
Total revenue from contracts with customers 2.28,656.19 2,01.769.61
b) Product-wise revenue
Particulars Neagenden
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Bars 2,06,585.49 1,73,703.97
Billets 29471 1,739.69
Fig Iron 12,892.50 10,323.15
Coke 7.686.13 14,98799
Slag 171.02 378.79
Total revenue from sale of products 2.27,829.85 2,01,133.59
Others [including sale of scrap] £05.96 503.26
Income from support services [refer note 58] 22038 13276
Total revenue from contracts with customers 2,28,656.19 2,01,769.61
c) Geography-wise revenue
" Year ended
pihipire=tid March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
India 22518617 1,95,726.85
Africa 2,624.21 439516
Europe 25507 1.175.22
Asia other than India 590.74 472,38
Total revenue from ¢ cts with cust 2,28,656.19 2,01,769,61
d) Timing of revenue recognition
Year ended
i g March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue at a point in time 2,28,435.81 201,636.85
Revenue over the period 220.38 13276
Total from ¢ cts with ¢ 2,28,656.19 2,01,769.61
el Reconciliation of aross revenue from contracts with cust
Yaar anded
Esitlen March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue as per contracted price 2,34,246.66 2,02,061.33
Less; Discounts, commission and sales returns {5.59047) (291.72}
Tatal revenue from contracts with customars 2.28,656.19 2,01,769.61
i Mov t in unbilled revenue
. Year anded
Bartfailars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 132.76 139.89
Additions during the year 220.38 132.76
Redassification adjustments:
Billing from opening unbilled reverwe to trade receivables (122.76) 139.89)
Billing from additions transferred to trade receivables (220,38} -
Closing balance - 132.76
g) C ct balance
Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Contract assets - Trade receivables [refer note 8] 26,894.03 28,634,563
Contract liabilities - Ad es from ¢ [refer note 21)
Balance at beginning of the year 400.26 291.51
Amount recognised in revenue out of opening balance (400.26) (882.26)
Amount received in advance during the year net of revenue recognised 285.06 400.26
Amount refunded to customers - (9.25)
285.06 400.26
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(all amounts are rupees in lakh, unl tharwise stated)
25 Otherincome Yaar endaed
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest Income earned on financial assets carried at amortised cost
Loans to related parties [refer note 38] 1,872.88 1,639.37
Bank deposits 158.14 67.00
Usance letter of credit 145.56 118,57
Other non - operating income
Commission incorne [refer note 38] 24994 25024
Liabilities no longer required written back* 11.78 1,171.82
Interest income on electricity deposit 57.66 56.06
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 126 16.01
Miscellanecus income 440.59 74.66
Government grant - 4424
Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes - Derivatives at FVTPL (6.19) -
2,931.63 3,437.97
* |jabilities no longer required written back includes ECL provision reversal of INR Nil [March 31, 2024 [NR 57.38 lakh]
26 Cost of materials consumed Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Raw rmaterials
Inventory at the beginning of the year 19,720.15 25,195.93
Add; Purchases {net) 1,30,896.33 1,54,072.36
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 16,901.72 19,720.15
Cost of raw materials consumed during the year 1,33,634.76 1.59,548.14
27 Changes in inventories of finished goods, semi finished goods and work-in-progress Yaar ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventories at the end of the year [including goods-in-transit, refer note 14]
Work-in-progress 1,547.2¢ 1,269.99
Semi-finished goods 9.509.83 36,598.21
Finished goods 21,840.43 15.709.34
32,897.46 57,577.54
Tnventories at the beginning of the year (incuding goods-in-transit, refer note 14]
Work-in-progress 1,269.99 1,333.54
Semi-fAinished goods 36,598.21 15,294.74
Finished goods 10,709.34 1617727
57,577.54 32,805.55
24,680.08 24,771.99)
28 Employee benefits expense Year endad
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 8,318.56 A,580.50
Contribution to provident and other funds [refer note 41] 1780 666.65
Share based paymenit to employees [refer note 45] 577.30 21462
Staff welfare expenses 96204 850.36
10,475.70 10,312.13
29 Finance costs Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest on financlal Habilities carrled at amortised cost
Interest on overdraft/cash credit facilities 2.542.48 1,618.06
Initerest cn long term bormowings 3,264.48 2,935.98
Interest on lease Kabilities 64.26 52.08
Other borrowing costs 184661 2.467.51
1.717.83 7.073.63
30 Depredation and amortization expenses Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deprediation on property, plant and equipment 9,788.55 B, 750,02
Depreciation on right of use assets 257.64 206,74
Amortization of intangible assets 139.83 105.36
10,186.02 9,062.12
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31 Other expanses Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rent [refer note 36) 855.08 920.61
Repairs and maintenance - building 269.88 241.66
Repairs and maintenance - plant and machinery 4,005.90 413544
Repairs and maintenance - others 2,193.14 2,128.52
Insurance 7449 486,62
Rates & taxes 198.34 185.35
Legal and professional charges [refer G}, §ii) and {iv) below] 588.02 592,18
1T related services 74249 658492
Communication expenses T0.59 7250
Travel and corweyance a3z 159.08
Freight outward and forwarding charges 5,234.51 785223
Security charges 157.77 153.63
Stores and spares consumed 11,446.57 11,041.83
Power and fuel 8,016.51 6,144.00
Labour charges 1,749.23 1,529.56
Corporate social responsibility expenses [refer note 46] 284.10 37484
Payment to auditors [refer {i) and (i)} below] a1.67 92,84
Loss allowance on trade receivables 105.10 -
Pravision for doubtful advances 9.02 493
Provision for doubtful assets [refer note 47] 213.84 -
Net Loss on forefgn currency transaction and translations 688.24 633,02
Property, plant and equipment written off 557.27 1.390.12
Miscellangous expenses 583.9% 617.37
27230 39,445.25
{0) Details of auditors’ remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses is as below Ysar ended
As auditor March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024+
Statutory audit fee 60.50 41.00
Graup audit fee - 42.00
Tax audit and other certification 8.00 2.00
Reimbursement of expenses ** 13.17 7.84
{amounts presented above excdudes G5T) 81.67 92,84

* Previous year's fees pertains to erstwhile auditors.
** Reimbursement of expenses for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 includes INR 11.11 lakh paid to erstwhile auditor.
{il) Legal and other professional charges of previous year indudes INR 3.00 lakh paid to erstwhile auditor for the tax audit.
{iil) Lagal and other professional charges includes INR 4.44 Jakh [March 31, 2024: Nil] paid to firm in which the partner of audit firm is a partner.
{iv) Legal and other professional charges includes amounts paid to a firm affiliated to the statutory auditors firm through a networking arrangements as
registered with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, for the year ended March 31, 2025 INR 25.33 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 96.66 lakh].

Ao

32 Eamings per share (EP5) Year
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

The calculation of profit attributable ta equity shareholders and weighted average number of equity
shareholdings for the purpose of basic EPS and diluted EPS are as follows:

Basic earnings per share :

Attributable to equity holders of the Caompany (in INR absolute numbers) 109 0.20
Total basic earnings per shara 0.09 0.20
Diluta i hal
Attributable to equity holders of the Company (in INR absolute numbers) .09 {.20
Total diluted earnings per share attributable to equity holdars of the Company 0.09 0.20
Reconciliati arnin ed in calculating earnings per share :
Basic sarnings per share
Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 2,22137 452080
2,221.37 4,630.90
Diluted eamings per share
Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
Used in calculating basic EPS 2,221.37 4,630.90
Used in calculating diluted EPS 222137 4,630.90
Profit used in calculsting diluted earnings per share 2,221,37 4,630,90
ver; number of shares used as the denominator :
Weighted average number of aquity shares used as the denorninator in calculating basic EPS 240,20,79.056 2,40,20,79,056
Adjustments for calculation of basic EPS
affect of treasury shares - (3,30,30,682)
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating baskc EPS 2,40,20,79,056 2,26,90,48,374

Waeighted avarag ber of equity st and p ial equity sh usad as the
denominator in calculating difuted EPS 2:40.20,79,056 2369048374
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33 Capital management

Rigk managemaent

The Compary’s objectives when managing capital are to;

{i} Safeguard their ability to continue as a geoing concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
and

{iy Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investors and creditors and to sustain
future development and growth of its business. The Company’s capital managerment, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants
attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirerments.

The Company maonitors capital using a ratio of "adjusted net debt’ to ‘equity”.
Adjusted net debt (total interest-bearing borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits
disclosed under other non-cumrent finandal assets)
divided by
Total equity (2s shown in the Standalone Balance Sheet)
The gearing ratios were as foflows:

Particutars As at
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024

Long term borrowings 30,630.34 44.686.56
Lease liabilities 56733 586.25
Short term borrowings {including bank overdraft facility) 3121191 30,648.79
Total Borrowings 71,417.58 75,921.60
Less:

Cash and cash equivalents 1,147.54 2,730.36
Bank halances other than cash and cash equivalents = 30.3%
Bank deposits disdosed under other financial assets 4,802.85 101206
Net deiot 65,467.09 72,139.79
Total equity 1,31,658.44 1,28,266.64
Net debt to equity ratio 0.50 0.56

Note: For the purpose of the Company's capital management, borrowings includes short term borrowings, long term borowings [including intercompany
|oans] and lease liabilities.

34 Financial instruments

A Financial instruments by category
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by each category as at March 31, 2025 were as follows:

. Carrying value Fair Value
articulars Balances at Balances at

amortised cost rod Balances at FYTPL
Financial assets
[nvestments - 734.78 - 73478
Trade receivables 26,894.03 - - 26,894.03
Cash and cash aquivalents 1,347.54 - - 1,147.54
Non current loans 24,072.33 - - 24,072.33
Other non current financial assets 491770 - - 4977
Other current financial assets 865.11 - - 865.11
Financial liabilities
Borrowings from banks fincludes current maturities of
[ong term debt) 70.550.25 - - T0.850.25
Non current lease liabilities 30199 - - 301.99
Current lease liabilities 265.34 - - 265.34
Trade payables 5549091 - - 55490.91
Derivative liabilities (Forward contract) - - 6.19 6.19
Other financial liabilities 486971 - - 4,869.71

[excluding dervative liabilities]

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by each category as at March 31, 2024 were as follows:

] Carrying value Fair Valug

Fatiotace ! T::st m-&at Balances at FVTPL
Financial assets
Investments - 24947 - 84947
Trade receivables 28,634.63 - - 28,634.63
ash and cash equivalents 273936 - - 2,739.36
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenits 30.39 - - 3039
Mon current loans 18,779.16 - - 18,7799
Other non current financial assets 1,283.22 - - 1,283.22
Other current finandial assets 2.800.65 - ] 2,800.65
Financial hiabilities
Borrowings from banks (includes current maturities of
Long term debt) 39,484.57 - - 39,484.57
Borrowings from others 35,850.78 - - 35,850.78
Non current lease liabilities 354.27 - - 38427
Current lease fiabilities 20198 - - 201.98
Trade payables 69,523.45 - - 66,523.45
Other finandal liabilities 7.048.70 . = 7.048.70

[excluding derivative liabilities)

HARTERED
COUNTANTS
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34 Financial instrumants [Contd.]
B Fair value hierarchy
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by hierarchy as at March 31, 2025 were as follows:
Carrying value Fair value
Particulars Balances at
Tod Balances at FVTPL Leved 2 Lavel 3
Financial assets
Investments 73478 - - 724.78
Financial kabilities
Derivative liabilities (Forward contract} - 6.19 6.19 -
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by hierarchy as at March 31, 2025 were as follows:
Carrving value Fair value
Particulars Balances at
FvTOa Balances at FYTPL Lovel 2 Level 3
Financlal assets
Investrnents 24947 - 849.47
Movement in Level 3 financial Instruments measured at fair valve
Particulars March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Balance as at the beginning of the year 8449.47 84947
Purchase 73478 =
Transfers in or out of Level 3 - -
Other comprehensive income {B49.47) =
Balance as at end of the year 734.78 849.47
Me t of fair val

Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

The following table show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values for financial instruments measured at fair valug in the
statement of financial position as well as significant unobsenvable inputs used.

Type

Valuation technique

Financial agsets and liabilities measured at fair value
through profit or loss {Derivative instrumerits)

Forward contracts: The fair value is determined using quoted forward exchange rates at the
reporting date and present value calculations based on high credit sk quality yield curves in the
respactive currency.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised
cost

Discounted cash flows: The wvaluation model considers the present value of expected
receipt/payment discounted using appropriate discounting rates, For issued debt, the interest rate is
derived from market observable date such as secondary prices for its external debt itself.

Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, bank deposits, other financlal assets, trade payables,
lease liabilities and other financial liabilities {except derivative financial instruments) have fair values
that approximate to their carrying amounts due to their short-tern nature.

Loans have fair values that approximate to their camying amounts a3 it is based on the net present
value of the anticipated future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Casts of certain unquoted equity instruments has been considered as an appropriate estirnate of fair
value because of a wide range of possible fair value measurements and cost less impaiment (if any),
represents the best estimate of fair value within that range. Accordingly, there are no significant
unchservable inputs. These investments in equity instruments are not held for trading. Instead, they
are held for medium or long term strategic purpose.

The Company has chosen to designate these investments in equity instruments at FYTOCT as the
management believe that provides a more meaningful presentation for medium or long term
strategic investments, than reflecting changes in fair value immediately in profit and loss.

The Company has not dassified any finandial asset or liability under level 1.

There has been no change in the valuation methodelogy for level 3 inputs during the year, There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the year.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company is exposed to foreign currency fluctuations on foreign currency assets/ liabilities. The Company follows established risk management poficies,
including the use of derivatives to hedge foreign currency assets/ liabilities. The Company regularly reviews its forelgn exchange forward positions both on a
standalone basis and in conjunction with its underlying foreign currency related exposures and monitors the potential risk arising out of the market factors like
exchange rates on a regular basis. The counterparty in these derivative instruments is a bank and the Cormpany considers the risks of non-performance by the
counterparty as non-matevial, The Company does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. All the transactions in derivative
financial instrurnents are undertaken to manage risks arising from underfying business activities.

The following table presents the aggregate contracted principal amounts of the Company’s derivative contracts outstanding:

Particulars March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Forward contracts

in USD million 299

Average rate 85.79 -
in INR lakh 2,565.12 -
Maturity profite within 12 months =

The following table sets aut the fair value of derivatives held by the Company as at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars

Forward Contracts
Classification
Mon current
Currerit

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
- 6.19 - -
= 6.19 -
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35 Financlal risk management

The Company has exposure 1o the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

1 Credit risk

2 Liquidity risk

3 Market risk

4 Commadity risk
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Board of Directors,
supported by finance, legal, compliance team and risk management committee, identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, set appropriate risk limits
and controls, and monitor risks and adherence to limits, Risk management systems are reviewed periodically to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company's activities. The board is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit team. internal audit team undertakes reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Board.

1 Cradit risk:

Credit risk is the risk of finandial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a finandal instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and it
arises principally from the Company's trade receivables, treasury operations and related activities. The carrying amount of finandial assets represent maximum
exposure to credit risk. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
finandial asset have occured such as a breach of contract, significant financial difficulty, it is probable that debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial
recrganisation. The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for credit worthiness before the
Company's standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company's review includes background KYC verification, historical financial
information of the customer's business, industry information, etc, (as applicable). The Company measures the amount of expected credit loss [ECL on a
financial instrument in a way that reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount, The Company considers its historical loss experience and adjusts the
same for current observable data. The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the probability of default [PD’], loss given default {'LGD'] and exposure at
default [EAD']. EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. EAD represents the gross cammying amount of the finandal instruments subject
to the impairment calculation. LGD represents estimated financial loss the Company is fikely to suffer in respect of default accounts and it is used to caleulate
provision requiremant on EAD along with PD.

Trade and other receivables:

Management corsiders that the demographics of the Company's customer base, including the default risk of the industry in which customers operate, has less
of an influence on cradit risk. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of
the customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of the business.

Exposures 10 customars outstanding at the end of each reporting year are reviewed by the Company to determine incurred and expected credit losses.
Historical trend of impairment of trade receivables do not reflect any significant credit losses, Basis this assessment, the allowance for doubtful trade
receivables as at March 31, 2025 is considered adequate.

The credit quality of the Corpany’s customers is monitored on an ongoing basis and assessed for impairment wherg indicators of such impairment exist. The
Company uses simplified approach (i.e. lifetime expected credit loss model) for impaimment of trade receivables/contract assets. The solvency of the debtor
and their ability to repay the receivable is considered in assessing receivables for impaimment. Where receivables have been impaired, the Company actively
seeks to recover the amounts in question and enforce compliance with credit terms.

For all other finandal assets, if credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month expected credit loss is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if
credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime expected credit loss is used.

Loans fo subsidiary

The Company has pecformed a cash flow recovery analysis in relation to the teem loans and loans repayable on demand made to the subsidiary. Basis such
analysis, the entire outstanding is recoverable and accordingly, the management assesses the impact of any expected credit loss to be immaterial. Further, with
respect to the loans repayable on demand, the Company doesn’t expect to call for the repayment of such loans within 12 months of the balance sheet date.
Accordingly, such loans repayable on demand extended to the subsidiary has been classified as non-current loans.

Investments

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by generally investing in securities with counter-parties that have a good credit rating. The Company does not
axpect any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties, and does not have any significant concentration of exposures to specific industry sectors or
specific country risks.

Cash and cash equivalents;

Credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by
international and domestic ¢redit rating agencies.

Exposure to cradit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets, net of any impairment losses recognised represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit
risk as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 was as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Investments 73478 B4947
Trade receivables 26,854.03 28,634.63
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 30.39
Loans 24,072.33 18,779.16
(Other financial assets [rurrent and non current] 578281 408387
Financial asse e b inpaired

There is no other dass of financial assets that is past due other than trade receivables [refer note B].
The ageing of trade receivables and allowances are given below:
As at March 31, 2025

Gross carryin Waighted Net carryl

o amouﬁ o mragiegloss rate koss:aMowance nlz "

Within the credit period 140432 0.16% 181 11,386.21
(-1 months past due 2,308.44 0.27% 22.08 8,286.36
1-2 months past due 4,380.56 0.77% 3385 4,346.71
2-3 months past due 1,465.64 1.54% 2255 144309
3 months and above 1,491.14 3.99% 59.48 1431.66
Totat 27.050.10 156.07 26.894.03
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35 Fi ial risk g [Contd.]
As at March 31, 2024
Gross carrying Welghted Met carrying
e amount average loss eate Ensssallowance value
within the credit pedod 1487403 0.08% 1133 14,862.70
0-1 months past due 8,112.87 0.13% 10.63 8,102.24
1-2 months past due 3,857.86 037% 1441 384345
2-3 months past due 1,016.15 0.88% £.98 100797
3 months and above 831.66 151% 12.59 519.07
Total 28,692.57 57.94 28,634.63
There are no other trade receivables, loans and financial assets which have a significant increase in the credit risk other than these reported in note 8, note 9

and note 13

Financial assets t ither nor impaired
Cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and other finandial assets are neither past due nor impaired.

Concentration ef trade receivables

The Company's axposure to credit risk for trade receivables by geagraphic region is as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
India 25,615.10 27,560.27
Outzide India 1,274.93 1,074.36
Total 26,894.03 28.634.63

The concentration of credit rick is limited due to the fact that the customer base is large and unrelated.

2 Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Company’ s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when due, under normal and stressed conditions, without incurting unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The
Company generates sufficient cash flow for operations, which together with the available cash and cash equivalents and short term investments provide
liquidity in the short-term and long-termn. In addition, the Company has concluded arrangements with well reputed banks and also plans to negofiate
additional facilities for funding as and when required. The Company has established an appropriate kguidity risk management framework for the management
of the Company's short, medium and fong-term funding and liquidity. management requirements. The Cornpany manages liguidity risk by maintining
adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrawing facilities

The foltowing are the contractual maturities of financial Rabilities, excluding estimated interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agresments. The
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Cormpany can be required to

pay.

Particulars Carrying amount Comrml = 0-12 Months 1-3 years More than 2 years
As at Mavch 31, 2025 I
MNon-derivative finandal liabilities
Long term bomrowings from bank (including current
maturities and accrued interest) 45,781.87 4599112 6,205.28 13,404.50 26,381.34
Lease liabilities 567.33 624,40 305.36 306.75 12.28
Short tenm facilities with bank 25/65.38 25068.38 25,068,368 - -
Trade payables 55.490.91 5545091 55,490.91 - -
Other financial liabilities [refer note 21] 4869.71 4,069 481171 58.00 -
Darivative financial liabilities

Forward contracts 6.19 619 6,19 - -
As at March 31, 2024
Mon-derivative financial liabilities
Long term bormrowings from bank {including current
rmaturitias) 1271379 12,794.79 391605 5.798.97 3,079.77
Borrowings from others [refer note 19¢] 35,850.78 35,850,768 - - 35,850.78
Lease liabilities 586.25 65413 23306 374.20 46,87
Short tesm facilities with bank 26,770.78 26,770.78 2677078 - -
Trade payables 69,523.45 £66,52345 £9,5234% - =
Other financial liabifities [refer note 21) 7.048.70 7.048.70 6,909.13 139.57 -

3 Market risk:
Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings or fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument, The value
of a finandlal instrurent may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign exchange rates and other market changes that affect market risk
sensitive instruments. Market risk fs attributable to all market fisk sensitive finandal instruments induding foreign currency receivables and payables. The
Company is exposed to market risk primarily refated to foreign exchange rate risk {currency risk) and interest rste risk. Thus the Company’s exposure to market
risk is a function of borrowing activities as well as revenue generating and operating activities in forelgn currencies.

a) Currency risk
The Compary's exposure in USD and EUR transactions gives rise to exchange rate fluctuation risk. Company's policy in this regard incorporates:

- Forecasting inflows and outflows denominated in USD ard EUR for a 12-month period.

- Estimating the ret exposure in foreign currency, in terms of timing and amount

- Determining the extent to which exposure should be protected through one or more risk-mitigating instruments to_painta
uncovered exposures. Q,\" PR}

&

the permissible limits of
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35 Financial risk g t [Contd.)
Sensitivity analysis below is made on the closing balances as on respective reporting dates.
The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 was as follows:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

faliceas Uso* EUR* uso* EUR®
Cash and cash equivalents 1411 - 4443 -
Trade receivables 94.59 1,180.34 41.0% 1,033.35
Trade payables (13,072.58) 6.39) (29,756.50) =
Other current assets - = 308.44 7164
Other financial liabilities 437.64) (301.00) {99.18) [769.56)
Other current liabilities - - {43.25) -
Borrowings - - {35.850.78) -
Nat balance sheet exposurs | (13,401.52)] 87295 | (65.355.92) 335.41 |
A 1% strengthening of the rupee against the respective currendies as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 would have increased / (decreased} profit or joss
by the amounits shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant, The analysis is performed on the same bask for previous year.
Change in profit / (loss) and equity March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
UsD* 134.02 653,56
EUR* 8.73) (3.35

A 1% weakening of the rupee against the above currencies as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 would have had the equal but opposite effect on
USD/EUR to the amounts shown above, an the basis that all other variables remain constant.

* The amounts disdlosed above are in the functional and presentation currency {i.e, INR lakh)

b) Interast rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that an upward movement in interest rates would adversely affect the borrowing costs of the Company.

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instrumerits were as follows:
. ing amounts

Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

1 Fixed rate instruments

Finandisl sssets

- Fixed deposits with banks 4,802.95 1,042.45

I Variable rate instrurnents

Financial assets

- Loans to subsidiary 2407233 18,779.16

Finandial liabilities

- Borrowings from banks (induding overdrafts) 70,850.25 3940457

- Borrowings from others - 35.850.78

Cashr flow sensitivity for Fixed rate Instruments-

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabllities at fair value through profit or loss as the effective interest rates equates the fair
value,

Cash flow sensitivity for variable rate instruments-

An increase of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased/{decreased) profit/loss by the amounts shown below. A decrease of
100 basis points in the interest rates at the reporting date would have had equal but apposite effect on the amounts shown below, on the basis that all other
variables remain constant.

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

100bp increase | 100bp decrease | 100bp increase | 100bp decrease
Profittilass) and eauity - (Variable rate liabilities) {532.17) 532.11 {774.89) 77489
Prafit/ilass) and equity - (Variable rate assets) 202.15 (20215} 175.42 (17942

4 Commodity price rish
The Comparty doesn't enter inta any long term contract with its suppliers for hedging its commodity price risk.

36 Leases
Qperating lease: company as lessee {as per IND AS 116)
The Company has entered into various lease arRngements relating 1o office premises, warehouses, laptops and vehidles. These leases are for a duration of less
than twelve moniths or leases of low values. These arrangements are canceliable in nature and do not have any lock in period, accordingly future minimum
lease payments are not disdlosed. Amount of INR 855,08 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 920.61 lakh] is recorded in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss [refer
note 31].

37 Segment information
The Company is in the business of manufacturing special steel products having similar ecanomic characteristics, primarily with operations in India and regulary
reviewed by the Chief Operating Dedision Maker (Board of directors) for assessment of company’s performance and resource allocation.
The infermation relating to revenue from extemal customers and location of non-current assets of its single reportable segment has been disdlosed as below:

a) R from ions Year ended

Particulars March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
India 2,25237.19 1,95,819.45
Africa 262421 4,395.16
Europe 255.07 1.175.22
Asia other than india 9074 472.38
Total 2.28.707.21 2,01,862.21

b) Mon current assets

Al non-current assets of the Company are located in India.

©) Customers contributing more than 10% of revenue

The Company is net reliant on revenue from transactions from single external customer and does not receive 10% or more of its revenue from transactions with
any single external customer,

CHARTERED

ACCOUNTANTS
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38 Related party discl
A Namas of relatad parties and related party relationship:
Name Relationship

a) Parent information

Skand Private Limited

The Sandur Manganese & Tron Ores Limited

ADV Partners Pte Limited, Singapore

Blue Coral Investrnent Holdings Pte Ltd, Singapore

Blue Coral Irvestrnent Holdings Pte Ltd Y CIA SRC, Spain

b) Subsidiaries
Arjas Modem Steel Private Limited

<) Key management personnel
Bahirji Afai Ghorpade

Uttarn Kurnar Bhageria

Sridhar Krishnarnoorthy
Ramaswamy Visweswaran
Anand Pasupuleti

Sham Krishna
Satyanarayan Mohanty

Suresh Eshwara Prabhala

Gaurav Pawan Kumar Podar

d) Directors

Gregor Johannes Muenstermann
Dr Aruna Sharma

Ajay Hari Tandon

Gururaj Pandurang Kundargi
Anand Sen

#) Employee benefit trust

Arjas Steel Employee Benefit Trust

Ultimate holding Company with effect from November 11, 2024
Holding Company with effect from November 11, 2024
Ultimate holding Cornpany till November 10, 2024
Intermediary holding Company till Navember 10, 2024
Immediate holding Company till November 10, 2024

Subsidiary Cormpany

Chairman and Mon-executive director with effect from Novemnber 11,
2024 to March 20, 2025, Chairman and Managing Director with effect
from March 21, 2025

Non-executive director with effect from Novernber 11, 2024 to March
20, 2025 and Executive Diractor with effect from March 21, 2025

Managing Director till Decernber 18, 2024

Whole Time Director till December 18, 2024

Chief Executive Officer with effect from December 11, 2024
Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary

Director till Maovermber 11, 2024
Director till Movember 11, 2024

Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Cirector
Independent Director with effect from Movember 11, 2024
Independent Director with effect from November 11, 2024

Controlled Trust [refer note (i} below]

) Entity over which key managerial personnel or their relative have significant influence

Lohagiri Industrial Private Limited

Related party with effect from November 11, 2024

@) Entity in which Company has invested more than twenty percentage of their equity

Amplus Arjas Solar Private Limited
Transactions with refated parties:

Refer note {v) below

The following table provides the total transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year:

Year anded
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
a) Intarest on loan
Blue Caral Investment Holdings Pte Ltd, Singapore 1,346.89 2,346 .96
b) Short term amployee benefits
Rernuneration to key management personnel [refer note {vi) below] £51.82 570.23
¢} Others
Reimbursernents ta key management personnel 13.31 16.54
Sitting fees and commission to independent directors 86.20 66.95
d) Loans repaid
Blue Caral Investment Holdings Pte Ltd, Singapore 36,313.07 8,221.69
€) Recovery of expenses curred by us on their behalf
Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited - 14.39
) Loans given
Arjas Modem Steel Private Limited 3.607.58 1,500.00
g) Investmant
Amplus Ajas Solar Private Limited 734.78 -
h) Guarantee commission income
Arjas Modemm Steel Private Limited [refer note (iv) below] 24594 25024
i} Intergst income on inter corporate loan
Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited 1872688 163937
i} Purchases and expenses
Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited 1.90 1650
The Sandur Manganese & Iron Ores Limited 1,586.38 -
Lohagiri Industrial Private Limited 107.56
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Transactions with ralated parties:
Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
k) Power and fuel
Amplus Arjas Solar Private Limited 294.61 -
1) Sales
Arjas Modern Steed Private Limited - 58.14
m) Intergst axpanses
The Sandur Manganese 8 Iron Ores Limited 034 .
n} Income from support services
Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited 220.38 132.76
C Amount payable / receivable from related parties:
a) Borrowings
Blue Coral Investment Holdings Pte Ltd, Singapore 35,850.78
b) Recoverable for expeanses incurved by us on their behalf
Arjas Modemn Steel Private Limited 124.12
¢} Loans receivabile [including acerued interest]
Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited [refer note {iii) below] 24,072.33 20,940.39
d) Interest accrued payabl
Blue Coral Investment Holdings Pte Ltd, Singapore - 204.62
The Sandur Manganese & [ron Ores Limited 034 -
&} Guarantee commission receivable
Arjas Modemn Steel Private Limited 565.20 250.24
f) Trade recelvable [including unbilled revenue]
Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited 381.38 154.55
g} Trade payable
Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited 2.24 1118
Lohagiri Industrial Private Limited £9.96 ]
Amplus Argas Solar Private Limited 294.48 -
h) Gi provided by the C y on behalf
Arjas Modem Steel Private Limited [refer note (iv bellow] 2500000 25,000.00
i) Investmants
Arjas Modern Stee] Private Limited 1.500.00 1,500.00
Arnplus Arjas Solar Private Limited 73478 ]
) Commission and sitting fees payable 3255 26,50
k) Security deposits
The Sandur Manganese 8 Iron Ores Limited 2003 -
) Equity share capital
The Sandur Manganese & Iron Cres Limited 237.651.88 -
Blue Coral Investment Holdings Pte Ltd Y CIA SRC, Spain - 2,34,792.72

Notes

(i} Outstanding balances at the year end are ursecured and settlement ocours in cash,
(il The assets and liabilities of the aforesaid trust have been accounted for as the assets and lisbilities of the Company an the basis that such trust is merely

acting as the agent of the Company.
{iii) During the year an unsecured loan of INR 3,607.58 lakh [March 31, 2024; INR 1,500.00 lakh] was advanced to Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited [refer note

9] and the outstanding balance as on March 31, 2025 was INR 22,386.74 lakh [March 31, 2024; INR 18,779.16 lakh]. The interest and repayment terms of the
outstanding are as below:
() TNR 3,421.16 fakh [March 31, 2024: INR 3,431.16 lakh] of unsecured term loan bearing interest rate of 9.60% [March 31, 2024: 9.15%-9.60%) reset as
per interest rate of boans availed by the Company from its tenders repayable vide singte bullet payment on March 31, 2031,
(b) INR 18,955.58 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 15,298.00 lakh) of unsecured loan bearing interest rate of 8.91%-9.29% [March 31, 2024: 891%-9.29%) reset
as per interest rate of working capital lcans availed by the subsidiary repayable on demand.

M t of loan to subsidiary
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at beginning of the yvear 20,940.39 17,279.16
Add: Loan given during the year 3,607.58 1,50000
Add: Interest accrued during the year 1,685.59 2,161.23
Lecs: Interast received during the year (2,161.23) -
Balance at end of the year 24.072.33 20,940.39
24,072.33 20,940.39

Maxirmurm loan cutstanding (induding accrued interest} during the year
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Refated party discfosures [Contd.]
{ivy The Company provided corporate gusrantee of INR 25,000.00 lskh towards credit facilities availed by the subsidiary from their bankers and wvalid till
February 10. 2027, Commission at the rate of 1% has been charged on such guarantee provided.
{) The investment in Amplus Arjas Solar Private Limited [AASPL] is not accounted as “Investment in Assaciate” as the Company does not have any significant
influence over AASPL as it will not be involved in the management of AASPL and it will not appoint/nominate any directors in AASPL.
{vi) Post employment benefits: The remuneration to the key management personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits, as
they are determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole,
{vii) The transactions with refated parties are made on terms equhvalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions, There is no amounts receivable/
payable in respect of the related parties have been written off/ back during the year,

39

Capltal and other commitments [to the extent not provided for]
The Company has a process whereby all long tenm contracts are assessed for material losses. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were no foreseeable losses.

As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account
Praparty, plant and equipment 3,731.30 13,380.53
Intangible assets 3095 13.61
3,762.25 13,394.14

The Compariy has issued a letter of financial support to its wholly owned subsidiary Cornpany in order to meet the shortfall in its fund requiremenits over banks
and other borrowings {induding working capital loans extended by the Company] to meet out the projects which are in progress and other [iabilities induding
loans from the Company, for a period of not less than 12 months from the date of finandial ¢closure of accounts of the subsidiary for the year ended March 31,
2025,

40 Contingent liabilities As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of

Service tax 100.22 100.22
Income tax - 16.10
Goods and service tax 325.54 30274
Sales tax 1,894,859 1,694 89
Walue added tax 25349 59802
Entry tax 690.56 £90.56
Others [refer note (i} below] 185,16 178.65

3,449.86 3,781.18

{i) The Company is involved in various legal proceedings, induding claims against the Company pertaining to income tax, excise, service tax, sales tax value
added tax, entry tax and other regulatory matters relating to conduct of its business,

{iiy Others represents claims sgainst the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of land disputes, labour disputes, electricity matters and other
litigations.

{iii} The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as
contingent liabilifies where applicable, in the standalone financial statements. Regarding the amounts disclosed above it is not practicable to discdose the
information on the passibility of any reimbursement as it is determinable only on occurrence of any future events.

(i) It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending resclution of the respective
proceedings. Future cash flow in respect of the above, if any, is determinable only on receipt of judgement/ decisions pending with relevant authorities. The
Company does not expect the cutcome of the matters stated above 1o have a material adverse impact on the Company's financial condition, results of
operations or cash flows.

L)

Employee benefit plans

{i) Defined conteibution plan

In accordance with the law, all employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident and pension fund. Under defined contribution
plan, provident and pension are contributed to the government administrated praovidenit fund. The Company has no obligation other than the contribution te
the provident and pension fund.

Amcunts towards defined contribution plans have been recognised under “Contributions to provident and other funds” in note 28:; INR 526.05 lakh

[March 31, 2024: TNR 497 45 lakh]

{ii} Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

The Company operates post-employment defined benefit plan that provides gratuity, govemed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, [t entitles an employee,
who has rendered at beast five years of continuous service, to gratuity at the rate of fifteen days wagas for every completed year of service or part thereof in
excess of six months, based on the rate of wages last drawn by the employee concerned. Gratuity for employees is covered under a scheme of Life Insurance
Corporation of India (LIC) which is basically a year-on-year cash accumulation plan, As part of the scheme the interest rate is declared on yearly basis and is
guaranteed for a period of one year. The insurance Company, as part of the policy rules, makes payment of all gratuity settlements during the year subject to
sufficdency of funds under the policy. These defined benefit plan expose the Company to actuarial risks, such as interest rate risk, salary escalation risk,
demographic risk etc,
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41 Employee benefit plans [Contd.]
Risk e to define nefit plans
Interest fate sk

The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates, A fall in interest rates will resultin an increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and
will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability {as shown in standalone financial staterents).

Salary escalation riskc

The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of
salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have s bearing on the plan's liabitity.

Demographle rislc

The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions {n valuation of the liability and there is a risk that these may change.

Regulatory risk:

Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 { as amended from time to time). Thera is a risk of change in

regulations requiring higher gratuity pay-outs.
Asset liability mismatching or market risk:

The duration of the liability is longer compared to duration of assets, exposing the Company to market risk for volatilities/fall in interest rate.

Investment risk:

The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any particular investment,

Variability in withdrawal rates:

I actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumptions, the gratuity benefits will be paid extra than eveluated. The impact of this will depend

on where benefits are vested as at resignation date,

Balances of defined benefit plan

The amount indluded in the balance sheet arising from the Company's obfigation in respect of its defined benefit plans is a5 follows:

As at
Partlculars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 1,511.56 1,390.43
Fair value of plan assets 701.21 782.39
Met liability arising from gratuity (810.35) (608.04)
MNon current {810.35) (6C8.04)
Current - -

The most recent actuanal valuation of the present value of the defined benef obhgatmn for gratuity were carried out as at March 31, 2025. Based on the actuarial
valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognized in the Company's standalone financial

statements as at balance sheet date:

Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A, Components of expense recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 148.30 139.25
interest on net defined benefit fiability/ (asset) 43.45 29.95
Total (A) 191.75 169.20
B. Compaonents of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:
-Return on plan assets (excuding amounts induded in net irterest expense} 451 052
-Actuarial (gains) and kosses arising from changes in demographic assumptions 17.03 62.18)
-Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions (11.55) 85.73
-Actuarial {gains) and losses arising from experience adjustments 1.05 12.77
Total {B) 11.04 36.84
C. Movemenis in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
Opening defined benefit obligation 139043 1,264.76
Current service cost 148.30 13925
Interest cost 5935 92.52
Remeasurement {gains)/losses:
-Actuarial {gains} and losses arising from changes in demographic assurnptions 17.03 (62.18)
-Actuarial {gains) and losses arising from changes in finandial assurnptions (1155 8573
-Actuarial {gains} and losses arising from experience adjustrents 105 1277
Benefits paid {123.05) {142.42)
Closing d d benefit obligation () 1.511.56 1,390.43
D, Moverments in the fair value of the plan assets
Opening fair value of plan assets TB2.38 85524
Investment income  {Interest) 55,90 62.57
Remeasurement gain (loss):
-Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) (4.5} {0.52)
Contributions from employer 049 7.51
Benefits paid {132.05) (14242}
Closing fair value of plan assets (D) 701.21 78238
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Category wise plan assets
The fair value of the plan assets at the end of the reporting period for each category, ace as follows:
As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Insurer managed funds 100% 100%
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Weighted average duration {based on discounted cashflows} 5 years 5 years
Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undisce d basis) Amount in INR
1 year 22555 22297
2 to 5 years 207.77 767.66
6 to 10 years 635.07 626.22
More than 10 years £46.29 565.61

Fund Is managed by LIC as per IRDA guidelines category-wise composition of the plan assets is not available.

The above plan assets are unquoted instruments,
(iily Other long term benefits [Compensated absences]

The Company provides compensated absences benefits 1o the employees of the Company which can be carried forward to future years. They are therefore accrued
using actuarial valuations and are measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees.

Expenses in Standalone Stat t of Profit and Loss Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Leave encashmerit 21.24 159.32
Total 21.24 159,32
Liability as at balance sheet date As at

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non current ® -
Current 79569 1,230.09
Total 795.69 1.230.09
Sensitivity an

Sigrificant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity
analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other

assurnptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Defined benafit Defined beanefit Defined benefit Defined benefit
|Particulars obligation for obligation for increase obfigation for obligation for increase

decraasa in % of in % of assumption decrease in % of in % of assumption

assumption assumption

Discount rate {- / +1%} 1,600.78 1,430.20) 146827 1,319.76)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity} 5.90% (5.34%) 5.60% (5.08%)
Salary growth rate {- / +1%) (1437.65) 1,589.76 {1,325.90) 1,458.26
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity} {4.89%) 5T% (4.54%) 4.89%
Attrition rate (- / +50% of attrition rates) 1,630.12 (1,443.55) 1,511.36 1,324.26)
(% change compared to base due to sensltivity} 784% (4.50%) B.70% {4.76%)
Mortality rate (- / +10% of mortality rates) 1511.87 1,511.23) 1,3%0.71 (1,390.15}
[% change compared to base due to sensktivity) 0.02% 0.02%) 0.02% 10.02%)
The best estimate of the expected contribution for the next year amounts 1o INR 810.35 lakb [March 31, 2024: INR 745.50 lakh].
Principal assumptions
The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows.
Particulars For Gratuity For Other long term benefits

March 31, 2025 March 21, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1. Discount rate £.50% 7.15% 6.50% 7.15%
2. Salary escalation 10.00% 10.66% 10.00% 10.66%
3. Withdrawal rate 14.00% 15.23% 14.00% 15.23%
4. Ratirerent age 58 or 60 years S8 or 60 years 58 or 60 years 58 or 60 years

For directors 65 years | For directors 65 years | For directors 65 years | For directors 65 years

(i) The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yield on Government Securities as at the balarice sheet date for the estimated term of obligations.

{ii} The estimate of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account inflation, seniority, prometion and other relevant factors such as supply
and demand in the employment market,

iy Assumptions regarding future mortality and experience are set in accordance with published rates under Indian assured lives mortality 2012-2014 [March 31,
2024: 2012-2014),

(V) The Company has purchased insurance policy, which is basically a year-on -year cash accumulation plan in which the interest rate s declared on yearly basis and is
guaranteed for a perod of one year. The insurance Company, as part of the policy rules, makes payment of all gratuity outgoes happening during the year {subject to
sufficiency of funds under the policy). The policy, thus, mitigates the liquidity risk. However, being a cash accumulation plan, the duration of assets is shorter
compared to the duration of liabilities. Thus, the Company is exposed to movement in interest rate (in particular, the significant fall in interest rates, which should
result in a increase in liability without corresponding increase in the asset).
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42 Ratios
Particulars Numearat D inat March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 Variance
Current Ratio Total current assets Total current liabilities 0.90 1.10 (17.72%)
Debt equity ratio Totat debt including Total aquity 054 .59 8.36%)
Lease liabilities
Debt service coverage ratio Earning for Debt Service Debt service = Interest 045 0e7 (54.00%)
= Nat profit/{loss) after and lease payments +
1axes + Nan-cash Principal repayments
income and expenses +
finance cost

[fthe ratio is decreased compared to previous yesr primarily due to principal repayment of £EC8 Joam availed from erstwhile
holding company amounting to INR 36,313,07 lakh during the year/

Retum on Equity Net profit/(loss) for the Average total equity 1.71% 3.60% (53.54%)
year
[the ratio i decreased compared to previous yesr due to decrease in earnings during the period primarily en account of
Ructuation in Alloy Bar prices]

Inventory turnover ratio Costof goods sold = Average Inventory 228 183 24.57%
Cost of materials
consumed + Changes in
inventories of finished
goods, semi finished
goods and work-in-

pragress.
Trade receivable turnover ratio Revenue from Average trade 824 6.56 25.50%
operations receivables
[the ratic i increased compared fo previous year mainly due to reduction in average trade receivables]
Trade payables turnover ratio Met credit purchases Average trade payable 2.09 238 (12.04%)
Net capital turnover ratio Revenue from Average working capital 41883 13.35 3035.51%
operations
[the ratio has increased due to more than proportionate decrease in average working capital when compared to fncrease in
revenuel
et proflt ratio Net profit/{loss) for the Revenue from 097% 2.29% [57.66%)
year operations
[tha ratic is decreased compared to previous year due 10 decrease in earnings during the period prirnarily on account of
fuctuation in Alloy Bar prices]
Returm on capital employed (ROCE) Profit/{loss) before tax  Capital employed = Met 489% 5.73% (14.62%)
and finance cost worth + Borrowings +
Lease liabilities
Return on investment {Other than Tncome eamed on Average investments for 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
investments in subsidiaries) investrments the period

43 Additional disclosures required by Schedule II to the Companiaes Act, 2013;
{i} The Company does not have any benami property, where arty proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property.
{ii) The Corpany does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
{ii) The Company has not traded or invested in arypto currency o virtual currency during the financial year.

(iv) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds ar share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in any other persen(s) or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall directly or indirectly fend or irwest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Benefidaries”} or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(v} No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entlties ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall: directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Benefidiaries.

L4

{vi) The Campany does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1861 (such as, search or sunvey or any other relevant provisions of the Incorne Tax Act, 1961}

{vii) The Company is not dedared a3 wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the companies act, 2013) or consortium therzof or other
lender in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

{vii) The Company has complied with the number of layers for its holding in downstream companies prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the companies act,
2013 read with the Companies {Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

{ix) The Company has not entered into any transactions with struck off companies under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act,
1956 for the year ended March 31, 2025,

{x) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment {induding right-of-use assets) during the year.

44 (a) Daily back-up: The Companies {Accounts} Amendments Rules 2022 mandates maintenance of backup of Company's books of account and other books and
papers maintained in electronic mode on servers physically located in India on a daily basis. The Campany uses accounting software for maintaining its books of
account and has maintained back-up of such books of account on a daily basis in a server physically located in India except for certain payroll records wherein back-
up is not stored in a server physically located in India.

(b) Audit trail: The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has made it mandatory for companies to maintain an audit trail throughout the year for transactions
impacting books of account. The Company uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the year ended March 37, 2025 which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that

- in respect of one software, the audit trail feature was not enabled for certain critical tables/master records throughout the year and audit trail was not enabled at
the database level to log any direct data changes, The Company is in the process of complying with the requirements of enabling the audit trail feature as required for
certaln critical tables/master records for the software.

- in respect of another software operated by a third-party software service provider and used by the Company for maintaining certain payroll records, the
independent auditor's system and organisation controls reports does not cover audit trail related reporting. The Company is in process of discussing with the third
party software provider to include the audit trail related reporting in the independent auditor's system and organisation controls report,

Additionally, the audit trail that was enabled and operated for the year ended March 31, 2024, has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements
for record retention.
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45 The Company had given a loan of INR 962.10 lakh to Arjas Steel Employee Benefit Trust [Trust] formed vide Trust Deed executed on November 12, 2019. The above
trust was incorporated primarily for the purposes of implementing an employee stock option plan [ESOP’). During the year ended March 31, 2020, the above trust
purchased 56,268,860 equity shares of INR 10 each and 1,75,90,189 0.1% non - cumulative redeemable preference shares of INR 10 each of the Cornpany, held by
erstwhile directors cum shareholders of the Company and their relatives for an aggregate consideration of INR 961.73 lakh. During the year ended March 31, 2022,
these non-cumnulative redeemable preference shares were converted into equity shares of INR 10 each.

The trust is a distinct legal entity created primarily for the purpose of implementing the above ESOP scherne and the shares purchased by it during the year ended
March 31, 2020 are solely for the purpose of issuance to employees under the ESOP Scheme. Since, the Trust is acting as an agent of the Company solaly for the
purpose of aforesaid Scheme, the assets and liabilitias of the Trust have been accounted for as the assets and liabilities of the Company. The equity shares held by the
Trust is disdosed as treasury shares in the equity.

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the equity shareholders of the Company appraved the Arjas Employee Stock Option Schems 2022 and creation and grant of
3,30,30,682 (three crore thirty lakh thirty thousand six hundred and eighty-two) options to identified employees of the Company under the Arjas Employee Stock
Opticn Scheme 2022,

During the current year, pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement, the equity shares held by the Trust is sold to The Sandur Manganese & Iron Cres Limited for a
net consideration of INR 2,660.79 lakh resulting in a gain of INR 1,441.92 lakh [ret of capital gain tax paid by the Trust] which is being recogrized in securities
premiurn account. Consequently, the options granted to the employees have lapsed during the year. Accordingly, the Company has reversed INR 372.70 fakh of share-
based payment expenses recorded till March 31, 2024 with a correspanding debit to equity settled share based payment reserve.

In tarms of the Scheme, the employees are efigible to receive Trust Distributable amount [representing consideration received by the Trust, net of taxes and ather
liabilities of the Trust} subject to their continuing employment with the Company for the specified period. Accordingly, the Company has recognized INR 950 lakh of
Trust Distributable amount as share-based payment expence.

A Share based paymant plan
The following tables provides the disclosures as required by Ind A5 102 “Share based payments’.

Arjas Employee Stock Option Options
MNo. of options granted 3,30,30,662
Grant date July 5, 2022
Grant price {INR per share) 10.1
Fair Value of shares on the date of grant INR per share) 6.5
Methed of settlerment Equity
Method of Accounting Fair value
Graded vesting plan Vesting of the options shall be in a single instalment
Normal exercise period The exercise can be done after 5 years from the date of vesting or at the change in control event
B Movement of option activity under employee share option plan and changes for year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars B Weighted average

. Weighted average T Weighted average

Share Options e:?eﬂ:iu priceg mmm:g ta;::I::r'nl:rar:tual intrinsic “hr;g

Stock options outstanding as at April 1, 2024 3.30,30.682 10,10 5.26 -
Stock opticns granted - - - =
Stock options forfeitedAapsed {3.30.20,682) (10.10) 5.26) -
Stock options surrender - - - i
Stock options exercised - - - -
Stock opti ding as at March 31, 2025 - - - -

Stock options exercisable as at March 21, 2025 2 = =

Stock options unvested as at March 31, 2025 = = - -
Weighted average fair value as on grant date of the options outstanding -
The expense recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss during the year is INR 577,30 lakh [March 31, 2024. INR 214.62 lakhi.

During the year The Sandur Manganese & Iron Ores Limited purchased the shares held with Arjas Employee Benefit Trust.

Particulars 2 Weighted average :

Share Optlons Welghted average aematging cantracgtl.lal w.e'gi]tef! average

exercise price e intrinsic value

Stock options outstanding as at Apvil 1, 2023 3,30,30.682 10,10 5.26 -
Stock options granted - - . -
Stock options forfeited/lapsed 2 - = %
Stock options surrender - - - -
Stock options exercised _ - - -
Stock options outstanding as at March 31, 2024 3.30,30,682 10.10 5.26 -
Stock options exercisable as at March 3%, 2024 = - & -
Stack options unvested as at March 31, 2024 3,30,30,682 10.10 5.26 -

Weighted average fair value as on grant date of the options o

C Fair valuation and assumptions
The fair valuation of the employee stock option plan granted has been estimated using Black-Scholes model of pricing. The key assumptions for calculating the fair
value as on the grant are:

Arjas Employee Stock Option Options

Method used Black-Scholes model

Risk-free rate 7.37%

Option life [Years] One year from date of vesting and date of vesting is 5 years from the date of grant
Expected volatility* 55.00%

Dividend yield 0%

* Expected volatility is determined based on the observed histarical volatility of listed competitors/comparable companies, allowing for the fact that Company is not
listed.
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46 Corporate social responsibility
As per the provisions of section 135 of the Act and Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company has constituted the Corporate Sodial Responsibility (CSR}
Committee. In pursuance of the Act, the Company i required to spend at least 2% of the average net profits made during the three immediately preceding finandial
years on (SR
The aggregate amount of expenditure incurred during the year by the Company on Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) is INR 284.10 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR
374.84 lakh) and is shown separately under note 31 based on Guidance Note on Accounting for Expenditure on CSR Activities fssued by the ICAL
Dretails of C5R expenditure

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(i (a) Gross amount required to be spent during the year 284,10 37135
(b) Amount spent by the Company during the year 250.12 37484
() {Excess)/Shortfall at the end of the year [{c} ={al-{b)] 33.98 (3.49

[refer note (i} below]
{d) Total of previous year shortfall = =
{fi Reason of shortfall Ongoing projects A

{g) Details of transaction with related party - "

(i) {a) Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2025 In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total

i} Constructionfacquisition of any asset - - =

ii) On purposes other than (i) above 25042 33.98 254.10
(b} Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2024 In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total

1) Construction/acquisition of any asset - - -

i) On purpases other than (i) above 261.62 113.22 374.84
{¢) Category of spend other than construction/acquisition of any asset for the year ending on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

Disaster Management

Promotion of Games and Sports

Medical and Health

Education

Community Development

Ermvironment

Gil) The Company has transferred INR 33.98 fakh to a Special account before the date of this report and within 3 periad of 30 days from the end of the financial year in

compliance with the provision of section 135(6} of the Act.

47 The State Government of Andhra Pradesh has approved a special package of incentives under mega project concept of Industrial Investrent Promotion Policy (TIPP)
2070-15 to the Campany for their expansion and diversification project in Anantapur, as per which the Company is entiled to 50% VAT/CST reimbursement for a
period of 5 years from the date of commencernent of commerdal production on the end products Wiz bars and rods. The Company has filed the necessary forms in
this regard up to March 2018 within the applicable timelines,

As at March 31, 2024, the ¢arrying value of govemment grant receivable was INR 612.03 lakh and corresponding deferred government grant was INR 396.19 lakh.
During the current year, the management has re-assessed the recoverability of the receivables and created provision of INR 213.84 lakh [net of defered government
grant INR 388.19 lakh].

48 The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 were audited by erstwhile auditors B S R 8 Co. LLP [Firm Registration Number:
101248WAN-100022].

49 The management has evaluated subsequent events till May 19, 2025 and determined that there were no such events requiring recognition of disdosure in the

standalone financial statments,
The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025 were recommended by Audit Committee and authorized for issue by the

Company’s Board of Directors.

for and on behalf of Board of Diractors of Arjas Steel Private Limited
CIN: U271094P1993PTCO 15499

BAM/J&AC\M.’L@A.& vgy&c{r’f‘

Bahirji Ajal Ghorpade Uttam Kumar Bhageria
Chairman and Managing Director Executive Director
DIN: 08452844 DIN: 10589928

/\7 F’ Z
Anand Pasupuleti Sat}a'nanyan Mohanty
Chief Executive Officer f Financdial Cfficer Company Secretary
Membership No: 22035
Date: May 19, 2025

Place: Bengaluru
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Arjas Steel Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolldated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Arjas Steel Private Limited (the
*Parent Company”)}and its subsidiary, (the Parent Company and its subsidiary together referred to as
the “"Group”), which comprise the Consclidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory inform ation.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the
"Act™)in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, ("Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2025, and their
consoclidated loss, their consolidated total comprehensive loss, their consolidated cash flows and their
consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing ("SA"s) specified under section 143 (10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independentofthe Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to ouraudit of the consolidated financial statements underthe provisions ofthe Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the [CAI's Code of Ethics. We believe thatthe audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements,

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

o The Parent Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the otherinform ation. The otherinformation
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion & Analysis Report and Directors’
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. These reports are expected to be made available to us after the date of
this auditor's report,

= Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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» In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

» When we read the Management Discussion & Analysis Report and Directors’ report, if we conclude that
there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance as required under SA 720 'The Auditor’s responsibilities Relating to OtherInformation’,

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Parent Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) ofthe Act
with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensiva
income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act.
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions ofthe Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation ofthe financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
m aterial misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Parent Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective entities to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intend to liquidate their
respective entities or to ¢ease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors ofthe companiesincluded in the Group are also responsible foroverseeing
the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whetherthe consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors
reportthat includes ouropinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis nota guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detecta material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consoclidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Vv
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« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a m aterial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, orthe override ofinternal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’'s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concem.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concem.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

«  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information ofthe entity or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of
such entity or business activities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowladgeable user of the
consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statem ents.

We communicate with those charged with govermance of the Parent Company and such other entities
included in the consclidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to com municate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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Other Matters

The consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company for the year ended March 31, 2024, were
audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statementson June 7, 2024,

Our opinion on the conselidated financial statements is not modified in respect of this matter,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

b} In ouropinion, properbooks of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept by the Group, so far as it appears from our
examination of those books, except (a) for not keeping backup on a daily basis of such books of
account maintained in electronic modein a server physically located in India by the Parent
Company and its subsidiary, (refer Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements) and (b) in
relation to compliance with the requirements of audit trail, refer paragraph (k)(vi) below.

¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated
Statement ofChangesin Equity dealt with by this Reportare in agreement with the relevant books
of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,

d) In ouropinien, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors ofthe Parent Com pany and
its subsidiary company as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Parent Company and subsidiary company respectively, none of the directors of the Group
com panies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f} The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and othermatters connected therewith,
are as stated in paragraph (b) above,

g} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in "Annexure A" which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent company and subsidiary
cempany incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmeodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of internal financial controls with reference to consoclidated financial
statements of those companies.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Parent
Company and such subsidiary company to their respective directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.
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i)  With respectto the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Com panies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group - Refer Note 40 to the consolidated financid
statements.

i) The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

ii} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Parent Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in

India.

iv) {(8) The respective Managements of the Parent Company and its subsidiary company

incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the note 43(iv) to the consoclidated financial statements, nofunds have been advanced
or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources orkind of funds) by the Parent Company or subsidiary company to or in any
other person{s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities (*Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whetherrecorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shah,
directly orindirectly lend orinvest in otherpersons orentities identified in any manner
whatsoeverby or on behalf of the Parent Com pany or subsidiary company, (*Ultim ate
Beneficiaries™} or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective Managements of the Parent Company and its subsidiary company,

(<)

incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the note 43(v) to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received
by the Parent Company or subsidiary company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities {(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Parent Company or subsidiary company
shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultim ate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors
of the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures which are companies incorporated
in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has
come to our or other auditor's notice that has caused us or the other auditors to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii} of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v) The Parent Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India, whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, have not declared or paid any dividend during
the year and have not propoesed final dividend for the year.

y

vi} Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Parent Com pany and its subsidiary
company incorporated in India have used accounting software for maintaining their books of
account for the year ended March 31, 2025, which has a feature of recording audit trail {(edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software except that:
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in respect of one software, the audit trail feature was not enabled for certain critical
tables/master records throughout the year and audit trail was not enabled at the database
level to log any direct data changes. During the course of our audit, we did not come across
any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with, in respectof tables/records for
which the audit trail feature was enabled and operating. Additionally, the audit trail that was
enabled and operated for the year ended March 31, 2024, has been preserved by the Parent
Company and its subsidiary Com panyincorporated in India as per the statutoryrequirements
for record retention, as stated in Note 44 to the financial statements.

In respect of software operated by a third party software service provider for maintaining
payroll records, in the absence ofan independent auditor’s System and Organisation Conbols
report covering the audit trail requirement, we are unable to comment whether audit trail
feature of the said software was enabled and operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software and whether there were any instances of the audit tral
feature been tampered with (Refer Note 44 of the financial statements). Additionally, in
absence of the independent auditor's System and Organisation Controls report covering the
audit trail requirement, we are unable to com ment whetherthe audit trail has been preserved
by the Parent Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India as per the statutory
requirements for record retention for the year ended March 31, 2024.

2. With respect to the matters specified in clause {xxi} of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("CARQ"/ “the Order”) issued by the Central Governmentin terms of
Section 143(11) of the Act, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on
the CARO reports issued by us and the auditors of the subsidiary company included in the consolidated
financial statements to which reporting under CARQ is applicable, as provided te us by the Management
of the Parent Company, we reportthat there are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective
auditors in the CARO reports of the said respective companies included in the consolidated financial
statements except for the following:

Name of the CIN Nature of Clause Number of
company relationship CARO report with
qualification or
adverse remark
Arjas Steel Private | U27109AP1993PTC015499 | Parent Company | Clause (iil}{c)
Limited Clause (ix)(a)
Clause {ix)(d)
Arjas Modern Steel | U27205PB2020PTC052289 | Subsidiary Clause ix(a)
Private Limited Company Clause ix(d)
Clause (xvii)

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 0080725)

\(—e_a.»j\ 129 b
Monisha Parikh
Partner
(Membership No. 47840)
UDIN: 25047840BMRIUT4725

Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 19, 2025
Ref: MP/MS/HG/RD/2025
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1{(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the “Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company as
at and for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements of Arjas Steel Private Limited (hereinafter referred
to as “the Parent Company”) and its subsidiary company which is a company incorporated in
India, as of that date.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company’s management and Board of Directors of the Parent company and its
subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
based on the internal control with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria
established by the respective Companies considering the essential components of internal contro!
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiary company which is a
company incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Intermal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ffinancial
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controis with reference to consolidated financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal fFinancial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiary company which is a company
incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to
consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolldated
financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
with reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

v
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Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given te us, the
Parent Company and its subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated in India, have, in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria for internal
financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements established by the
respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloltte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 008072S)

T v O

Monisha Parikh
Partner
{Membership No. 47840)
UDIN: 25047840BMRIUT4725
Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 19, 2025
Ref: MP/MS/HG/RD/2025
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Arjas Steel Private Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(2l amounts are rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated}

Notes Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Mon-current assats
(a) Property, plant and eguipment 4 1,38,082.16 1,21,833.88
{b) Right of use assets SA, 602.06 646.88
{c) Capital work=in-progress 4 25,132.68 2997288
{d) Goodwill 7 447.15 447.15
(&) Other intangible assets 6 533.64 355,22
(i Financial assets
M Investments 8 73478 84947
(i) Other financial assets 10 544419 1,705.34
(9) Income tax assets (net) 12 633.97 752.79
{h) Other non-current assets 13 491224 5,344.60
Total non-current assets 1,76,522.87 1,61,958.21
Current assets
(a) Inventories 14 63,265.55 52,603.65
(b) Financial assets
il Trade receivables 9 37,330.63 38,656.15
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 15 1,148.3% 2,998.08
{ifi) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 16 - 35.57
{iv} Other financial assets 10 245.00 17717
(¢) Other current assets 13 2,447.95 2,636.08
Total current assets 1,04,440.52 1,37,106.70
Total assets 2.80,963.39 2,99,064.91
EQUITY AND LEARILITIES
Equity
(a} Equity share capital 17 2,40,207.91 240,207.91
{b) Other equity 18 {1.19.866.45) £1,19,450.60)
Total equity 1,20,241.46 1,20,757.31
Liabllities
Non-current Kabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
{i) Borrowings 19 4147945 49,265.56
{ii} Lease liahilities :] 310.69 396,55
{iiiy Other financial liabilities 21 114.58 77.05
(b) Provisions 22 34438 996.56
() Other non-current liabilities 23 1,208.54 35395
Total non-curvent liabilities 43.457.64 51,089.67
Current liabilities
{a} Financial liabilities
{) Borrowings 19 44,683.70 40,681.48
{ii) Lease liabilities S8 268.92 205.23
(lii} Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 20 9,662.22 13,110.04
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 20 53,151,93 62,084.81
{iv) Other financial liabilities 21 49017 7,993.52
{b) Provisions 22 131624 1,737.81
(<) Other current liabilities 23 3,180.11 1405.04
Total current liabiiities 1.17,164.2% 1.27,217.93
Total equity and liabilities 2,80.963.3% 2,99,064.91
Material accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

[Firm Registration Number; 0080725]

A v e

Mondsha Parikh
Fartrer
IMembership Number: 047840]

Date: May 19, 2025
Place: Bengaluru

for and on behalf of Board of Directors of Arjas Steed Private Limited

QM UZT1094P1993PTC0154599

Balisyi A Chd hade

Bahirji Ajai Ghorpade
Chaiman and Managing Director
DIM; (8452844

Tk

Anand Pasupuleti Sha

Chief Executive Officer C i

Date: May 19, 2025
Place: Bengaluru

Uttam Kumar Bhageda
Executive Director
DIM: 10589928

Satyanara chanty
Comparny Secretary
Membership No; 22035



Arjas Steel Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for year ended March 31, 2025

{all ts are rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)
Notes year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenug from operations 24 2,88,361.26 2,60,807.03
Other income 25 1,076.18 181111
Total income 2,89,437.44 2,62,618.14
Expenses
Cost of materials consurmed 26 1,73,297.14 1,98,158.05
Changes in inventories of finished goods, semi finished goads and work-in-progress 27 24,372.82 (24,962.82)
Employee benefits expense 28 13,480.56 12,852.05
Finance costs 29 9.535.16 B8.874.30
Depreciation and amortization expense 30 11,070.62 9.820.97
Other expenses EY| 59,330.57 54,524.49
Total expenses 2,91,086.87 2,59,327.04
Profit/(loss) before tax (1,649.43) 3.281.10
Tax expenses
Current tax 1" o -
Deferred tax 1" - -
Profit/(loss} for the year (1,649.43) 3.281.10
Other comprebensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans 52.10 (13239
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income {84947) =
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss = -
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) {797.27) {13237
Total comprehensive income for the year {2.446.80) 3.148.73
Earnings per equity share of INR 10 each: 32
Basic (in INR absolute numbers) ©.07) 0.4
Diluted (in INR absolute numbers} ©.07) 0.14
Material accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Deloitte Hasking & Sells
Chartered Accountants

[Firm Registration Number; 0080725)

T o e L

Monisha Parikh
Partner
[Membership Number; 047840)

HARTERED

COUNTANTS

Date: May 19, 2025
Place: Bengaluru

for and on behalf of Board of Directors of Arjas Steel Private Limited
CIM: U27109AP1993PTCO15499

S .A.W&OW
/

Bshirji Ajai Ghorpade

Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 08452644

8

Anand Pasupuleti
Chief Executive Officer

Drate: May 19, 2025
Place: Bengaluru

Uttam Kumar Bhageria
Executive Director
DIN: 10589928

Satyanarayan Mohanty
Company Secretary
Membership No: 22035



Arjas Steel Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

(all unts are rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Notes Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash flow from operating actlvities
Met profit/{loss) before tax {1,649.43) 3,281.10
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expense 30 11,070.62 9,890.98
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 25 (1.26) (16.01)
Property, plant and equipment written off 3 602.98 1,290.12
Income from government grant 25 - (44.24)
Chanyge in fair vafue of financial instruments at FVTPL 25 6.19 -
Accrualf{reversal) of provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory - (485.86)
Advance to vendors written off - 35.04
Lass allowance/(reversal) towards ECL on trade receivable 139.66 86.99)
Provision towards doubtful assets and advances 24185 493
Share based payment to employees 28 577.30 214.62
Finance costs 29 953516 8,874.20
Liabilities no fonger required written back 25 (26.83) 1,121.13)
[nterest income on loans given, balances with banks 25 (185113 (306.74)
Interest income from other deposits 25 (118.26) -
Unrealised foreign currency (gain)/loss (70.43) 573.16
Operating profit before working capital changes 2012244 22,203.28
Adjustments for (increase)/ decrease in operating assets:
Trade receivables 628.99 4,215.75
Inventories 29.338.1D {19.894.04}
Other financial assets (543.71) (2.450.83}
Other current assets 290,68 773.69
Other non-current assets (454.23) [EX{18]:}]
Adjustments for increase/ {decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables {11,976.85) 881219
Provisions 1361} 270.90
Other financial liabilities (709.78) 2,664.16
Other non current liabilities 25834 1,114.44
Other current liabilities 1.488.56 (1,446 87)
Cash generated from operations 3802893 1589169
Direct taxes (paidi/refunded [net) 118.82 (28171}
Net cash flow from operating activities (A} 38,147.75 15,609.98
Cash flow from investing activities
Payments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment induding capital advances {24,680.25) {15,732.49)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 247 294.46
Bank deposits made during the year (4,241,000 {20.00%
Deposits with banks matured and received 44017 {69.97)
Investment in equity shares of Amplus Arjas Solar Private Limited 7 {73478} =
Interest received 385.05 S07.44
Net cash used in investing actlvities (B) (28,828.34} {15,020.56)
Cash flows from financing activities
Praceeds from sale of treasury shares 18 240364 #
Proceeds fram long term borrowings [refer {a} below] 37.366.24 7,052.53
Repayments of long term borrowings [refer (a} below] {42.866.62) (17.570.82}
Proceeds from short term borrowings [net] [refer (a) below] 2484 55 9,900.00
Payment of principal portion of kease liabilities [refer {b) below] {238,643 {184.11)
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities frefer (b) belaw] (65,61} (53.58)
Interest paid (9.377.18) {3,119.81)
Net cash used in financing activities {C) (10,293.82) {9.975.79)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {974.41) {9,286.37)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year {677.29) 8,709.08
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year {1,651.70) {677.29)
Reconciliation of ¢losing balance of cash and cash equivalents to cash and cash equivalents as per C lidated Stat: t of Cash Flows
Cash and cash equivalents 15 114839 2,998.08
Loans repayable on demand from banks (overdraft facilities) 19 (2.800.09) {3,675.37

Cash and cash ivalents as per Ci lidated Stat t of Cash Flows (1,651.70) (677.29)

q




Arjas Steel Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025 [Contd.)
(all amounts are rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Net debt reconciliation . As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Hon-current barrowings 4147945 49,265.56
Current maturities of non current bomowings 8,904.88 6,606.11
Current borrowings 3577682 34,075.37
Lease liabilities 579.61 601.78
Net debt §6,742.76 $0,548.82
{a} Changes in kiabilities arising from financing activities:
Particulars '::::wm;;:t Current borrowings
Balance as at April 1, 2023 £5,824.45 21.,117.12
Cash inflows from short term borrowings [net] - 49,900.00
Cash inflows from averdraft facilities [net] - 3,058.25
Cash inflows from tong term borrowings 7.052.53 -
Cash outflows of Jong term borrowings {17.570.82} -
Mon cash changes

- Fereign exchange adjustments 497.59 -

- Unwinding of interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 68.00

{Effective interast rate method) E
Balance as at March 31, 2024 55,871.67 34,075.37
Cash inflows from short term borrowings [net] - 2,484 55
Cash outflows from overdraft facilities [net] - {907.649)
Cash inflows from long term borrowings 37,366.24 -
Cash outflows of lang term borrowings {42,866.82) -
MNon cash changes

- Interest accrued 119.53 12658

- Unwinding of interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost {106.29)

{Effective interest rate method) =
Balance as at March 31, 2025 50.384.33 35.778.82

The current borrowings as at March 31, 2025 incudes overdraft facilities disclosed as cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, but
disclosed as borrowings in the balance sheet as required under Guidance Mote On Division I - Ind AS Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013. .

{b) Lease liabilities March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 601.78 56528
Nen cash changes
Additions during the year 21647 220.61
Interest on lease liabilities 65.61 53.58
Cash outflow
Payment of principal portion of lease llabilities 238.64 184.1%
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities 65.69 53.58
Closing balance [refer note 58] 579.61 601.78

The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under indirect method in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard {(Ind AS) 7 on
“Statement of Cash Flows”,
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

As per our report of even date

For Deloitte Haskins & Sefls for and on behalf of Board of Directors of Arjas Steel Private Limited
Chartered Accountants CIN; U27109AP1993PTCO15499

[Firm Registration Number. 0080725]

Monisha Parikh Bahirji Ajai Ghorpade Uttam Kumar Bhageria
Partner Chairman and Managing Director Executive Director

{Membership Number: 047840} DIN: (8452844 DIN: 10589923

/7 R L—l e g -~ —
Y &
Anand Pasupudeti ShamGishna Satyanarayan Mohenty

Chief Executive Officer Chief Finandial Officer  Company Secretary
Wembership Ma: 22035

Date: May 19, 2025
Place: Bangaluru

Date: May 19, 2025
Place: Bengaluru
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Company information

Arjas Steel Private Limited (Parent Company or ‘the Comgany) was incorporated on March 16, 1993. The parent company operates a special steel plant situated at
Tadipatri, Andhra Pradesh, which manufactures special steel products has an installed capacity of 3,00.000 tons of special steel per year, mainly focused on
autornotive, defence, railways and related industries. The parent company is a private limited company domiclled in India. The addrass of its principal place of
business and registered office is Tadipatri Mandal, Anantapur vilage, Jambulapadu, Andhra Pradesh - 515 411,

With effect from November 11, 2024, Adjas Steel Private Limited is a subsidiary of The Sandur Manganese & Iron Ores Limited [SMIORE].
The parent company and its immediate subsidiary company (jointly referred to as the ‘Group” hereinafter) considered in these consolidated financial statements are:

|Name of the Company Relationship Country of incorporation Proportion (%) of equity
interest

Arjas Steel Private Limited Parent Company India =

Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited [mmediate Subsidiary Company India 93.99%

Basls of accounting and preparation of consolidated financlal statements

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards {referred to as “ind AS”) notified under the
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (referred to as “Act”) and other relevant
provisions of the Act.

Basis of preparation and presentation

The consolidated financial staterments have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair
value:

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial instruments);

Defined benefits and other long-term employee banefits;

Derivative instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss {FYTPL).

The consofidated financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied consistently in the consolidated
financial statements.

Transactions and balances with values below the rounding off narm adapted by the group have been reflected as 0" in the relevant nates to these consolidated
financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees [INR] unless otheraise stated, the national aurrency of India, which is the functional curency of
the group. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs with two decimals thereof,

Classification of assets and liabilities as current and non-current

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

It is expected to be realised in, or is interx ed for sale or consumption in, the group's normal aperating cycle,

htis held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

Itis expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date, or

Rt is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date,

Liabifities

A liability is dassified as cuent when it satisfies any of the following criteriac

It is expected to be settled in the group’s normal operating cycle,

Ttis held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

Tt is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date, or

The group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at
the option of the counterparty, result in its setilement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are classified a5 non-current only.

Operating cyde

Based on the nature of activities of the group and normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the group has
determined its operating cyde as twelve months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Significant areas of estimation uncertainty, critical judgement, and assumptions in applying accounting pelicies

While preparing consalidated financial staternents in conformity with Ind AS, the group makes certain estimates and assumptions that that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities {including contingent liabilities) at the date of the consolidated financial statemenits and the reported amourts of revenues and
expenses for the reporting period. Financial reporting results rely on the estimate of the effect of certain matters that are inherently uncertain, Future events rarely
develop exactly as forecast and the best estimates require adjustments, as actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions,
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectation of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The management believes that the estimates used in preparation of these consclidated financial statements are prudent
and reasonable. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are

beyond the contral of the group.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. Information about critical

judgement in applying accounting policies as well as estimates and assumptions that have significant effect to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are
included in the accounting policies:

Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies; key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resaurces frefer note 3.9;
Valuation of inventories and inventory obsolescence [refer note 3.5);

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets [refer note 3.4)
Recognition of deferred tax assets [refer note 3,12).

HARTERED

COUNTANTS
[
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2.6 Recent ace ting p t

Ministry of Corporate Affairs {"MCA"} notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standardsy Rules as
issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has nofified Ind AS - 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind AS 116 - Leases, relating to
sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.ef, April 1, 2024. The group has reviewed the new proncuncements and based on its evaluation has
determined that it does not have any significant impact in its consalidated financial staternents.
Material accounting policies

31 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment [PPE] are stated at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated Impairment losses. The initial cost of an asset
comprises its purchase price or construction cost, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset into the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by managerment, the initial estimate of any decommissioning obligation, if any, and, for assets that necessarily take a substantial
peried of time to get ready for their intended use, finance costs. The purchase price ar construction cost is the aggregate amount paid and the fair value of any other
consideration given to acquire the asset. Incomes and expenses related to the incidental operations not necessary to bring the itemn to the location and the condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with experditure will flow to the group.

Interest cost incurred for constructed assets is capitalised up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use, based on borrowings incurred specifically for
financing the asset or the weighted average rate of all other borrowings, if no spedific borrowings have been incurred for the asset

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the group depreciates them separately based an their specific useful lives.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the canrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria
are satisfied, All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in Consolidated Staternent of Profit and Loss as incurred,

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net realisable value and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Consofidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation is calculated on cost of item of property, plant & equipment less their estimated residual valuas using straight line method over estimated useful life {as
determined below) and recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Assets Useful life of asset
Buildings - other than factory buildings 60 years
Factory bwildings 30 years
Other buildings (induding reads and temporary structures} 3 years - 10 years
Plant and machinery {including railway sicings and efectrical installations) § years - 40 years
Computers 3 years - 6 years
Furniture 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Vehicles 8 years

Depreciation method, useful life and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if appropriate.
Depreciation on additions {disposals} is provided on pro-rata basis i.e, from {up to} the date on which assetis ready to use (disposed of).

In line with the provisions of Schedule O of the Companies Act 2013, the group depreciates significant components of the main asset {which have different useful
lives as compared to the main asset) based on the individual useful life of those components, Freehold land is not depreciated.

Capital work-in-progress includes direct cost of property, plant and equipment under installation / under development as at the balance sheet date, related
incidental expenses and atiributable interest,

3.2 Leases

The group's leased asset class consists of leases for office spaces, depots, laptops and vehicles leased for employees. The group assesses whether a contract contains
a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract canveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the group assesses whether:
(i) the coniract irvolves the use of an identified asset
(iiy the group has substantially all of the econamic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and
(iii} the group has the right to direct the use of the asset

At the date of commencement of the lease, the group recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU7) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which
it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and leases of low values. For these For these short-term and low value leases,
the group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease,

Certain lease amangements include the options to axtend or terminate the lease befare the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lgase liabilities includes these
options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised,

The right-of-use assets are inftially recognized at cost, which ¢comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to
the comrencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs and estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underying
asset or the site on which itis located, less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right of use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.
The estimated useful life of the right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment, Right of use assets are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount {i.e, the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not
generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit {CGU)
to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domidile of these leases. Subsequent to initial
measurermnent, the Jiability will be reduced for payrnents made and increased for interest. Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the
related right of use asset if the group changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option,

It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option
or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

On the Consolidated Balance Sheet, right-of-use assets has been disclosed as a separate item and lease liabilities have been included in financial liabilities, The group
has used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.
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3.7

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recogrition at cost. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price including irrecoverable
duties and taxes and any costs directly attributable to making the asset ready for their intended use. Following initial recagnition, intangible assets are carried at cost
lass any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with expenditure will flow to the group.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on straight line basis over their useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at each year
erxl, The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives and impairment loss is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Estimated lives for current and comparative periods in relation to application of straight-fine method of amortisation of intangible assets (acquired) are as follows;

Assets Usaful life of asset

Software S years

{iil) how managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether the compensation is based an the fair value of the assets mana

An intarygible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition
of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal praceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognized in Consofidated
Staternent of Profit and Loss when the assetis derecognised.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Carrying amount of tangible and intangible assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment Jass is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s falr value less costs of dispesal and value in use. The impairment loss is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. When
there is an indication that an impairment loss recognized for an asset (other than revalued asset) in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have
decreased, the canying value of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the increased carrying value does not exceed the
carrying value that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recagnised for the asset in prior years.

In assessing value in use, the estimated futwre cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are considered. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

For the purposes of assessing impainment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets (cash-generating units). Non- financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Inventories

Raw materials, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. However, materials and ather items held for use in the production of inventories
are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of raw materials, stores and
spares are determined on a weighted average basis,

Wark-in-progress, semi-finished goods and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes direct materials, labour, freight inwards,
other direct cost, a proportion of mamrfacturing overheads based on normal operating capadty, net of refundable duties, levies and taxes wherever applicable. Costs
of invertories also include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present Jocation and condition. Costs are assigned to individual items of
inventory based on weighted average. Net realisable value of work in progress is determined with reference to selling prices of refated finished goods.

Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated ¢osts necessary to make the
sale,

Provisions are made towards slow-moving and obsolete ftems based on historical experience of utilisation on a product category basis, which includes the
consideration of product fines and market conditions.

Statement of cash flows and cash and cash equivalents

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profits/(loss) before tax is adjusted for effects of transactions of a non-cash/non-operating nature.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the group are segregated.

For the purpose of presentation in the Consalidated Staterment of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivatents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions, other short-term highly liquid investments with ariginal maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Financial Instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial Kiabilities are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
arxt financial liabilities (other than financial assets and finandial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Assessment of business model

The group determines the business model at a Jevel that reflects how financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective, The group's
business model does not depend on management's intentions for an individual instrument; therefore, the business model assessment is performed at a higher level
of aggregation rather than on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

The group considers all relevant information available when making the business model assessment. The group takes into account all relevant evidence available
such as:

{iy how the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that busi model are eval 1 and reported to the group's key management

personnel;

{ii) the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and in particutar, the way in which those risks

are managed; and
the contractual cash flows

collected).
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Financlal Instruments [Contd.]
Solely payments of principal and interest ['SPPT] test

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the group determines whether newly recognised financial assets are part of an existing business model or whather they
reflect a new business model. The group reassesses its business models each reporting period to determine whether the business models have changed since the
preceding period,

For an asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost, its contractual terms showld give rise to cash flows that meets the SPPI test on the principal
outstanding. For the purpose of SPPI test, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recogmition. That principal amount may change over the life of the
financial asset. Interest consists of consideration for the time value of maney, for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular
period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a profit margin. The SPPI assessment is made in the currency in which the financial asset is
dencninated. In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of prindipal and interest, the group considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such
that it would not meet the delinition. In making this assessment, the group considers:

(i) Contingent events that would change the amount of timing of cash flows;
{ii) Terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, incdluding variable interest rate features;
{iii) Prepayments and extensian feature and;
(i) Termns that limit the group's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g., non-recourse features).

Financial assets: Subsequent t and gains and losses

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The amartized cost is reduced by impairment losses, Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments at FW¥OU

Al equity instruments are measured at fair value, Equity instruments held for trading is classified as FYTPL For all other equity instruments, the group may make an
imevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value in OCL The group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis,

I the group decides to ¢lassify an equity instrurnent as FVTOC], then all fair value changes on the instrument. excluding dividend are recognised in OCL There is no
recycling of the amount from OCI to Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of the instrument. However the group may transfer curnufative gain or
loss within the equity.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)

Any financial instrement, which does not meet the criteria for categorsation as at amortised cost or as VO, is dassified as at FVTPL This includes all derivative
financial assets. On initial recognition, the group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measwred at amortized cost
or at FvQd as at FYTPLif doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting/ mismatch that otherwise would arise,

Financial assets: Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e, removed from the
group’s balance sheet} when:

{i} the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
{ii} the group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to

a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement. and either:
a4} the group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
by) the group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the group applies expected credit loss (ECL') model for measurement and recognition of impairment boss on financial assets.

ECL is the difference between all comtractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the group expects to
receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial asset. 12-month ECL are a portion of the [ifetime ECL which result from default events that are possible within 12 months from
the reporting date. ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased, and probability weighted amounts determined by a range of outcornes, taking into
account the time value of money and other reasonable information available as a result of past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

As a practical expedient, the group uses a provision matrix to measure lifetime ECL on its portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is prepared based on
historicatly observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At each reporting date, the historically
observed default rates and changes in the forward-looking estimates are updated. For financial assets other than trade receivables, if credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month expected credit loss is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime expected credit loss is
used,

Financial assets that are debt instruments are measured at amortized cost, g, loans, deposits and bank balances. The gross camying amount of financial assets are
written off when the group has no reasanable expectations of recovering the entire financial asset or a portion thereof, The financial assets written off are still subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Trade recelvables

The group follows a ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component.
The application of simplified approach does not require the group to track changes in ¢redit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime
ECL at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

Financial liabilitles

The group classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost or FYTPL A financial liability is classified at FYTPL if it is classified as held-for-
trading, or it is a derivative or itis designated as such on initial recognition, Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognized in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

The group’s financial liabifities include trade and other payables, Joans and borrowings, including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.
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3.8

Financial Instruments [Contd.]

Derlvative instruments
The group holds derivative financial instruments that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Derivatives are
initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to the initial recognition, derivatives are d at fair value and changes therein are recognised in Consolidated

Statement of Profit and Loss. Derfvatives are carmied as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when fair value is negative.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cast using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses
are recagnized in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and bomrawings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate [EIR] method. Gains and
losses are recognized in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The HR armortization is incduded as finance costs in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to interest bearing loans and borrowings.

Financial guarantes contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the group are those cantracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a lass it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a

liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher
of the amaunt of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind-AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Financial llabllitles: Derecognition
The group de-recognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expired, When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantialy modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and recognition of
a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss.
Fair value measurernent
The group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
of paid to transfer a liability in an ordery transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

iy in the principal market for the asset or fiability, or

{ii} in the absence of a prindpal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantagecus market must be accessible by the group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial staternents are categorised within the fair vaue hierarchy,
desoibed as follows, based on the lowest leved input that Is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

{i) Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

{ii) Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest leved input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
it} Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recuring basis, the group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or
liability and the tevel of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial fiabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, the forgign exchange
gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and transtated at the spot rate at the end of the
reporting period.

Barrowing cost

Borrawing costs directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or praduction of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its intended
use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as
an adjustment to the barrowing costs. Interest income eamed on the temparary investrent of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

The group shall cease capitalising borrowing ¢osts when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active
development activity on the qualifying asset is interrupted.
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Provislons, contingent liabilities, contingent assets

Provisions in respect of loss contingendies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. are recognised when the group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying ecanomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted
to reflect the curvent best estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources wauld be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Where there are several similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole, A provision is recognised even if the kkelihood of an outflaw with respect to any one item included in the same dass of obligations may be small,

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required 1o settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
periad if the effect of time value of money is material, i the effect of the fime value of money is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its present value using
a current pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the pagsage of time is recognised as a finance cost
Provisions for restructuring are recognised by the group when it has developed a detailed formal plan for restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those
affected that the group will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. The measurement of
provision for restructuring includes only direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not
associated with the ongoing activities of the group.
Contingent liabilities are disctosed in the case of:

a} a present obligation arising from the past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;

b) a present obligation arising from the past events when no reliable estimate is possible;

¢) & possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the group.
The group does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the consolidated financial staterments,
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is
virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Employee benefits
(i} Short-term obligations
Short term employee benefits are recognised as an expense at an undiscounted amount in the Consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which the
related services are rendered. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the group has a present, legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amounit as a result of past service provided by the employee and abligation can be estimated reliably.
(i) Post-employment obligatiors
The group operates the following post-employment schemes:
a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity; and
b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity obligations

The liability or asset recognised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by a qualified independent actuary using the
projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. When the calculation results in
a potential asset for the group, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contribution to the plan.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the Fair value of plan assets. This cost is
included in employee benefit expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised at amount net of taxes in the period in
which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained eamnings in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

When benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognized immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. The group recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when
the setfement occurs.

Defined contribution plans

The group makes specified monthly contribution towards provident and pension fund to publicly administered provident funds as per lacal regulations. The group
has na further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The confributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which services are provided by the employee. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

{iiiy Other long-term employee benefit obligations [compensated absences]

The liabilities for leave are not expected to be settied wholly within 12 manths after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are
therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period
using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting pericd that have terms approximating to the
terms of the related obligation, Re-measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabifities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet of the group as group does not have an unconditional right to defer its
settlernent for at least 12 months after reporting date.
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Employse benefits [Contd.)

{v} Share based payment arangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
Details regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-setted share-based transactions are set out in note 44.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
group estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a comresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting year, the group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Lass such that the cumullative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustrent to the equity settled share based payment reserve.
For share based payment award with non-vesting condition, the grant date fair value of the share based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is
no true up for actual and expected outcomes.

The group has created an Employee Benefit Trust [trust] for providing share-based payment to its employees. The group uses the trust as a vehicle for distributing
shares to employees under the employee remuneration schemes. The trust buys shares of the group for giving shares to employees. The group treats trust as its
extension and shared held by the trust are treated as treasury shares.

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the Consolidated
Staternent of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the group own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the
consideration, if reissued, is recognised in securities premium.

Revenue recognition

Sale of goods or services

The group recognizes revenue when control over the promised goods or services is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue from sale of goods is measured at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable (after including fair value allocations related to mwltiple defiverables and/or linked arangements) net of returns, goods and service tax, applicable
discounts, refunds, rebates, allowances and charge backs or ather similar iters in a contract when they are highly probable to be provided,

The group has genesally conduded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements as it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the
customer.

The group recognises revenue generally at the point in time when the products are delivered to customer or when it is delivered to a cartier for export sales, which
the group has determined is when physical possession, legal title and risks and rewards of ownership of the products transfer to the customer and the group is
entitled to payment. The timing of the transfer of risks and rewards varies depending on individual terms of the sales agreements.

In revenue arrangements with multiple performance obligations, the group accounts for individual products and services separately if they are distinct - ie, if a
product or service is separately identifiable from other items in the arrangement and if a customer can benefit from it The consideration is allocated between
separate products and services in the arrangement based on their consolidated selling prices. Revenue from sale of by products are included in revenue.

Contract balances
(i) Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the group performs by transferring goods or services to
a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration.

{ii} Contract liabilities

A contract hability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer, If a customer pays consideration before the group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the
payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the group performs under the contract.

Interest incame

Interest income from debt instruments and bank deposits is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amaunt of a financial asset When calculating the
effective interest rate, the group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

In calculating interest income, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross camying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or 10 the
amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the amartised cost of the financial asset If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts

to the gross basis.

Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the group, and the amount of the dividend can be d reliably,

Income tax

Income tax consists of current and defeired tax, Income tax expense is recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to
itens recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Cumrent tax

Tax on income for the curent period is determined on the basis on estimated taxable income and tax credits computed in accordance with the provisions of the
relevant tax laws and based on the expected outcome of assessments / appeals.

Current tax is recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate 1o iterns that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate,

The current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amount and it is intended to realise the asset and
liability on a net basis.
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Income tax [Contd.)

Deferved tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the cany forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent there is convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,

The carmying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss is recognised outside the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in cther comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The temporary differences in velation to right of use assets and lease liability for specific leases are regarded as a net package for the purpose of recogmising
deferred tax,

Deferved tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if:

() alegally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and;

{ii} the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

Earnings per share

The group repoits basic and diluted eamnings per share in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 33 = “Earnings Per Share”, Basic earnings per share is
calculated by dividing the net profit or loss after tax for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares autstanding
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the
year, Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year adjusted with interest/dividend
on convertible instruments by weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number of equity
shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Forelign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are transiated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the setfement of such transactions and from the trangdation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Fareign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to bomawing costs, if any, are presented in the Consofidated Statement of Profit and Loss, within finance
costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Consalidated Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other gains / (losses).

Foreign exchange differences on long term foreign currency monetary items, such as borrowings, solely relating to acquisition of depreciable assets are adjusted to
the carrying cost of the assets. In all other cases, the group recognises such differences in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reparting date are translated into the foreign currency at the exchange rate of the reporting
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign cumency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions,

Gavernment grante and incentives

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the group will comply with the conditions attached to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recegnised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on 2 systematic basis over the years in which the group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate or when performance obligations are met. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as
an income on a systematic basis over the expected useful life of the related asset,

In case of grants that compensate the group for expenses incurred are recognised in Consolidated Staterent of Profit and Loss as other income on a systematic
basis in the periods in which the expenses are recognised, unless the conditions for receiving grant are met after the related expenses have been recognised. In this
case grant is recognised when it becomes receivable.

Onerous contracts

A proviston for onerous contract is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the group from a contract are Jower than the unavoidable cost of
meeting its obligation under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the
expected net cost of continuing with the contract Before a provision is established, the group recognises any impairment oss on assets associated.
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Arjas Steel Private Limited
Notes to consolidated finandial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 [Contd.]

all ts are rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)
7 Goodwill As at
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Balance at beginning of the year 447.15 447.15
Balance at end of the year 447.15 447.15

The above ‘Goodwill' is an asset representing the future economic benefits arising from other assets acquired in a business combination by irwmediate subsidiary
company that is not individually identified and hence separately recagnised. I represents an intangible asset acquired that meets neither the separability criterion nor
the contractuat-legal criterion at the date of acquisition. The Gaodwill recognized is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

The recaverable amount has been determined based on value in use. Valug in use has been determined based on future cash flows, after considering cumrant economic
conditions and trends, estimated future operating results, growth rates and anticipated future economic conditions of the immediate subsidiary company. As at March
31, 2025, the estimated cash flows for a period of five years were developed using intemal forecasts, and a pre-tax discount rate of 15.20% [March 31, 2024: 16.48%]. The
cash flows beyond five years have been extrapolsted assurming 4% long-term growth rates. The management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key
assumptions would not cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit

8 Investments As at
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Investments in equity inst ts ed at fair value through other comprehensive income]
Unquoted investments
Shares of Andhra Pradesh Gas Power Corporation Limited (APGPCL) 12,59,600 equity shares [March 31, 84947 84947
2024: 12,59,600 equity shares) of face value INR 10/- gach fully paid up]
Less: Impairmenit loss recagnised in other comprehensive income [refer note batow] 849.47) -
Shares of Amplus Arjas Solar Private Limited 70,08,227 equity shares [March 31, 2024: Nil] of face value 734.78 =
INR 10/- sach hully paid up
Total 724,78 849.47
The Company has re-assessed the recoverability during the year and has fully impaired the investments made in APGPCL.
o Trade receivables As at
[carried at amortised cost until otherwise stated] March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Trade receivables - Unsecured, considered good 37.521.28 38,7T14.06
Trade receivables - Creditimpaired - 18.21
37,521.28 38,732.27
Allowance for expected credit loss {190.65) (76.12)
Total 37.330.63 38_.655.1 5

Trade receivables have been pledged as security against bank borrowings, the terms relating to which have been described in note 19
The group does not have any debts due by directors, other officers of the group or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person or debts due by firms or
private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or & member.

Movement in the sx redit loss allowance As at
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Balance at beginning of the year (76.12) (193.00)
Loss reversal/Gallowance) on trade recefvable (139.66) 86.99
Ltilisation of allowance 2513 29.28
Ealance at end of the year {190.65) 76.12)
The group's expasure to credit risk and currency risk and loss allowance related to trade receivable are disclosed in note 35
There are no disputed trade receivables as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024
Ageing as at March 31, 2025
[¢] ding for the following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not due Less than & 6 months to 1 12 2.3 More than 3 Total
months year years -3 yoars years
Undisputed trade receivables
- considered good 17,66240 19,666.21 93.76 61.19 339 381 37.521.28
- credit impaired - - - - - - -
Total 17,662.40 19,666.21 93.76 61.19 33 3.01 37,521.28
Less: Allowance for expected credit bosses (190.65)
Total 37,330.63
Ageing as at March 31, 2024
Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not due Less than 6 6 months to 1 3 More than 3 Total
th year 1-2 yaars -3 years years
Undisp i trade receivabl
- considered good 21,184.29 17.272.02 113,04 141,58 313 - 38,714.06
~ credit impaired - 6.94 217 842 0.68 = 18.21
Total 21,184.29 17,278.96 115.21 150.00 3.81 - 38,732.27
Less: Allowance for expected cradit losses [76.12)
Total 38,656.15
10 Other financial assets Hon current Current
[carvied at amortised cost until otherwise stated) As at As at
March 31,2025  March 31,2024  March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Unsecured, considered good
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity [refer note (i) 5.296.66 1,573.74 100.84 -
Advances to employees - - 10.96 -
Security deposits [refer note (i} 147.53 131.60 136.20 177.17
Total 544419 1,705.34 248.00 17717

{) Bank deposits have been pledged as security against bank borrowings, the terms relating to which have been described in note 19 amounting to [NR 4,928.33 lakh
|March 31, 2024: INR 1,155.99 lakh) and deposits amounting to INR 469.17 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 417.75 lakh] are in lien against bank guarantees.

{il) Security deposits are prirnarily in relation to rental agreements and eamest money deposits.

The group's exposure to credit risk and currency risk and loss allowance related to other financial assets are disclosed in note 35




Arjas Steel Private Limited
Noates to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 [Contd.]

{all amounts are rupees in lakh, unless otherwlse stated)
11 Deferred tax assets (net) As at
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Deferred tax asset
Unabsorbed depreciation / business loss as per income tax [refer (i} betow] 882959 12,152.60
Provisions and othars 1,097 .86 771.03
ECL on trade receivables and other financial assets 26.00 83615
Other financial fiabilities [refer nota (i) 32411 31347
Deferred government grant - 13914
Fair value changes on equity instruments through other comprehensive income 296.84 -
10.634.40 14,212.39
Deferred tax liability
Property, plant & equipment 10,278.78 13,876.60
Idifference between carrying value as per books of account and written down value as per income tax]
Borrowings .27 4111
Right of use assets 210,38 226.04
Impairment reversal of property plant and equipment and CWIP - 203
Other financial assets 48.77 78.48
Remeasurament of emplayee benefit expenses [items of OCI) 18.20 {12.87)

10,634.40
Net deferred tax assets/ ({liabilities) 2

14,212.39

{i} This is restricted to the extent of deferred tax liabilities because of lack of convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available
unabsorbed depreciation or unused tax losses can be utilised by the Company.
{ii) Other financial liabilities includes deferred tax asset computed on lease hiability, derivative liability and other accruals

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:
Significant components of deferred tax assets/liabilities) recognised in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

against which such

Recognised/
, — reversed through As at
Setercesioxiniaricelavsiation]is March 31,2024 ri::‘:'::’l':;fw March 31, 2025
od

Property, plant and equipment (13.876.60} 359782 {10,278.78)
Borrowings {application of effectiva interest rate method) {4111} (37.18) (78.27)
Right of use assets {226.04) 15.66 (210.38)
Other financial assets (79.48) 30.71 {48.77)
Remeasuremant of employee benefit expenses [items of OCI] 12.87 {31.07) {18.20)
Carried forward business loss/unabsorbed depreciation 12,152.60 {3.323.00 8,828.59
Impairment reversal of property plant and equipment and CWIP {2.03) 203 -
Provisions and others 771.03 32683 1.097.86
ECL on trade receivables and ather financial assets 836.15 (750.15) 86,00
Other financial liabilities [refer (i) above] 31327 1064 32411
Deferred government grant 135,14 (139.14) -
Fair value changes on equity instruments through other comprehensive income [itams of QCI) - 296.84 296.84
Total - -

Recognised/

. . As at reversed through As at
Deferred tax balance in relation to March 31, 2023 " ms‘tfai:n':l:den'::sfm March 31, 2024
ocl

Property, plant and equipment (14,449.54) 57294 {13,876.60)
Borrowings (application of effective interest rate method) (64,87} 23.76 {41.11)
Right of use assets (222.37) {3.67) (226.04)
Other financial assets (200.00) 12052 (79.48)
Remeasurement of employes benefit expenses [items of OCI) 72.46 (59.59) 12.87
Carried forward business loss/unabsorbed depraciation 12.817.59 (664.99) 1215260
Impairment reversal of property plant and equipment and CWIP {2.24) 0.21 (203
Pravisions and others 67464 96.39 771.03
ECL on trade receivables and other financial assets 875.91 (39.76) 836,15
Other financial labilities {refer (i) above] 33841 (24.94) 31347
Deferred government grant 154.60 {15.46} 139.14
Written down value of inventory 541 {5.41) <

Total 3




Arjas Steql Private Limited
Motes to consolidated financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 [Contd.]

(all amounts are rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)

11 Deferred tax assets (net} [Contd.]

Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised as follows:

Expiry date Expiry date
March 31, 2025 [ﬁmu'?al year]  Morch 31,2024 [F.mm'?al -l
1 Business Josses which expire 2376 2026-29 2376 2028-29
15357 2029-30 15357 2029-30
348025 2030-31 348025 2030-31
158.78 2031-32 32998 2031-32
3,002.18 2032-33
I Unabsarbed depreciation 95,560.53 85,455.24
[this will not expire under Indian tax laws]
1,02,372.07 8944280
Income tax in C lidated Stat of Profit and Loss and other comprehensive incomae ks nil. Reconciliation of effective tax rate is as below
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Profit before tax {1,649.43} 3.281.10
Enacted tax rate in India 34.94% 34.94%
Expected income tax expense at statutory tax rate (576.38) 1,146.55
Carried forward business loss/unabsorbed deprediation {1,149.66} (2.916.90}
Deductible expenses where deferred tax asset is not recognised In subsidiary 132530 37312
Other non-deductible expenses 400,73 761.29
Other temporary differences - £35.95
Current tax for the year = 3
12 Income tax assets {net) As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Tan deducted at source receivable 633.97 752.79
633.97 752.79
13 Other current and non current assets Non current Currant
As at as at
March 31,2025  March 31,2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unsacured, considered good
Capital advances 75511 141556 ] ]
Advances other than capital advances
Deposit with statutory autheorities 205921 1.797.14 - -
Electricity deposit 1,658.99 1,464.40 9747 114.61
Water and other depasits - - 12973 150.74
Advances to parties other than related parties
Advances to suppliers - - 1,244 49 1.188.38
Advances to employees - - 28.14 2872
Balances with government authorities 1647 1647 355.02 S07.30
Prepaif expenses 24.27 39.00 593.10 65033
Govarnment grant [refer note 45) 398.19 61203 - -
4912.24 5,344.60 244795 263608
Unsecurad, considered doubtful -

Government grant and security deposit 21384 227018 - -
Less: Provision for doubtful assets (213.84) 12,270.16) = -
Advance to vendors 1230 - 62,6 46.54
Less; Loss allowance towards ECL on advances (12.30) - (62.16} (46.54}

4,912.24 5.344.60 2.447.95 2,636.08

Current assets have been pledged as security against bank borrowings, the tarms relating to which have been described in note 19,

14 Inventories As at

March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Raw materials {incuding goods-in-transit armounting to INR 48.47 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 124.69 lakh]) 16809317 2123647
Work-in-progress 2.560.79 2,136.39
Finished goods (including goads-in-transit amounting to INR 3,629.35 lakh [March 31, 2024; INR 4,403.77 lakh]} 26/026.67 23.626.77
Sarmi finished goods 10,330.97 37,526.09
Stores and spares 6,253.95 807593
Total inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value) 63.265.55 92,603.65

Inventories have been pledged as security against bank borrowings, the terms relating to which have been described in note 19
Value of inventories above is stated after provisions INR 1,545.64 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR, 1,267.17 lakh] for slow moving and obsolete items and TNR Nil [March 31,
2024; INR 77.57 lakh] for written down value of inventories. The movement of provision are included in cost of materials consumed and changes ini

goods, work-in-progress and semi finished goads respectively.

tories of finished




Arjas Steel Private Limited
Nates to consolidated financlal statemants for the year ended March 31, 2025 [Contd.]

(all smounts are rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)

15 Cash and cash equivalents As at
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Cash on hand 1.66 191
Balances with banks
On current accounts 1.146.73 2,996.17
1,148.39 2,998.08
There are no restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of reporting period
16 Bank balances other than cash snd cash equivalents As at
March 21, 2025  March 31, 2024
Balances with banks
Bank deposits with original maturity more than 3 months and less than 32 menths from the reporting date - 35.57
= 35.57
Bank deposits amounting to INR Nil [March 31, 2024: INR 35.57 [akh] are in lien against bank guarantees,
Refer note 10 for details of bank deposits with maturity greater than 12 months.
17 Equity share capital As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Authorised share capital :
2.90.00.00,000 [March 31, 2024 2,90,00,00,000) equity shares of INR 10/- each 2,30.000.00 2,90,000.00
2,90,000.00 2,90,000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up capital comprises :
2,40,20,79,056 [March 31, 2024 2,40,20,79,056] equity shares of INR 10/-each, fully paid 240.207.91 24020791
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 2.40,207.91 2,40,207.91
(a} Reconciliation of shares outstanding at beginning of the year and at end of the year
As at
Equity shares March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
No. of shargs Amount No. of shares Amount
Balance at beginning of the year 2,40,20,79.056 240,207.91 240,20.79,056 240,207 91
Add; Issued during the year = s - -
Balance at end of the year 2,40.20,79,056 2,40.207.91 2,40,20,79,056 2.40,207.91

(b) Rights, preference and restrictions attached to shares induding restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of capital:
Equity shares: The parent has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share, Bach holder of aquity shares is entitled o one vate per share.
The dividends, when declared, are paid in Indian Rupees. The distribution of dividend {f any} is in the proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders,
In the event of liquidation, the liquidator may, with the sanction of a special resolution of the group and any other sanction required by the Act, divide amongst the
members, the whole or any part of the assets of the group, whether they shall consist of property of the same kind or not.

(€} Details of shara holders hokding mare than 5% shares in the parent company

Asat
Mame of the shareholder March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
Mo, of sh % of holding Mo. of shares % of holding
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid
The Sandur Manganese & Iron Cres Limited [from Movermnber 11, 2024] 2,37.65,12.826 92.94% - -
Blue Coral Investment Holdings Pte Ltd ¥ CIA SRC, Spain [up to Movember 10, - - 2,34,79,27,245 97.75%
2024]

{d) Mo shares have been allotted without payment baing received in cash or by way of bonus shares during the pericd of five years immediately preceding the balance
sheet date. Further there are no shares reserved for issus under contracts or commitments for the sale of shares or dishvestment.

(e) Details of equity sh held by Pr b As at
Promoter Name March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Mo of shares % of total shares % change during Mo of shares % of total shares % change during
the year the year
The Sandur Manganese & Iron Ores 2,37,65,19,836 98.94% 100,00% - - -
Lirnited
Blue Coral Inwestment Holdings Pte Ltd Y - - 100.00% 2,34,79,27,245 91I5% 1.00%
L4 SRC, Spain

{f) During the year, The Sandur Manganese & Iron Ores Limited [SMEORE) entered into Share Purchase Agreement [SPA] and acquired 2,37,65,18,836 equity shares of
the parant company. The SPA consummated on November 11, 2024 and consequently the parent company has become subsidiary of SMIORE.




Arsjas Steef Private Limited
Hotes to ¢ fidated fi ial stat for the year ended March 31, 2025 [Contd,]

{all amounts are rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)
As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

18 Other equity

Retained earnings (1,58,654.47) (1.56,207.67)
Capital redemption reserve 427115 427115
Securities premium account 31,643.44 3020152
Treasury share reserve - 961.73)
Equity setled share based payment reserve = 37270
Capital contribution vide interest free loan 141220 1412.20
Capital contribution vide 0.1% non-cumulative optionally convertible redegmable prefersnce shares 1,461.23 1,461.23
!1519.366.45! ,19,450.60}
Retained eamings
Balance at beginning of the year {1.56,207.67} {1,59,356.40)
Prafit/{loss) for the year {1,649.43) 3,281.10
TItems of other comprehensive income:
Fair value changes on equity instruments thraugh other comprehensive income 849.47) -
Resarve for remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 52.10 (13237
Balance at end of the year (1,58,654.47) (1,56,207.67)
Capital redemption reserve
Balance at beginning of the year 427115 427115
Movement during the year - -
Balance at end of the year 4,271.15 4.271.15
Securities premium account
Balance at beginning of the year 30,201.52 30,201.52
Movement during the year [refar note 44] 1.441.92 -
Balance at end of the year 31,643.44 30.201.52
Treasury share reserve
Balance at beginning of the year (964.73} (961.73)
Derecognised upon sale of treasury shares {refer note 44] 961.73 -
Balance at end of the year - {961.73)
Equity settled share based paymaent resarve
Balance at beginning of the year 37270 158.08
Movement during the year [refer note 44] (372.70) 214.62
Balance at end of the year - 372.70
Capital contribution vide interest free toan
Balance at beginning of the year 141220 141220
tovement during the year - -
Balance at and of the year 1,412.20 1412.20
Capital contribution vide 0.1% non-cumulative optionally convertible rede¢mable preferance shares
Balance at beginning of the year 14561.23 1,461.23
Movement during the year - -
Balance as at end of the year 1,461.23 1,461.23
Total other equity {1.19,866.45) (1,19.450.60)

Mature of reserves
Ratained earnings are the profits that the group has earned till date [including amaunts recognised in OCI), less any transfers to general resarve, dividends or other

distributions paid to sharsholders, Retained eamings are free reserve available to the group.

Capital redemption reserva is created for redemption of preference shares as per statutory requirement. This reserve would be utilised in accordance with the specific
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Securities premium is the amount receved in excess of face value of the equity shares. This reserve is utilised in accordance with the specific provisions of the
Companigs Act, 2013,

Treasury share reserves comprises the cost of the company's shares held by Arjas Employee Benefit Trust At March 31, 2025, the trust held Nil [March 31, 2024
330,30,682] of the parent company's shares,

Equity settled share based payment reserve is the share-based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of equity settled share-based payments provided to
employees [refer note 44],

Capital contribution vide interast frea loan represents the difference between nominal value (actual amount received) of the interest iree loan and the fair value on
initial recognition. Since the loan was provided in the capacity of a shareholder, the parent company has accounted for resulting credit as a capital contribution disclosed
in the manner as stated above in line with the requirements of the reporting framework. Accordingly, there is no specific purpose for utilisation with respect to this
amount

Capital contribution vide 0.1% non-c lati ionall rtible red ble preference shares represents the difference between nominal value (actual
amount received) of the preference shares and the falr value on initial racognition. Since the investment in prefarenca shares was made in the capacity of a shareholder,
the parent company has accounted for resulting credit as a capital contribution disclosed in the manner as stated above in line with the requirements of the reporting

framework. Accordingly, there is ne specific purpose for utilisation with respect to this amount.




Arjas Steel Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financlal statements for the year anded March 31, 2025 [Contd.]

{all mits are rupees in lakh, unless otherwlise stated)
19 Bomrowings Non current Current
As at As at

March 31,2025  March 31,2024  March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Secured at amortised co:
Laans from other than related parties:
Termn boans [refer (2), (b) and {c) below] 4147945 1341478 890488 6,606,11
Working capital demand loan (refer {d) below] - - 32,578.73 30,400.00
Loans repayable on demand from banks {overdraft schedule) [refer {d) below] - - 2,80009 3,675.37
Unsecured at amortised cost;
Loans from related party [refer (e} below]
External commercial borrowings from Blue Coral Investment Holdings Pte Ltd = 35,850.78 - -

41,473.45 49@65.56 44,683.T0 40,681.48

The detalls of security and repayment of securad term loans are as follows:

Security

Interest and repayment terms

@) L. ICICI Bank Limited

i) First pari passu charge on all the immovable and movable properties.

ii) Second pari-passu charge over present and future current assats.

iii) Charge on DSRA or lien over interest bearing fixed deposits.

iv) Mon-disposable undertaking to the extent of controlling stake held by
immediate hetding company,

During the year the Company obtained No Objection Certificate from the bank for
transfer of its shares held by Blue Coral Investment Holdings Pte Ltd ¥ CTA SRC,
Spain to SMIORE.

i) Term loan of INR 182,91 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 487.74 lakh] is repayable
- 4 quarterly instalments of INR. 45.73 lakh from May'2025 to Feb'2026
i} Term boan of INR 236.74 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR £31.32 lakh)] is repayable
= 4 quarterly instalments of INR 59.19 lakh from May'2025 to Feb'2026
iii) Tarm loan of INR 451,69 lakh [March 31, 2024: INF, 1,204.51 lakh] Is repayable
- 4 quarterly instalments of INR 112.92 lakh from May'202% to Feb'2026
iv) Term boan of INR 18,000.00 lakh is repayable [March 31, 2024: Nil]
- 1stinstaiment of INR 72000 lakh in Mov2025
- B quarterly instalments of INR 450.00 lakh from Feb'2026 to Now'2027
- 16 quarterly instalments of INR 67500 lakh from Feb'2028 to Nov'2031
- 4 quarterly instalments of INR 720.00 lakh from Feb'2032 to Nov'2032
v) Rate of interest on all loans vary froen MCLR-3M to MCLR-1Y+Spread ranging
9.25%- 9.60% per annum [March 31, 2024: 8.75%- 9.60% per annurm]
vi) The closing balance of the bormowings is net of unamortised cost of TNR
16540 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 599 lakh] and interest accrued of INR 1437
lakh [March 31, 2024: Nill.

a) IL ICICI Bank Limited

i} First pari passu charge on all the immovable and movable properties.

il} Second pari-passu charge over present and future current assets.

iy Charge on DSRA or lien over interest bearing fixed deposits.

iv} Borrower to maintain minimum security cover of 1.25x throughout the tenure of
the facility.

v) Non-disposable undertaking to the extent of controlling stake held by parent
company.

i) Non disposal/repayment of INR 1,600 lakh taken from the parent company.

vii) Corporate guarantee from the parent company.

iy Term loan of INR 1.312.50 lakhs [March 31, 2024: INR 2,187.50 lakhs] is
repayable in 6 quarterly instalments of INR 21675 lakhs frorn Jun'2025 to
Sep'2026

i) Term loan of INR 109275 lakhs [March 31, 2024: INR 1,718,75 lakhs] is
repayable in 7 quarterly instalments of INR 15625 lakhs from May'2025 to
MNov'2026

jii} Rate of interest on all koans are MCLR-1Y+5pread ranging 9.65% - 9.75% per
annum [March 31, 2024: 9.05% - 9.75% per annum)

iv) The clasing balance of the barrowings is net of unamartised cost of INR 7.82
lakhs [March 31, 2024; INR 20,24 lakhs] and interest accrued of INR. 193 lakhs

b) Axis Bank Limited

i} First pari passu charge on all the immovable and movable properties.
i) Second pari-passu charge owver present and future current assets

iii) Charge on DSRA or lien over interest bearing fixed deposits

1) Term loan of INR 17,499.93 lakh [March 31, 2024: Nil] is repayable
- 1stinstalment of INR 699.93 lakh in Nov'2025
« 8 quarterly instalments of INR 437.50 lakh from Feb'2026 to Nov'2027
- 16 quarterly instalmants of INR 656.25 lakh from Feb'2028 to Nov'2031
- 4 quarterly instalments of INR 7000 Jakh from Feb'2032 to Nav'2032

F\a‘larch 31, 2024: Nill.

i) Rate of interest is MCLR-1Y+Spread ranging currently at 9.25% per annum.

¢) 1. HDFC Bank Limited

i) First pari passu charge on ail the immovable and movable properties.

i} Second pari-passu charge over present and future current assets.

iiiy Mon-disposable undertaking to the extent of controlling stake held by
immediate holding company.

During the year the Company obtained No Objection Certificate from the bank for
transfer of its shares held by Blue Coral Investment Holdings Pte Ltd ¥ CLA SRC,
Spain to SMIORE.

i) Term loan is INR. 9.523.71 lakh for the current year [March 31, 2024: 10471.20
lakh] is repayable in 13 quarterly jnstalments of INR 73259 lakh from Apr2025
to Apr2028

i) Rate of interest on all loans is as mutually agreed, for the current period it is
ranging 9.75% - 10.10% per annum [March 31, 2024; 9.40% - 9.80% per annum]

iiiy The dosing balance of the borrowings is net of unamortised cost of INR
43.79 lakh [March 31, 2024, 70.99 lakh] and intarest accrued of INR 81.71 lakh
[March 31, 2024: Nill.

¢} I, HDFC Bank Limited

il First pari passu charge on all the immovable and movable properties.

iit Second pari-passu charge over present and future current assets.

jiiy Charge on DSRA or lien aver interest bearing fixed deposits,

ivi Borrower to maintain minknum security cover of 1.25x throughout the tenure of
the facility.

v) Non-disposable undertaking to the extent of controlling stake held by parent
Qompany.

vi) Non disposal/repayment of IMR 2,330 lakh taken from parent company.

vii) Carporate guarantee from parent company.

i) Term boan of INR 2,187.50 lakhs [March 31, 2024: INR 3437.50 lakhs] is
repayable in 7 quarterly instalments of INR 312,50 lakhs from Jun'2025 to
Dec'2026.

ii) Rate of interest on all loans are 3M MCLR+100 bps ranging 18.15% - 10.30%
per annum [March 31, 2024: 9.50% - 10.15% per annum]

jii) The closing balance of the borrowings is net of unamortised cost of INR 6.92
lakhs [March 31, 2024: INR 15.41 lakhs] and interest accrued of INR 21.52 lakhs
[March 37, 2024: Nil).
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19 Borrowings [Contd.]
d) The group has the following working capital facilities from;

(all amounts are rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)

{iy ICIQ Bank Limited - INR 14,950.00 fakh [March 31, 2024: INR 12,500.00 lakh]; interest rate 8.7% to 9.01% per annum [March 31, 2024; interest rate 8.25% to

9.03% per annum] and includes accrued interest of INR 1.79 lakh [March 31, 2024: Nil].

{iiy HDFC Bank Limited - INR $,000,00 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 14,000.00 lakh]; interest rate 8.52% to 10.25% per annum [March 31, 2024: interest rate 8.24%

10 9.32% per annum] and indudes accrued interest of INR 66.89 lakh [March 31, 2024).

{iii} HSBC Limited - INR 8,934.55 lakh [March 31, 2024: 3.900:00 lakh); interest rate B.75% 10 9.55% per annum [March 31, 2024: interest rate 9.20% per annum)]

and includes acerued interest of INR 25.50 lakh (March 31, 2024: Nil).

{iv) Overdraft facifity from HDFC Bank Limited - INR 1,099.76 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 804,59 lakh); interest rate 3M MCLR+ 100 bps ranging 8.52% to
10.25%per annum [March 31, 2024 3M MCLR +100 bps ranging &.76% to 9.32% per annum] reset quarterly and indudes accrued interest of INR 32,40 lakh

[March 31, 2024: Mil]

(v) Owverdraft facility from ICICI Bank Limited « INR, 1,667.93 lakh [March 31, 2024 INR 2.870.78 lakh]; interest rate 8.25% to 9.25% per annum [March 21, 2024: I

MCLR 6M+1.20% ranging 8.25% to 9.25% per annum].

The above facilities are secured by first pari passu charge on currant assets, second parl passu charge on plant & machinery, immovable properties and corporate

guarantee from parent company for borrowings of subsidiary company.

€) Loans availed from Blue Coral Investment Holdings Pte Linwted, Singapore amounting to [NR 35,850.78 lakh [USD 43 Million] towards the Extarnal Commercial

Borrowing [ECE Loan’] is repaid during the year.

) The group has not defaulted on repayment of principal and payment of interest on any of the abave borrowings during the year.

g} The quartedy retums or staternents filed {as revised wherever applicable) by the parent company and the immediate subsidiary company for working capital
limits with banks and financial instituticns are in agreement with the books of account of the parent company and the subsidiary company.

20 Trade payables As at
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 966222 13,110.04
Total outstanding dues of creditars other than of micro enterprises and small enterprises £3,151.83 62,084.81
62,814.15 75,194.85
(i} Ageing as at March 31, 2025
Qutstanding for the following periods from due date of pay t
Particulars HNot dua Less than & 6 months to 1 Mora than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
months year years

Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

— Disputed dues - - - - - - -

— Undisputed dues 880570 819,63 0.85 31.80 - 424 §,662.22
Outstanding dues other than micre enterprises and small enterprisas

- Disputed dues - - E - = = 3

— Undisputed dues 41,724.42 8,654.64 2,608.41 5812 1287 9337 53.151.93
Total 50,530.12 9,474.27 2,609.26 89.92 12.97 97.61 62,814.15
(i) Ageing as at March 31, 2024

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Mot due Less than & 6 months to 1 12 23 Moara than 3 Total
months year years -3 years years

Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

= Disputed dues - - - - = - -

— Undisputed dues 11,5856.91 148246 835 16,99 248 12.85 13,110.04
Outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

- Disputed dues - . E = - = -

— Undisputed dues 55,039.14 6,832.16 70.1 41.85 38.59 62.96 62,084.81
Total 66,626.05 8,314.62 78.46 58.84 41,07 75.81 75,194.85

{iii} Disdosures under “The Micro, Small and Medium E ises Develop Act, 2006 (MSMED Act)”.

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprisas
should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entreprencurs Memorandum Number as sllocated after filing of the Memaorandum. Accordingly, the
disdasure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as st March 31, 2025 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and

available with the group. The group has not received any claim for interest from any supplier under the said Act,
This has been relied upon by the auditors,

Details of dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

As at

March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024

the amount remaining unpaid to MSMED suppliers as at the end of the year

principal*

interest due thereon

the amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during the year;

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006);

the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year,

amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purposes of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section
23 of MSMED Act, 2006

* Includes dues of micro and small enterprises included within other finandal liabilities in note 21

{a)

[12)]
©

()
(&)

1132475 1303371
294 76.33
222.29 44.55
301.56 7633

- 2257
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{all amounts are rup

in lakh, unless otherwise stated}

21 Other financial liabilities Non current Current
As at As at
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024 March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Employee payable - 1,202.55
[nterest accrued and not-due - = 1382 431.61
Creditors for capital goods

- Dues to micro and smail enterprises - - 1,66253 -

- Dues to other than micro and small enterprises - - 771499 5,158.91
Retention money payable 114.58 77.05 1.493.64 1.200.45
Derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss - Forward contracts = = 6.19 -
Payable towards share based payments {refer note 44] - - 950.00 -

114.58 77.05 4,901.17 7,993 52
22 Provisions Non current Current
. As at As at
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Employee benefits
Provision for gratuity [refer note 41] 344.38 996.56 93.02 82.86
Pravision for leave encashment* [refer note 41) - - 500.57 1,319.58
344.38 996,56 998.59 1,402.84
Others
Provision for litigations - 199.11 216,43
Pravision for others = - 118.54 11854
- - 317.65 334.97
344.38 986.56 1.316.24 1,737.81
*The entire amount of provision is presented current since the group does not have an unconditional right to defer settiement for any of these obligations. However the
group does not expect all employee to avail full amount of accrued leave or require payment for such leave within the next 12 months.
{a) Provision for litigation/disputes represents claims against the Company mainly in respect of land related disputes and Value added tax litigations.
Movement in provision for litigations As at
Particulars March 31,2025  March 31, 2024

Balance at beginning of the year 21643 24804
Add: Additions during the year [refer note below] - 17.34
Less: Utilized/reversed during the year {17.32) {48.95)
Balance at end of the year 19%.11 21643
(b) Provision for others represents the amounts accrued by the Company in respect of certain ROC related matters.

Movement in provision for others As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at beginning of the year 11854 111.24
Add: Additions during the year - 7.30
Balance at end of the year 118.54 118.54
23 Other current and non-current fiabilities Non current Current
As at As at
March 31,2025  March 31,2024  March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Advances from customers - - 352.09 445.74
Statutory dues - - 2,526.46 91460
Deferred government grant [refer note 45) 398,19 353.95 - 44.24
Payable towards gratuity fund [refer note 41] 810.35 = = -
Interast payable to micre and small enterprises [refer note 20(iiiy] - 301.56 -
Others - 046
1.208.54 353.95 3,180.11 1.405.04
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24 Re from operati Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sale of products 2.87.488.43 2,60,026.85
Other operating revenue
= Export incentives 57.70 93.66
= Others [including sale of scrap] 81513 686.52
2.88,361.26 2,60,807.03
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
a) Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised with contracts and total
Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total revenue from operations 2.58.361.26 2,60,807.03
Adjustments:
Other operating revenue
- Export incentives §7.70 93.66
Total re from contracts with cust 2,88,303.56 2,60,713.37
b) Product-wise revenue
Year ended
oticutue March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Bars 264,247.02 2.29,595.34
Billets 308.33 1,915.06
Pig Iron 12,892.50 10,323.15
Coke 7,886.13 14,987.99
Ingats 1,977.03 2,820.38
Slag 177.42 3184.93
Total revenue from contract with customers 2.87.488.43 2,60,026.85
Others [including sale of scrap] 815.13 686.52
Total revenue from cperations 2,68,303.56 2,60,713.37
¢} Geography-wise revenue
£ Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
India 2,84,274.83 2,54,601,12
Africa 2,624.21 4,395.16
Europe 255.07 1.200.35
Asia other than India 1,149.45 516.74
Total reve from contracts with customers 2,88,303.56 2,60,713.37
d) Timing of revenue recognition
Year ended
Fatieyere March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue at a point in time 2,88,303.56 2:60,71337
Revenue over the period -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 2,88,303.56 2,60,713.37
e) Reconciliation of gross revenue from contracts with ]
L Year ended
Particulars Morch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rewenue as per contracted price 2.95,775.23 2.61,349.79
Less: Discounts, commission and sales returns (7ATIE6D) (636.42)
Total revenue from contracts with cust 2,88B,303.56 2,60,713.37
¢) Contract balance
Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Contract assets - Trade receivables [refer note 9] 3733063 38,656.15
Contract liabilities - Advance received from customers [refer note 23]
Balance at beginning of the year 44574 110524
Amount recognised in revenue out of opening balance (445.74) {1,091.28)
Amount received in advance during the year net of revenue recognised 35209 44574
Amaunt refunded to customers - _ 398
Balance at end of the year 352.09 445.74
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25 Other income Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
I t income d on financial assets carried at amortised cost
Bank deposits 185,11 93,16
Usance letter of credit 14929 13245
Other non - operating income
Liabilities no longer required written back 26.83 1,208.12
Interest income on deposits with Andhra Pradesh Southern Power Distribution Company Limited 118.26 8113
[APSPDCL] and Punjab State Power Corporation Limited [PSPCL]
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 126 16.01
Miscellaneous income 601.62 236.00
Government grant = 44.24
Net gain/{loss) on fair value changes - Derivatives at FVTPL 6.19) -
1,076.18 1.811.11
* Liabilities no longer required written back includes ECL provision reversal of INR NIl [March 31, 2024: TNR 86.99 fakh {refer note 9)
26 Cost of matesials consumed Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Raw materials
Inventory at beginning of the year 21,236.47 27.794.07
Add: Purchases {net) 1,70,153.84 1,91,600.45
Less: Inventary at end of the year 18,093.17 21,236.47
Cost of raw materials consumed during the year 1,73,297.14 1,98,158.08
27 Changes in inventories of finished goods, semi finished goods and work-in-progress Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventories at end of the year [including goods-in-transit, refer note 14]
Work-in-progress 2,560.79 2.13639
Semi-finished goods 10,330.97 3752809
Finished goads 26,026.67 2362677
38,918.43 63,291.25
Inventories at beginning of the year [including goods-in-transit, refer note 14]
Work-in-progress 2,136.39 2,243.68
Semi-finished goods 37.528.09 16,103.22
Finished goods 23,626.77 19,981.53
63,291.25 38,328.43
24,372.82 (24,962.82)
28 Employec benefits expense Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 1080149 10,712.95
Contribution to provident and other funds [refer note 41] 915,50 843,06
Gratuity [refer note 41) 93.73 7044
Share based payment to employees [vefer note 44] 577.30 21462
Staff welfare expenses 1,087.54 1.011.08
13,480.56 12,852.05
29 Finance costs Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest on financial liabilitles carrled at amoartised cost
nterest on overdraft/cash credit facilities 345316 232230
Interest on long term borrowings 388025 378707
Interest on lease liabilities 65.61 5358
Other barrowing costs [includes bill discounting charges, bank charges etc] 2,136.14 2.711.35
9.,535.16 8,874.30
30 Depreciation and amortization expenses Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 10,665.77 957444
Depreciation on right of use assets 261.29 210,09
Amortization of intangible assets 143,56 106.44

11.070.62 9,890.97
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31 Other expenses Vear ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rent [refer note 36} 946,46 547.86
Repairs and maintenance - building 285.64 287.39
Repairs and maintenance - plant and machinery 4,771.05 479144
Repairs and maintenance - others 227110 222224
Insurance 637.82 541.76
Rates & taxes 252.39 211.99
Legal and professional charges [refer i), {iil) and (v) below] 73369 758.31
IT related services 769,53 708.09
Communication expenses 8007 §1.65
Travel and conveyance 131.74 19299
Freight outward and forwarding charges 10,002.21 8,617.26
Security charges 235.86 22442
Stores and spares consumed 1757197 16,938.40
Power and fuel 14,829.08 1212205
Labour charges 295859 261953
Corporate social responsibility expenses [refer note 46] 284.10 374.84
Payment to auditors [refer {i} and (i) below] 12027 123.55
Advance to vendors written off - 35.04
Loss allowance on trade receivables 139.66 -
FProvision for doubtful advances 28.01 493
Frovision for doubtful assets [refer note 45)] 21384 -
Net Loss on foreign cumrency transaction and transtations 71792 634.63
Property, plant and equipment written off 602.98 139012
Miscellaneous expenses 657.39 69511
59,330.57 54,524.49

(i} Details of auditors” remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses is as below Year ended

As auditor March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024*

Statutory audit fee 9250 60.00

Group audit fee - 42.00

Tax awdit fee and other certification [including overruns] 1200 1000

Reimbursement of expenses ** 15.77 11.55

(amounts presented above excludes GST} 120.27 123.55

* Previous year's fees pertains to erstwhile auditors.
** Reimbursement of expenses for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 includes INR 12.63 lakh paid to erstwhile auditor.
(i) Legal and other professional charges of previcus year includes INR 6.00 lakh paid to erstwhile auditor for the tax audit.
{iiiy Legal and other professional charges includes INR 4.44 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 18.60 lakh] paid to firm in which the partner of audit firm is a partner,
(i) Legal and other professional charges includes amounts paid to a. firm affiliated to the statutory auditors finm through a metworking arrangements as
registered with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, for the year ended March 31, 2025 INR 26.83 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 96.66 lakh].
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32 Earnings per share (EPS) As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

The cakulation of profit attributable to equity sharehokders and weighted average number of equity
shareholdings for the purpose of basic EPS and diluted EPS are as follows:

Basic earnings per share ;

Attributable to equity holders of the group (in INR absolute numbers) 0.07) 0.14
Total basic samings per share {0.07) 0.14
Diluted earnings per share

Attributable to equity holders of the group (in INR absolute numbers) 007 0.14
Total diluted earnings per share attributable to equity holders of the group {0.07) 0,14
Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating earnings per share :

Basic earnings per share

Profit/(loss) atiributable to equity shareholders of the group {1,649.43} 3.281.10

(1,649.43) 3.281.10

Diluted earnings per share

Profit/{loss) attributable to equity shareholders of the group

Used in cakulating basic EPS {1.649.43} 3,281.10
Used in calculating diluted EPS {1,649.43} 3,281.10

Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator ;
Woeighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic EPS 2,40,20,79,056 2,40,20,79,056

Adjustments for cakculation of basic EPS

effect of treasury shares - {3.30.30,682)
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic EPS 2,40,20,79,056 2.26.,90.48,374
Welghted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares used as the denominator in 2,40,20,79,056 2,36,00,48,274

calculating diluted EPS

E£]

Capital management

Risk management
The group’s objectives when managing capital are to:
(i) Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
(i) Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The group’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investors and creditors and to sustain future
development and growth of its business. The group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to
the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structire requirements. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-
bearing borrowings in the current year.
The group monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt’ to ‘equity”
Adjusted net debt {total interest-bearing borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits
disclosed under other non-current financial assets)

divided by
Total equity {as shown in the balance sheet)
The gearing ratios were as follows:

As at
Sartiosare March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Long term borrowings 4147945 49,265.56
Lease liabilities 579.61 601.78
Short term borrowings 44,683.70 40.681.48
Total Borrowings £86,742.76 90,548.82
Less:

Cash and cash equivalents 1.14839 2,998.08
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 3557
Bank depoasits dischosed under ather financial assets 5,397.50 1573.74
Net debt 80,196.87 8594143
Total equity 1,20,341.46 1,20,757.31
Net dabt to equity ratie 0.67 .71

For the purpose of the group's ¢capital management, borrowings includes short term bomowings including overdraft facility, long term borrowings and lease
liabilities. .
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34 Financial instruments

A Financial instruments by category
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by each category as at March 31, 2025 were as follows:

Carrying value Fair value
Particulars Balances at Balances at Balances at
amortised cost FVTOd FVTPL
Financlal assets
Investments - 73478 - 73478
Trade receivables 37.330.63 - - 37.330.63
Cash and cash equivalents 114839 - - 114839
Other non current financial assets 544419 - - 544419
Other current financial assets 245.00 - - 248.00
Financial liabilities
Borrowings from banks (incdludes current maturities of long term
debt) £6,163.15 - - 86,163.15
Non current lease liabilities 31069 - - 31069
Current |ease liabilities 268.92 - - 268.92
Trade payables 62,814,115 - - 6281415
Derivative liabilities [Forward contract] - - 6.1% 6.19
Other financial liabilities [excluding the derivative liahilities] 5,000.56 = - 5,009.56
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by each category as at March 31, 2024 were as follows:
Carrying vajue Fair value
Particulars Balances at Balances at Balances at
amortised cost vTod FVTPL
Financial assets
Investments - 849.47 - 84947
Trade receivables 38,656,15 - - 38,656.15
Cash and cash equivalents 2,99508 - - 299808
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3557 - - 3557
Other non current financial assets 1,705.34 - - 1,705.34
OCther current financial assets LEEAY) - - 177.47
Financial liabilities
Borrowings from banks (includes current maturities of Long term
debt) 54,096.26 - - 54,096.26
Borrowings from others 35850.78 = = 35,850.78
Non current bease liabilities 396,55 - - 39655
Current lease liabilities 20523 - - 205.23
Frade payables 75,154,.85 - - 75,124,85
Other financial liabilities [excluding the derivative liabilities] 8.070.57 - - 8,070.57
B Fair value hierarchy
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by hierarchy as at March 31, 2025 were as follows:
Carrvina value Falr value
Particulars Balances at Balances at
FVToCt FTPL —_— —
Financlal assets
Investments 73478 - - 734.78
Financial liabilities
Derivative lrabilities (Forward contract - 619 6.19 -
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by hierarchy as at March 31, 2025 were as follows:
Carrving value Fair value
Pacrticulars Balances at Balances at
TOC FVTPL Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets
Investments B49.47 - - 84947
Movement in Level 3 financial instruments measared at fair value
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at beginning of the year Ba9.47 84947
Purchase 73478 =
Transfers in or out of Level 3 - -
Other comprehensive incorme (849.47) -

Balance at end of the year 734.78
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34 Financlal instruments [Contd.]
r) ofw I
Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs
The following table show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values for financial instruments measured at fair value in the statement of
financial position as well a5 significant unobservable inputs used,

Type Valuation technique
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value through profit|Forward contracts: The fair value is determined using quoted forward exchange rates at the
or loss {Derivative instruments} reporting date and present value calculations based on high credit risk quality vield curves in the
respective currency.
Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost Discounted cash flows: The wvaluation model considers the present value of expected

receipt/payment discounted using appropriate discounting rates. For issued debt, the interest rate
is derived from market observable date such as secondary prices for its external debt itself,

Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, bank deposits, other financial assets, trade payables,
lease liabilities and other financial liabilities (except derivative financial instruments) have fair|
values that approximate to their carrying amounts due to their short-terrn nature.

Loans have fair values that approximate to their carrying amounts as it is based on the net present,
value of the anticipated future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on simitar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at Fair value through Costs of certain unquoted equity instruments has been considered as an appropriate estimate of]
other comprehensive income fair value because of a wide range of possible fair value measurements and cost less impairment (|
any). represents the best estimate of fair value within that range. Accordingly, there are na
significant unobservable inputs. These investments in equity instruments are nat held for trading.
Instead, they are held for medium or lang term strategic purpose.

The group has chosen to designate these investments in equity instruments at FVTOCT as the
management befieve that provides a more meaningful presentation for medium or long term
sirategic investrents, than reflecting changes in fair value immediately in profit and loss.

The group has not dassified any financial asset or liabifity under level 1.
There has been no change in the valuation methodology for level 3 inputs during the year. There were no wransfers between level 1 and level 2 during the year,

€ Derivative financial instruments
The group is exposed to foreign currency fluctuations on faoreign currency assets/ Rabilities. The group follows established risk management policies, including the use

of derivatives to hedge foreign currency assets/ liabilities. The group regularly reviews its foreign exchange forward positions both on a consolidated basis and in
conjunction with its underlying foreign currency related exposures and manitors the potential risk arising out of the market factors like exchange rates on a regular
basis. The counterparty in these derivative instruments is a bank and the group considers the risks of non-performance by the counterparty as non-material. The group
does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. AN the transactions in derivative financial instruments are undertaken to manage risks
arising from underlying business activities.

The following table presents the aggreyate contracted principal amounts of the group’s derivative contracts outstanding:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Forward contracts
in USD millien 299 -
Average rate 8579 -
in INR lakh 2,565.12 -
Maturity profile within 12 months -
The following table sets out the fair value of derivatives held by the group as at the end of the reporting period:
As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Forward Contracts - 8.19 = =
Classification
Non current - - - -
Current - 6.19 - -

35 Financial risk management
The group has exposure 1o the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
1 Credit risk
2 Liquidity risk
3 Market risk
4 Commadity risk

The Board of Directors of the respective companies has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the group’s risk management framework. The
Board of Directors, supported by finance, legal, compliance team and risk managerment committee, identify and analyse the risks faced by the group, set appropriate
risk limits and controls, and monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management systerns are reviewed periodically to reflect changes in market conditions and the
group's activites. The board is assisted in its oversight role by intemal audit team. Internal audit team undertakes revi of risk gernent controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Board,
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35 Financial risk gement [Contd.)
1 Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and it arises
principally feom the group’s trade receivables, treasury operations and related activities. The carrying amount of financial assets represent maximum exposure to credit
niske A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred such as a breach of contract, significant financial difficulty, it is probable that debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation. The group has
established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for credit worthiness before the group’s standard payment and delivery terms and
conditions are offered. The group's review includes background KYC verification, historical financial information of the customer's business, industry information, etc.
{as applicable), The group measures the amount of expected credit loss ['ECLY on a financial instrument in a way that reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount. The group considers its histarical loss experience and adjusts the same for cument observable data. The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the
probability of default ['PLY), loss given default ['LGD'] and exposure at default [EAD). EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default EAD represents
the gross carrying amount of the financial instruments subject to the impairment calculation. LGD represents estimated financial loss the group is likely to suffer in
respect of default accounts and it is used to calculate provision requirement on EAD alang with PD.

Trade and other recelvables:

Managerment considers that the demographics of the group's customer base, including the default risk of the industry in which customers operate, has less of an
influence on credit risk. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit imits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of the custorners
ta which the group grants ¢redit terms in the normal course of the business.

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting year are reviewed by the group to determine incusred and expected credit losses. Historical trend of
impairment of trade receivables do not reflect any significant credit losses. Basis this assessment, the allowance for doubtful trade receivables as at March 31, 2025 i
considered adequate.

The credit quality of the group’s custorers is monitored on an ongoing basis and assessed for imgairment where indicators of such impairment exist The group uses
simplified approach (i.e. lifetime expected credit loss model) for impairment of trade receivables/contract assets. The solvency of the debtor and their ability to repay
the receivable is considered in assessing receivables for impairment. Where receivables have been impaired, the group actively seeks to recover the amounts in
question and enforce compliance with credit terms.

For all other financial assets, if credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month expected credit loss is used to pravide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime expected credit loss is used.

Investments
The group fimits its exposure to credit risk by generally investing in securities with counter-parties that have a good credit rating. The group does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these counter-parties, and does not have any significant concentration of exposures to specific industry sectors or specific country risks.

Casfr and cash equivalents:

Credit visk on cash and bank balances is limited as the group generally trangacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by international
and domestic credit rating agencies.

Exposure fo credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets, net of any impairment losses recognised represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at
March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 was as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Investrnents 734.78 34947
Trade receivables 37,330.63 38,656.15
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 3557
Other financial assets [current and non current] 5,692.19 1,882.51

Financial assets that are past due buf not impaired
There is no other class of financial assets that is past due other than trade receivables [refer note 9). The ageing of rade receivables and allowances are given below:
As at March 31, 2025

Grass carrying Welghted Loss allowance Net carrying
Ageing amaount average loss rate value
Within the credit period 17,651.96 0.16% 28.65 17,623.21
0-1 months past due 11,056.99 0.27% 2938 11,027.61
1-2 months past due 5658.32 0.77% 4372 5,614.60
2-3 months past due 1,680.73 1.54% 25.86 1,654.87
3 months and above 1.473.38 4.25% 63.04 1410.34
Total 37,521.28 190.65 37.330.63

As at March 31, 2024

Gross caTyin Weighted Net carrying
Ageing amount ° averagegloss rate | 10%° aliowance vajue
Within the credit period 21,184.29 0.08% 1630 21,167.99
0-1 months past due 10,854.81 0.13% U 10.840.60
1-2 months past due 455511 0.37% 17m 453810
2-3 months past due 1,169.67 0.57% 10.39 1,179.28
3 months and above 948.39 1.92% 18.21 930,18
Total 38,732.27 76.12 38,656.15

There are no other trade receivables, loans and financial assets which have a significant increase in the credit risk other than those reported in note 9 and note 10.

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
Cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and other finandial assets are neither past due nor impaired.

Conceniratfon of frade receivables
The group's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables by geographic region is as follows:

Partleulars March 31, 2025 | March 21, 2024
India 35,974.62 37,561.79
Outside India 1,356.00 1,074.36
Total 27.320.63 38.686.15
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R ial rigk g
2 Liquidity risic
Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset The group's approach to managing fiquidity is to eénsure, as far as possiblle, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
due, under normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptalile losses or risking damage to the group's reputation. The group generates sufficient cash
flow for operations, which together with the available cash and cash aquivalents and short term investments provide liquidity in the shart-term and long-term. In
addition, the group has concluded arrangements with well reputed banks and also plans to negotiate additional facilities for funding as and when requived, The group
has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity.

t [Contd.]

management requirements. The group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, excuding

¢ interest pay

its and excluding the impact of netting agreements, The tables

have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the eariest date on which the group can be required te pay.

. Contractual cash More than 3
Particulars Carrying amount flows 0-12 Months 1-3 years s
As at March 31, 2025
Non-derivativi ial liabiliti
Long term borrowings from bank {including current maturities) 5035433 50,605.32 £978.73 15.248.25 26,381.34
Lease liabilities 579.61 6356.58 309.95 31595 1267
Short term facilities with bank 3577882 3577882 35778.82 - -
Trade payables 5281415 6281497 6201417 - -
Other financial liabilities [refer note 21) 5.009.56 500956 4,894.98 11458 -
< ative finandial liabiliti

Forward contracts 6.19 619 619 = -
As at March 31, 2024
Mon-derivative financial liabiliti
Long term bomowings from bank (including current maturities} 20,020.39 20,138.54 6,060.05 10,392.72 307977
Borrowings from others [refer note 19{e)} 35,850.78 35.850.78 = = 35.850.78
Lease liabilities &601.78 67292 237.66 39341 51.85
Short term facilities with bank 3407537 3407537 3407537 - -
Trade payables 7519485 75,194.85 75,194 85 - -
Other financial liabilities [refer note 21) 8,07057 8,070.57 7.99352 71.05 -

3 Market risk:

Market risk is the risk of loss of future eamings or fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a
financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign exchange rates and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive
instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market nisk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables. The group is exposed to
market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk (currency risk} and interest rate risk. Thus the group’s exposure to market risk is a function of bomowing
activities as well as revenue generating and operating activities in foreign currencies,
a) Currency risk
The group’s exposure in USD and EUR transactions gives rise to exchange rate fluctuation risk. Group's poficy in this regard incorporates

- Forecasting inflows and outflows denominated in USD and EUR for a 12-month period

- Estimating the net exposure in foreign currency. in terms of timing and amount

- Determining the extent to which exposure should be protected through one or more risk-mitigating instruments ta maintain the permissible limits of uncovered
eXposSures.
Sensitivity analysis below is made on the closing balances as on respective repoarting dates.
The group’s exposure to foreign currency risk as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 was as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
usp* EUR* usD* EUR*

Cash and cash equivalents 14.11 - 44.43 -
Trade receivables 175.67 1,180.34 41.M 1,033.35
Trade payables (13,200.78) 6,39 (29,756.60) -
Other current assets - - 433.54 193.62
Other financial liabilities (440.52) {301.00} {102.18) (769.58)
Other current liabilities - - 43.25) =
!Borrowin_qs - - (35.850.78) -
[Net balance sheet expesure | (13.541.52} 872.95 | (65.233.83}| 447.39 |

A 1% strengthening of the rupee against the respective currencies as at March 31, 2025 and barch 21, 2024 would have increased / (decreased) profit or loss by the
amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for previous year.

Chanage in profit / (loss} and equity March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
uUso* 13542 65234
EUR* @73 4.47)

A 1% weakening of the rupee against the above currencies as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 would have had the equal but opposite effect on USD/EUR to the
amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

* The amounts disclosed above are in the functional and presentation currency (e, INR lakh}
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35 Financial risk management [Contd.]
b} Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the visk that an upward movement in interast rates would adversely affect the borrowing casts of the group.
At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the group's interest bearing finangial instrumants were as follows:

Carrying .
Particutars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

L Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets

- Fixed deposits with banks 5,397.50 1.609.31
iabl ;

Financial liabilites

- Borrowings from banks {including overdeafts) 86,163.15 54096.26

- Borrowings from others - 35850.79

Cash flow sensithvity for fixad rate Instruments-

The group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as the effective interest rates equates the fair value,

Cash flow sensitivity for variable rate instruments-

Ap increase of 100 basis points bn interest rates at the reporting date would have increased/(decreased) profit/toss by the amounts shown below. A decrease of 100
basis points in the interest rates at the reporting date would have had equal but opposite effect on the amounts shown below, on the basis that all other variables

resmain constant.

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

100bp increase | 100bp decrease | 100bp increase | 100bp decrease
Profit/toss) and equity - (Variable rate liabilities) (895.44) 895.44 (1.145.37) 1,145.37
Profit/iloss) and equity - (Variable rate assets) 20215 (202.15) 17942 {179.42)

4 Commodity price risk
The group doesn't enter into any long term contract with its suppliers for hedging its commeodity pwice risk.

26 Leases
Operating lease: group as lessee (as per IND AS 116}
The group has entered into various lease arrangements relating to office premises, warehouses, laptops and vehides. These leases are for a duration of less than twelve
months or leases of low values, These arrangements are cancellable in nature and do not have any lock in period, accordingly future minimum lease payments are not
disclosed. Amount of TMR 946.46 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 947.86 lakh] is recorded in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Lass [refer note 31]

37 Segment information
The group is in the business of manufacturing special steel products having similar economic characteristics, primanily with operations in India and regularly reviewed
by the Chief Operating Decision Maker {Board of directors of the parent company) for assessment of group’s performance and resource allocation. Therefore, the
group has only one reportable segment.
The information relating to revenue fraen external customers and location of non-current assets of its single repartable segment has been disclosed as below:

a) Revenue from operations Year ended

Particulars Moarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
India 28433253 2.54.694.73
Africa 2624.21 439516
Europe 25507 1,200.35
Asia other than India 1,149.45 516,74
Total 2.88,361.26 2,60,807.03
b} Non current assets

All non-current assets of the group are located in India,

¢) Customers contributing more than 10% of revenue

The group is not refiant on revenue from wransactions from single external customer and does not receive 16% or more of its revenue from ansactions with any single
extemnal custaomer.

HARTERED
COUNTANTS
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38 Related party disclosures
& Mames of related parties and related party relationship:
Name Relationship
a) Parent information
Skand Private Limited Ultimate holding company with effect from November 11, 2024
The Sandur Manganese & Iron Ores Limited Holding company with effect from November 11, 2024
ADV Partners Pte Limited, Singapore Ultimate holding company till Novernber 10, 2024
Blue Coral [Investment Holdings Pte Ltd, Singapore Intermediary holding company till Novemnber 10, 2024
Blue Coral Investment Holdings Pte Ltd ¥ C1A SRC, Spain Immediate holding company till November 10, 2024
b} Key management personnel
Bahirji Ajai Ghorpade Chairman and Non-executive director with effect from Movember 11, 2024 to March 20, 2025,
Chairman and Managing Director with effect from March 21, 2025
Uttam Kumar Bhageria Non-executive director with effect from November 11, 2024 to March 20, 2025 and Executive Director
with effect from March 21, 2025
Sridhar Krishnamoorthy Managing Director till December 18, 2024
Ramaswamy Visweswaran Whole Time Director till December 13, 2024
Anand Pasupuleti Chief Executive Officer with effect from Dacember 11, 2024
Sham Krishna Chief Financial Officer
Satyanarayan Mohanty Company Secretary
Suresh Eshwara Prabhala Director till Novernber 11, 2024
Gaurav Pawan Kumar Podar Director tili November 11, 2024
¢} Directors
Gregor Johannes Muenstermann Independent Director
Dr Aryna Sharma Independent Director
Ajay Hari Tandon Independant Director
Gururaj Pandurang Kundargi Independent Director with effect from Novernber 11, 2024
Anand Sen Independent Director with effect from November 11, 2024
d) Employee benefit trust
Arjas Steel Employee Benefit Trust Controlled Trust [refer note (i} below]
€) Entity over which Key managerial personnel or their relative have significant influence
Lohagiri Industrial Private Limited Related party with effect from November 11, 2024
f) Entity in which parent company has invested more than twenty percentage of their equity
Amplus Arjas Solar Private Limited Refer note {iv) below

B Transactions with related parties:
The following table provides the total transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year:

Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
a) Interest expense on Loan
Blue Coral Investment Holdings Pte Ltd, Singapore 1.346.89 2,346.96
b} Short term employee benefits
Rernuneration to key management personnel {refer noteiil) beiow) 651.82 570.23
¢) Others
Reimbursements to key management personnel and directors 13.31 16.54
Sitting fees and commission to independent directors 86.20 66.95
d} Loans repaid
Blue Coral [nvestment Holdings Pte ttd, Singapore 36,313.07 822169
¢) [nvestment
Amplus Arjas Solar Private Limited 73478 -
f) Interest expenses
The Sandur Manganese & Iron Ores Limited 034 -
g} Purchases
The Sandur Manganese & Iron Ores Limited 1.596.38 -
Lohagiri Industrial Private Limited 107.56 -

h} Power and fuel
Amplus Arjas Solar Private Limited 294.61




Arjas Steel Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 [Contd.]

{all amounts are rupees in lakh, unless othenwise stated)

32 Related party disclosures [Contd.]
€ Amount payable / receivable from related parties:

As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
a) Borrowing:
Blue Coval Investment Holdings Pte Ltd, Singapore - 3585078
b} Interest acerued payable, not due
Blise Coral Irnestment Holdings Pte Ltd, Singapore - 204.62
The Sandur Manganese & Iron Ores Limited 0.34 -
<) Equity share capital
The Sandur Manganese & Iron Ores Limited 2,37,651.98 -
Blue Coral Investment Holdings Pte Ltd ¥ ClA SRC, Spain - 2,34,792.72
d) Commission and sitting fees payable 3255 26.50
¢) Investment
Amplus Arjas Solar Private Limited 73478 -
) Trade payable
Lohagiri Industrial Private Limited £9.96 -
Amplus Arjas Solar Private Limited 294,48 -
g) Security deposit
The Sandur Manganese & Iron Ores Limited 2003 -

{i) Outstanding balances at the year end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.
{ii) The assets and liabilities of the aforesaid trust have been accounted for as the assets and liabilities of the company on the basis that such trust is merely acting

as the agent of the company.

(i) Past employment benefits: The remuneration to the key management personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits, as they

are determined on an actuarial basis for the respective companies in the group as a whole.

(iv) The investment in Amplus Arjas Solar Private Limited [AASPL] is not accounted as “Investment in Associate” as the Company does not have any significant
influence aver AASPL as it will not be involved in the management of AASPL and it will not appoint/nominate any directors in AASPL.

(v} The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions, There is no amounts receivable/ payable in
respect of the related parties have been written offf back during the year.

D Additional information as required by Part I of the ganeral instructions for preparation of consolidated financial statements to schedule IT to the

Companies Act, 2013.
As at March 31, 2025
Parent Indian subsidiary Total efiminationy
Particulars Arjas Steel Private Arjas Madern Steel consolidation Total
Limited Private Limited adpstments
Net assets i.e., total assets minus total ‘::t?g s‘:ig‘"“’“dmd 109.40% {8.15%) {1.25%) 100.00%
liabiliti
e rupees in takhs 131,658.44 9.816.97) {1,500.00) 1.20,34145
#2% of consokdated 134.66%) 234.68% 100.00%
Share of profitf{lass) profits (134, - !
rupees in lakhs 222137 (3.870.90) - {1,649.43)
As % of consolidated
Share of other comprehensive income :f:;;zomptehenswe 107.92% {7.92%) 100.00%
rupees in lakhs {860.52) 63.15 - (797.37)
Share of total comprehensive As % Of:otal. {55.62%) 155.62% 0.00% 100.00%
hsiialfoss) comprehensive
rupees in lakhs 1.360.85 {3.807.65) > (2,446.80)
As at March 31, 2024
Parent Indi ahsidiary Total efimination/
Particulars Arjas Steel Private Arjas Modern Steel consclidation Total
Limited Private Limited adjustments
Net assets i.e., total assets minus total :::’2 ;i?"‘d'dmd 106.22% 4.95%) (1.24%) 100.00%
liabilite
abiities rupees in lakhs 12826664 6:009.33) {1,500.00) 12075731
As % of consolidated
Share of profit/(koss) profits 141.14% (42.42%) 1.28% 100.00%
rupees in lakhs 4,630,290 {1.391.93) 42,13 328110
As % of consolidated
h )
Share of other comprehensive income ;‘C:;;Omprehenswe 2783% 7217% 100.00%
rupees in lakhs (36.84) {9553 - (13237}
. As % of total
is:::.r:-. eo/f{:zst:}l comprehensive comprehensive 145.90% (47.24%) 1.34% 100.00%
rupees in lakhs 4,594.06 {1,467.48) 4213 3,143.73




Arjas Steel Private Limited
Motes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 21, 2025 [Contd.)

(all amounts are rupses in lakh, ualess atherwise stated)

39 Capital and other commitments [to the &xtent not provided for]

The group has a process whereby all long term contracts are assessed for material losses. The group did not have any Jong-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were no foreseeable losses.

As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account
Property, plant and equipment 4,059.28 14,864.41
Intangible assets 30.95 13.61
4,090.23 14.878.02
40 Contingent Habilities As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Claims against the group not acknowledged as debts
Service tax 100.22 100.22
Income tax - 16.10
Goods and service tax 325.54 30274
Sales tax 1,864.89 1,894 89
Value added tax 25349 598.02
Entry tax 6550.56 68056
Others [refer note (i) below) 247.76 249.00
3,512.46 3,851.53

i} The group is involved in various legal proceedings, inchuding daims against the group pertaining to income tax, excise, service tax, sales tax value added tax,
entry tax and other regulatory matters relating to conduct of its business.

(i) Others represents daims against the group not acknowledged as debts in respect of land disputes, labour disputes, electricity matters and other litigations.

(ili) The group has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent
liabilities where applicable, in the consolidated financial statements. Regarding the amounts disclosed above it is not practicable to disclose the information on the
possibility of any reimbursement as it is determinable only on occurrence of any future events.

{iv) It is not practicable for the group to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending resolution of the respective proceedings.
Future cash flow in respect of the abowve, if any, is determinable only on receipt of judgement/ decisions pending with relevant authorities. The group does not
expect the outcome of the matters stated above to have a material adverse impact on the group’s financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

{v) The parent company provided guarantee of INR 25,000 lakhs [March 31, 2024: INR 25,000 lakhs] towards credit facilities availed by the immediate subsidiary
company from their bankers and valid ti February 10, 2027.

41

Employee benefit plans

(i) Defined contribution plan

In accordance with the law, all employees of the group are entitled 1o receive benefits under the provident and pension fund. Under defined contribution plan,
provident and pension are contributed to the government administrated provident fund, The group has no obligation other than the contribution to the provident
and pension fund.

Amounts towards defined contribution plans have been recognised under “Contributions to provident and other funds® in note 28: INR 723.75 lakhs [March 31,
2024: INR. 673.86 lakhs),

{ii) Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

The group operates post-employment defined benefit plan that provides gratuity, governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, It entities an employee, who hag
rendered at least five years of continuous service, to gratuity at the rate of fifteen days wages for every completed year of service or part thereof In excess of six
months, based on the rate of wages last drawn hy the employee concerned.

Gratuity for employees of parent company is covered under a scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India (UC} which is basically a year-on-year cash
accumulation plan. As part of the scheme the interest rate is declared on yearly basis and is guaranteed for a period of one year. The insurance company, as part of
the policy rules, makes payment of all gratuity settlements during the year subject to sufficiency of funds under the policy.

Gratuity for employess of immediate subsidiary company is unfunded.

These defined benefit plan expose the group to actuarial risks, such as interest rate risk, salary escalation risk, demographic risk etc

Risk exposure to defined benefit plans
Interest rate risk:

The plan exposes the group to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and
will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability (as shown in consolidated financial statements).

Salary escalation riskc

The present vafue of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan partidpants in future, Deviation in the rate of increase
of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan’s liability.
Demographic risk:

The group has used certain mortality and atirition assumptions in valuation of the liability and there is a risk that these may change,

Regulatary risk:

Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended from time to time). There is & risk of change in
regulations requiring higher gratuity pay-outs.

Asset Kability mismatching or market risk:

The duration of the liability is longer compared to duration of assets, exposing the group to market risk for volatilities/fall in interest rate.

Investmant risk:

The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any particular investment.

Variability in withdrawal rates:

¥ actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumptions, the gratuity benefits will be paid extra than evaluated. The impact of this will
depend on where benefits are vested as at resignation date.
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Employec beneflt plans [Contd.]

Balances of defined benefit plan
The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the company’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 1.511.56 1,39043
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation 44240 471.38
Fair value of plan assets T01.21 78239
Net liability arising from gratuity {1,252.75) (1,079.42)
Non current (1,154.73} {996.56)
Current {98.02) (82.86)
i benefit plan ovement of plan assets Habilities

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out as at March 31, 2025. Based on the actuarial
valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognized in the group’s Consolidated Financial
Statements as at balance sheet date:

Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A. Components of expense recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 213.35 185.39
Interest cost 133.03 116.82
Interest income (55.90) (H2.57)
Total (4) 290.48 239.64
Expense recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss towards funded gratuity 191.75 165.20
Expense recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss towards unfunded gratuity 99.73 70.44

290.48 239.64
B. Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:
-Retumn on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) 4.51 052
-Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions 2.27 (117.84)
-Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions (60.09) 24347
-Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from experience adjustments 1.12 6.22
Total (B) (52.12) 132.37
C. Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
Opening defined benefit obligation 1,861.81 1,586.95
Current service cost 213.35 185.3%
Interest cost 133.03 116.82
Remeasurement (gains)/losses:
-Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions 227 (117.84)
-Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from changes in finandial assumptions 60.09) 24347
-Actuarial (gains] and losses arising from experience adjustments 119 6.22
Benefits paid {(197.60) (169.20)
Closing defined benefit obligation (C) 1,953.96 1.861.81
D. Movements in the fair value of the plan assets
Opening fair value of plan assets 78239 855.24
Investment income (Interest) 55.90 6257
Remeasurement gain (loss):
-Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) {4.51) {0.52}
Contributions from employer 0.48 751
Benefits paid {133.05) {142.41)
Closing fair value of plan assets (D) 701.21 T82.39
Category wise plan assets
The fair value of the plan assets at the end of the reporting period for each category, are as follows:

As at

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Insurer managed funds 100% 100%
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Weighted average duration (based on discounted cashflows) 4 to S years S years
Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis): A tin INR
1 year 323.57 305.83
2t0 5 years 1,001.14 1,041.36
6 to 10 years 780,25 82366
More than 10 years 716.32 736.42

Fund is managed by LIC as per IRDA guidelines category-wise composition of the plan assets is not available,
The above plan assets are unguoted instruments,
(iii} Other long term benefits [Compensated absences]

The group provides compensated absences benefits to the employees of the group which ¢an be carried forward to future years. They are therefore accrued using
actuarial valuations and are measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by empl

(|
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41 Employee benefit plans [Contd.]

Expenses In Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Leave encashment 50.94 197.35
Total 50.94 187.38
Liability as at balance sheet date As at

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Mon current = =
Current 900.57 1,319,298
Total 900.57 1.319.98

Sensitivity analysis:

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity
analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all
other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Defined benefit Defined benefit Defined benefit Defined benefit
Particulars obligation for obligation for abligation for obligation for increase

decrease in % of increase in % of decrease in % of in % of assumption

assumption assumption assumption

Discount rate (- / +1%} 2061.96 {1.856.02) 1.964.69 1,768.37}
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity} 5.52% S.01%) 5.53% (5.02%)
Salary growth rate (- / +1%) {1,863,14) 205004 (1,775.55) 1,952.89
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) (4.65%) 492% (4.63%) 4.89%
Attrition rate (- / +50% of attrition rates) 212235 (1.860.37) 2.064.38 {1,756.57}
{% change compared to base due to sensitivity) BB2% (A7) 10.88% {5.65%)
Mortality rate (- / +10% of mortality rates} 1,954.33 {1,95359) 1.862.23 {1.861.39)
{% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 0.02% (0.02%) 0.02% {0.02%)
The best estimate of the expected contribution for the next year amounts to INR 810.35 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 745.50 lakh].
Princi ion
The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows.
Particulars For Gratuity For Other long term benefits

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1. Discount rate 6.50% 7.15% 6.50% 7.15%
2. Salary escalation 1060% 10.66% to 12.74% 10.00% 10.66% to 12.74%
3. Withdrawal rate 14.00% to 22.00% 15.23% to 17.57% 14.00% to 22.00% 15.23%
4. Retirement age 58 or 60 years S8 or 60 years 58 or 60 years 58 or B0 years

For directors B5 years | For directors 65 years | For directors 65 vears | For directors 65 years

(i) The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yield on Government Securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of obligations.

{ii} The estimate of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as
supply and demand in the employment market,

{iii) Assumptions regarding future mortality and experience are set in accordance with published rates under Indian assured lives mortality 2012-2014 [March 31,
2024: 2012-2014]

(i) The parent company has purchased insurance policy, which is basically a year-on -year cash accumulation plan in which the interest rate is declared on yearly
basis and Is guaranteed for a pediod of one year. The insurance company, as pant of the policy rules, makes payment of all gratuity outgoes happening during the
year (subject to sufficiency of funds under the policy). The policy. thus, mitigates the liquidity risk. However, being a cash accumulation plan, the duration of assets
is shorter compared to the duration of liabilities. Thus, the parent company is exposed to movement in interest rate {in particular ,the significant fall in interest
rates, which should result in a increase in liability without corresponding increase in the asset).

42 (a} Daily back-up: The Companies (Accounts) Amendments Rules 2022 mandates maintenance of backup of company's books of account and other books and
papers maintained in electronic mode on servers physically located in India on a daily basis. The parent company and immediate subsidiary company uses
accounting software for maintaining their respective books of account and have maintained back-up of such books of account on a daily basis in a server physically
located in India except for certain payroll records wherein back-up is not stored in a server physically located in India.

(b) Audit trail: The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA} has made it mandatory for companies to maintain an audit trail throughout the year for transactions
impacting books of accounts. The parent company and immediate subsidiary company uses accounting software for maintaining their respective books of account
for the year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log} facifity and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software except that

= in respect of one software, the audit trail feature was not enabled for certain critical tables/master records throughout the year and audit trail was not enabled
at the database level to log any direct data changes. The respective companies are in the process of complying with the requirements of enabling the audit trail
feature as required for certain critical tables/master records for the software.

- in respect of another software operated by a third-party software service provider and used by the parent company and immediate subsidiary company for
maintaining certain payroll records, the independent auditor's system and organisation controls reports does not cover audit tail related reporting. The respective
companies are in process of discussing with the third party software provider 10 inchude the audit trail related reporting in the independent auditor's system and
organisation controls report,

Additionally, the audit trail that was enabled and operated for the year ended March 31, 2024, has been preserved by the respective companies as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.
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42 Additional disclosures required by Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013;
(i} The group does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the group for holding any benami property.
(i) The group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
{ili) The group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.
{iv) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the parent
company and the immediate subsidiary company to or in any other person{s) or entity, including foreign entities (‘Tntermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the parent company and the immediate subsidiary company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or plovide any guarantes, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
() No funds have been received by the parent company and the immediate subsidiary company from any person(s) or entity{ies), inchuding foreign entities
{“Funding Parties™, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the group shall: directly or indirectly, lend or irwest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf

of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
{vi) The group does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in

the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

{vfi) The group is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financlal institution {as defined under the companies act, 2013} or consortium thereof or other
tender in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

{viii) The group has complied with the number of layers for its holding in downstream companies prescribed under clause (87} of section 2 of the companies act,
2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

(ix) The group has not entered into any transactions with struck off companies under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act,
1956 for the year ended March 31, 2025,

{x) The group has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment {including right-of-use Assets) during the year.

44 The parent company had given a loan of INR 962,10 lakh to Arjas Steel Employee Benefit Trust [Trust) formed vide Trust Deed executed on November 12, 2019.
The above trust was incorporated primarily for the purposes of implementing an employee stock option plan [ESCP. During the year ended March 31, 2020, the
above trust purchased 56,28,860 equity shares of INR 10 each and 1,75,90,189 0.1% non - cumulative redeemable preference shares of INR 10 each of the parent
company, held by erstwhile directors cum shareholders of the parent company and their relatives for an aggregate consideration of INR 961.73 lakh. During the
year ended March 31, 2022, these non-cumulative redeemable preference shares were converted into equity shares of INR 10 each.

The Trust is a distinct legal entity created primarlly for the purpose of implementing the above ESOP scheme and the shares purchased by it during the year ended
March 31, 2020 are solely for the purpose of issuance to employees under the ESOP Scheme. Since, the Trust is acting as an agent of the parent company solely for
the purpose of aforesaid Scheme, the assets and liabilities of the Trust have been accounted for as the assets and liabifities of the parent company. The equity
shares held by the Trust is disclosed as treasury shares in the equity.
During the year ended March 31, 2022, the equity shareholders of the parent company approved the Arjas Employee Stock Option Scheme 2022 and creation and
grant of 3,30,30,682 (three crore thirty lakh thirty thousand six hundred and eighty-twa) options to identified employees of the parent company under the Arjas
Employee Stock Option Scheme 2022
During the current year, pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement, the equity shares held by the Trust is sold to The Sandur Manganese & Iron Ores Limited for a
net consideration of INR 2,660.79 lakh resulting in a gain of INR 1,441.92 lakh [net of capital gain tax paid by the Trust] which is being recognized in securities
premium account Consequently, the options granted to the employees have lapsed during the year. Accordingly, the parent company has reversed INR 372.7¢ lakh
of share-based payment expenses recorded till March 31, 2024 with a corresponding debit to equity settled share based payment reserve.
In terms of the Scheme, the employees are eligible to receive Trust Distributable amount (representing consideration received by the Trust, net of taxes and other
liabilities of the Trust) subject to their continuing employment with the parent company for the specified period. Accordingly, the parent company has recognized
INR 950 lakh of Trust Distributable amount as share-based payment expense.

A Share based payment plan
The following tables provides the disclosures as required by Ind AS 102 'Share based payments’.

Arjas Employee Stock Option Scheme Options

No. of options granted 3,30,30,682

Grant date . July 5, 2022

Grant price (INR per share) 101

Fair Value on the date of grant of option [INR per share] 6.5

Method of settlement Equity

#ethod of Accounting Fair value

Graded vesting plan Vesting of the options shall be in a single instalment

MNommal exercise period The exercise can be done after 5 years from the date of vesting or at the change in control event

B Movement of option activity under employee share option plan and changes for year ended March 31, 2025

Farals Waighted average Welghtec! auerage Weighted average
Share Options exercise price remaining intrinsic value

contractual term

Stock options outstanding as at April 1, 2024 3,30,30,682 10.10 5.26

Stock options granted = - 5 .

Stock options forfeited/lapsed (3,30,30,682) {10 {5) -

Stock options surrender - - - -

Stock options exercised s = A

Stock options outstanding as at March 31, 2025 - - - =

Stock options exercisable as at March 31, 2025 = - - -
Stock options unvested as at March 31, 2025 - - = -
Weighted average fair value as on grant date of the options outstanding =

The expense recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss during the year is INR 577.30 lakh [March 31, 2024: [NR 214.62 lakh).
During the year The Sandur Manganese & Iron Ores Limited purchased the shares held with Arjas Employes Benefit Trust.
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Movement of option activity under employee share option plan and <h for year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars Weighted average Welghtec! average Weighted average
Share Options exerckse price resisiog intrinsic vakie
contractual term

Stock options outstanding as at April 1, 2023 3,30.30,682 10.10 526 -
Stock options granted - - - -
Stock options forfeited/lapsed = . . -
Stack options surrender - - - -
Stock options exercised - - - -
Stock options outstanding as at March 31, 2024 3,320,30,682 10.10 5.26 -
Stock options exercisable as at March 31, 2024 - - - -
Stack options unvested as at March 31, 2024 3,30,30,682 10.10 526 -
Weighted average fair value as on grant date of the options outstanding 3.25

€ Fair valuation and assumptions
The fair valuation of the employee stock option plan granted has been estimated using Black-Schotes model of pricing, The key assumptions for calculating the fair
value as on the grant are;

Arjas Employee Stock Option Scheme Options

Method used Black-Scholes model

Risk-free rate 737%

Option life [Years] QOne year from date of vesting and date of vesting is 5 years from the date of grant

Expected volatility* 35.00%

Dividend yield 0%

* Expected volatility is detemmined based on the cbserved historical volatility of listed competitors/comparable companies, allowing for the fact that Company is
not listed.

45 The State Government of Andhra Pradesh has approved a special package of incentives under mega project concept of Industrial Investment Promotion Policy
{IIPP) 2010-15 to the Company for their expansion and diversification profect in Anantapur, as per which the parent company is entitled to 50% VAT/CST
reimbursement for a period of 5 years from the date of commencement of commerdal production on the end products viz, bars and rods. The parent company has
filed the necessary forms in this regard up to March 2018 within the applicable timelines,

As at March 31, 2024, the carrying value of govemment grant recefvable was INR 612.03 lzakh and corresponding deferved government grant was INR 338,19 lakh.
During the current year, the management has re-assessed the recoverability of the receivables and created provision of INR 213.84 lakh {net of deferred
government grant INR 398,19 lakh).

46 Corporate Social Responsibility
As per the provisions of section 135 of the Act and Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 2014, the parent company has constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility
{CSRy Committee. In pursuance of the Act, the parent company is required to spend at least 2% of the average net profits made during the three immediately
preceding financial years on CSR.

The aggregate amount of expenditure incurred during the year by the parent company on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR} is INR 284,10 lakh [March 31, 2024:
INR 374,84 lakh] and is shown separately under note 31 based on Guidance Mote on Accounting for Expenditure on CSR Activities issued by the JCAL
Details of CSR expenditure

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(I} (a) Gross amount required to be spent during the year 284,10 371.35
{b) Amount spent by the Company during the year 25012 37484

(€) (Excess)/Shortfall at the end of the year [{c) =(a)-{b)] 3398 {3.49)
[refer note (it below)

{d) Total of previous year shortfall = a

{f) Reason of shortfall Ongoing projects NA
{9) Details of transaction with related party - -
{ii} a} Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2025 In cash Vet to be paid in cash Total

i) Construction/acguisition of any asset - - -

ity On purposes other than (i} above 250,12 33,98 28410
by Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2024

) Construction/acquisition of any asset - - -

i) On paurposes other than (i) above 261.62 11322 37484

<) Category of spend other than construction/acquisition of any asset for the year ending on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024
Disaster Management
Promotion of Games and Sports
Medical and Health
Education
Community Development
Environment
({il)y The parent company has transferred INR 33,98 lakh to a Special account before the date of this report and within a period of 30 days from the end of the financial
year in compliance with the provision of section 135(6) of the Act.
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47 Ratios
Particulars Ni t Denominator March 2%, 2025 March 31, 2024 Variance
Current Ratio Total current assets Tatal current liabilities 089 108 (17.29%)
Debit equity ratio Total debtt including  Total equity 072 0.75 {3.87%)
Lease liabilities
Debt service coverage ratio Earmng for  Debt Debt service = Interest 0.39 0.84 {53.89%)
Service = Net & lease payments +

profit/(loss) after taxes Principal repayments
+  Mon-cash  income

and  expenses  +

finance cost

fthe ratio is decreased compared to previous yesr primarily due to principal repayment of ECB foan avaited from
erstwhile holding company amounting to INR 36,313.07 lskh during the yearf

Return on Equity

Net profit/{loss) for the Average total equity (1.37%) 2.76% (149.66%)

year

[the ratio is dacreased compared fo previous year due to decrease in earmings during the period primsrily on account of
fuctuation in Affay Bar prices}

Inventory tumover ratio (times}

Cost of goods sokd = Average Inventory 254 210 20.69%
Cost of materials

consumed + Changes

in  inventories of

finished goods, semi

finished  goods  and

work-in-progress.

Trade receivable tumover ratio {imes)  Revenue from Average trade 7.59 6.52 1643%
operations receivables

Trade payables tumover ratic {times) Met credit purchases  Average trade payable 247 274 (9.86%)

Het capital turnover ratic {times) Revenue from Average working (203.43) 15.62 (1402.20%)
operations capital

fthe ratio has increased due to more than proportionate decrease in average working capitsl when compared fo increase
in revenuef

Net profit ratio Net profit/(koss) for the Revenue from {0.57%) 1.26% (145.47%}
year operations
{the ratio is decreased compared to previous year due to decrease in eamings during the period]
Return on capital employed (ROCE) Profitf{loss} before tax  Capital employed = 3.81% 5.75% {33.80%)
and finance cost Net worth +
Borrowings + Lease
liabilities
fthe rativ is decreased compared to previous year due fo decrease in earnings during the period]
Return on investment (Other than Income earned on Average investments 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
investments in subsidiaries) investments for the period

The financial statements of the group for the year ended March 31, 2024 were audited by erstwhile auditors B $ R & Co. LLP (Firm Registration Number:

101248W/W-100022).

49

The manag t has evaluated sub
consolidated financial statments,

t events till May 19, 2025 and determined that there were no such events requiring recognition or disclosure in the

The consolidated financial statements of the group for the year ended March 31, 2025 were recommended by Audit Committee and authorized for issue by the

Company’s Board of Directors,
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COUNTANTS
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